
 
 

CABINET 
Agenda 
 

Date Monday 21 June 2021 
 

Time 6.00 pm 
 

Venue Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Oldham OL1 1UL 
 

Notes 
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST- If a Member requires any advice on any item 
involving a possible declaration of interest which could affect his/her ability to speak 
and/or vote he/she is advised to contact Paul Entwistle or Liz Drogan in advance of 
the meeting. 
 
2. CONTACT OFFICER for this Agenda is Liz Drogan Tel. 0161 770 5151 or email 
elizabeth.drogan@oldham.gov.uk  
 
3. PUBLIC QUESTIONS – Any member of the public wishing to ask a question at the 
above meeting can do so only if a written copy of the question is submitted to the 
Contact officer by 12 Noon on Wednesday, 16 June 2021. 
 
4.  FILMING - The Council, members of the public and the press may record / film / 
photograph or broadcast this meeting when the public and the press are not lawfully 
excluded.  Any member of the public who attends a meeting and objects to being 
filmed should advise the Constitutional Services Officer who will instruct that they are 
not included in the filming. 
Please note that anyone using recording equipment both audio and visual will not be 
permitted to leave the equipment in the room where a private meeting is held. 
Recording and reporting the Council’s meetings is subject to the law including the 
law of defamation, the Human Rights Act, the Data Protection Act and the law on 
public order offences. 
 
Public access to the meeting is limited as restrictions are in place due to COVID-19 
and Members of the public will be given access to the meeting room on a first come 
first served basis. The meeting will also be streamed live at 
https://www.oldham.gov.uk/info/200608/meetings/1940/live_council_meetings_online 
 

 MEMBERSHIP OF THE CABINET IS AS FOLLOWS: 
 Councillors Akhtar, Chadderton, Chauhan, Jabbar, Moores, Mushtaq, Roberts, Shah 

and Stretton 
 

 

Item No  

1   Apologies For Absence  

2   Urgent Business  

Public Document Pack

https://www.oldham.gov.uk/info/200608/meetings/1940/live_council_meetings_online


 
 

 Urgent business, if any, introduced by the Chair 

3   Declarations of Interest  

 To Receive Declarations of Interest in any Contract or matter to be discussed at 
the meeting. 

4   Public Question Time  

 To receive Questions from the Public, in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution. 

5   Minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 22nd March 2021 (Pages 1 - 12) 

6   Covid-19 Recovery Strategy 2021 - 2022 (Pages 13 - 40) 

7   Council Performance Report March 2021 (Pages 41 - 90) 

8   Special Education Needs (SEN) Travel Assistance Service - Contract Extension 
(Pages 91 - 98) 

9   Exclusion of the Press and Public  

 That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that they contain exempt information under paragraph 3 
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and it would not, on balance, be in the 
public interest to disclose the reports. 

10   Special Education Needs (SEN) Travel Assistance Service - Contract Extension 
(Pages 99 - 106) 

 



 

CABINET 
22/03/2021 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Councillor Fielding (Chair)  
Councillors Brownridge, Chadderton, Chauhan, Jabbar, 
Mushtaq, Roberts and Shah 
 

 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Moores. 

2   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business received. 

3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest received. 

4   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

There were no public questions received.  

5   MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEETINGS HELD ON 22ND 
FEBRUARY 2021 AND 23RD FEBRUARY 2021  

 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Cabinet meetings held on 
22nd February 2021 and 23rd February 2021 be approved.  

6   REVENUE MONITOR AND CAPITAL INVESTMENT 
PROGRAMME 2020/21– MONTH 9 DECEMBER 2020  

 

The Cabinet gave consideration to a report of the Director of 
Finance which provided Members with an update on the 
Council’s 2020/21 forecast revenue budget position at Annex 1 
and the financial position of the capital programme as at 31 
December 2020 (Quarter 3), together with the revised capital 
programme 2020/21 to 2025/26, as outlined in section two of the 
report at Annex 2. Both elements of the report incorporated 
more recent information as appropriate. 
 
Revenue Position 
It was reported that the current forecast outturn position for 
2020/21 was a projected favourable variance of £0.522m after 
allowing for approved and pending transfers to and from 
reserves. 
The position also included additional costs and pressures that 
have been identified by the Authority in this financial year as a 
direct result of the Governments ongoing arrangements to 
mitigate the spread of COVID-19 which commenced on 23 
March 2020. The additional pressures included forecasts of both 
income shortfalls and additional expenditure that have impacted 
on the Authority’s budgets as a result of the pandemic 
The pandemic has affected nearly all aspects of Council service 
delivery; however, most significantly People and Place, 
Children’s Services and Community Health & Adult Social Care 
Portfolios. Action had been taken and would continue up to the 
year end to address variances and take mitigating action as 
detailed in the report. 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



 

The overall corporate position was partly being offset by the 
application of the £25.802m un-ringfenced Government COVID 
related grant funding from the Ministry for Housing, 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG), of which 
£7.641m was received in 2019/20 and held in a specific 
Earmarked Reserve to underpin the 2020/21 budget. There had 
been actual, in-year, receipts of £17.261m of COVID Emergency 
Funding, including £1.281m for the first submission for loss of 
income in relation to sales, fees and charges under the income 
compensation scheme (SFC). Further provision was made for 
the second and third SFC submissions in the sum of £0.924m 
and £0.900m respectively, the former had been submitted but 
not yet paid, the latter was an estimate for the period December 
2020 to March 2021. 
The COVID pressure was further offset by actual and 
anticipated refunds from the Greater Manchester Combined 
Authority (GMCA) of £3.133m together with a contribution from 
Oldham CCG to support the cost of adult social care services 
via the Section 75 Pooled Funding Agreement that was in place 
between the Council and the CCG. 
In Annex 1 to the report, both the full Government grant and the 
GMCA refunds were presented as single sums so that it 
highlighted the level of variation across all Council budgets. 
However, this summary report presented the position after 
applying the Government grant and the refunds across Portfolio 
areas. 
An update on the major issues driving the projections were 
detailed within Annex 1, Section 3. 
Section 4 of the report supplemented by Appendices 3 and 4 
advised the Cabinet of the grants that the Council had received. 
There had been a number of developments particularly in 
relation to support for businesses and to provide additional for 
the Council. Further grant funding and external contributions 
were possible, as a result, both the overall financial position and 
the application of Government grant could change before the 
end of the financial year. 
As this financial monitoring report reflected the financial position 
at Quarter 3 updated with more recent information where 
possible, it could be regarded as a reliable indicator of the 
potential year end position. Therefore, based on current 
projections it was anticipated that the Council would retain at 
least the current, favourable position to the end of the financial 
year. 
 
 
Capital Position 
The report outlined the most up to date capital spending position 
for 2020/21 to 2025/26 for approved schemes. The revised 
capital programme budget for 2020/21 was £71.012m at the 
close of Quarter 3, a net decrease of £76.620m from the original 
budget of £147.632m. Actual expenditure to 31 December 2020 
was £56.080m and had increased to £61.483m at the end of 
February 2021 (86.58% of the forecast outturn). The forecasts 
for 2021/22 onwards reflected the Capital Strategy and 
Programme approved at the Budget Council on 4 March 2021. 

Page 2



 

It is probable that the forecast position would continue to change 
before the year end with additional re-profiling into future years. 
 
Options/alternatives considered  
Option 1 – To approve the suggested recommendations  
Option 2 – Not to approve the recommendations  
 
RESOLVED – That: 

1. The forecast revenue outturn for 2020/21 at Quarter 3, 
being a £0.522m favourable variance having regard to 
the action being taken to manage expenditure be 
approved. 

2. The forecast positions for the Dedicated Schools Grant, 
Housing Revenue Account and Collection Fund be 
approved  

3. The use of reserves as detailed in Appendix 1 to Annex 1 
of the report be approved.  

4. The revised capital programme for 2020/21 to 2025/26 at 
Quarter 3 as presented in Annex 2 of the report be 
approved.  

7   ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE PREPARATION OF 'PLACES 
FOR EVERYONE': A PROPOSED JOINT DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN DOCUMENT ON BEHALF OF NINE GREATER 
MANCHESTER DISTRICTS  

 

The Cabinet gave consideration to a report of the Deputy Chief 
Executive, People and Place which sought approval to the 
arrangements necessary to formulate and prepare the joint 
development plan document (DPD) ‘Places for Everyone’, 
including the establishment of a joint committee to represent 
Oldham Council and the eight other GM districts (Bolton, Bury, 
Manchester, Rochdale, Salford, Tameside, Trafford, Wigan).  
It was reported that on 11 December 2020, following the 
withdrawal of Stockport Council from the production of the 
Greater Manchester Plan for Jobs, Homes & the Environment 
(the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework), the Association of 
Greater Manchester Authorities (AGMA) Executive Board 
agreed in principle to the a joint Development Plan Document 
(DPD) of the nine remaining Greater Manchester (GM) districts, 
to cover strategic policies including housing and employment 
land requirements and, as appropriate, strategic site allocations 
and Green Belt boundary amendments and associated 
infrastructure. 
A report was taken to AGMA Executive Board on 12th February 
2021 setting out the next steps in relation to the Joint DPD of the 
nine GM districts, to be known as ‘Places for Everyone’, 
including the required decisions by individual Districts to initiate 
this process as set out below in the recommendations and 
discussed further in this report. 
The approval to establish the new Joint Committee was a 
decision for each district according to their own Constitutional 
arrangements and approval to delegate the formulation and 
preparation of the Joint DPD to that committee was a Cabinet 
function. 
 
Options/alternatives considered  Page 3



 

Option 1: To approve the arrangements necessary to formulate 
and prepare the joint development plan document (DPD) 
“Places for Everyone” as set out in the recommendations to this 
report, including the establishment of a joint committee to 
represent Oldham Council and the eight other GM districts 
(Bolton, Bury, Manchester, Rochdale, Salford, Tameside, 
Trafford, Wigan).  
Option 2: To not approve the arrangements necessary to 
formulate and prepare the joint development plan document 
(DPD) “Places for Everyone” as set out in the recommendations 
to this report, including the establishment of a joint committee to  
represent Oldham Council and the eight other GM districts 
(Bolton, Bury, Manchester, Rochdale, Salford, Tameside, 
Trafford, Wigan) 
 
RESOLVED – That: (subject to Full Council approving 
recommendations on the 24th March 2021 in relation to the Joint 
Development Plan and the establishment of a Joint Committee) 

1. The required approval of Full Council to the making of an 
agreement with the other 8 Greater Manchester councils 
(Bolton, Bury, Manchester, Rochdale, Salford, Tameside, 
Trafford, Wigan) to prepare a joint development plan 
document to cover strategic policies including housing 
and employment land requirements and, as appropriate, 
strategic site allocations and Green Belt boundary 
amendments and associated infrastructure across the 
nine districts be noted.  

2. The formulation and preparation of the joint development 
plan document to cover housing and employment land 
requirements including, as appropriate, strategic site 
allocations and Green Belt boundary amendments and 
associated infrastructure across the nine Greater 
Manchester districts insofar as such matters are 
executive functions be delegated to a Joint Committee of 
the nine Greater Manchester councils. 

3. It be noted that the following are the sole responsibility of 
full Council: 

a. Responsibility for giving of instructions to the 
Cabinet to reconsider the draft plan submitted by 
the Cabinet for the Council’s consideration. 

b. The amendment of the draft joint development 
plan document submitted by the Cabinet for the full 
Council’s consideration. 

c. The approval of the joint development plan 
document for the purposes of submission to the 
Secretary of State for independent examination. 

d. The adoption of the joint development plan 
document.  

8   ACCESSIBLE OLDHAM FRAMEWORK CONTRACT   

Consideration was given to a report of the Deputy Chief 
Executive which sought approval to delegate authority the 
Deputy Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader the 
award of the Accessible Oldham Strategic Partnership 
Agreement and reserve supplier agreement, and to delegate 
authority to the Director of Environmental Management in Page 4



 

consultation with the Director of Finance and the Director of 
Legal Services to award the individual call off orders for the 
separate projects, due to the urgency to deliver a programme of 
works in accordance with the funding timeline constraints.  
It was reported that the Transportation and Planning Team in 
collaboration with Unity Partnership had successfully bid for 
several capital funded multi-disciplinary highway improvement 
programme of work, namely Growth Deal 3 (GD3) and Mayor’s 
Cycling and Walking Challenge Fund (MCF). The funds 
(cumulatively amounting to circa £16.5m) are managed by 
Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) under the overarching 
administration of Department for Transport (DfT). 
For Oldham Council to deliver the programme it was considered 
necessary to seek a mid-term (4 years) Strategic Partner 
(Partner) to assist the Delivery Team at key stages of the design 
and construction work. The current method of delivery of the 
highway construction work was described below which can take 
upwards of 12 weeks from tender stage to commencement on 
site. Ultimately, in order to deliver the GD3 and MCF programme 
within the set timeframe, a more streamlined method of 
procuring construction work was required. The intention was that 
individual projects would be procured via a Call Off procedure 
under the Strategic Partnership Agreement. This would require 
Director sign off (in liaison with the Directors of Finance and 
Legal Services) rather than an individual Cabinet report for each 
element of work. 
The Accessible Oldham Strategic Partnership Agreement was 
scheduled to be advertised by the Commercial Services Team 
before the end of the year and it was expected to be available 
for use in March/April 2021. An initial sift would be undertaken 
with a shortlist of three Contractors being invited to 
enhance/review their respective bids with one being awarded as 
the outright winner.    
 
Options/alternatives considered  
Option 1 - Delegated authority is given to:  
  

 the Deputy Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader to 
award the Strategic Partnership Agreement and Reserve 
Supplier Agreement.   

 the Director of Environmental Management in consultation 
with the Director of Finance and the Director of Legal Services , 
in consultation with the Director of Finance and Director of Legal 
Services  to award the individual call off contracts for the works 
packages under the Strategic Partnership Agreement and 
Reserve Supplier Agreement if necessary.  

 the Director of Legal Services to affix the Council’s seal to the 
Strategic Partnership Agreement and Reserve Supplier 
Agreement any incidental and ancillary documentation and also 
to the individual call off contracts under the Strategic Partnership 
Agreement and Reserve Supplier Agreement any incidental and 
ancillary documentation. This would minimise the time taken to 
award the Strategic Partnership Agreement and call off 
contracts under the Agreement and be ready to commence the 
project on site without any unnecessary delay.   

Page 5



 

Option 2 – Wait until the contractor is selected and seek 
approval to award the Strategic Partnership Agreement and 
Reserve Supplier Agreement once the outcome of the 
evaluation is known. There would therefore be a delay in 
implementation of the projects and potential delay in the delivery 
of certain aspects of the  programme which must meet the tight 
timescales under the GD3 funding agreement.  
 
RESOLVED – That: 

1. Authority be delegated to the Deputy Chief Executive in 
consultation with the Leader to award the Strategic 
Partnership Agreement and Reserve Supplier 
Agreement, in consultation with the Director of Finance 
and Director of Legal Services.  

2. Authority be delegated to the Director of Environmental 
Management in consultation with the Director of Finance, 
and the Director of Legal Services  to award the individual 
call off contracts for the separate works packages under 
the Strategic Partnership Agreement and Reserve 
Supplier Agreement. 

3. Authority be delegated to the Director of Legal Services 
to affix the Council’s seal to the Strategic Partnership 
Agreement and Reserve Supplier Agreement any 
incidental and ancillary  documentation and also to the 
individual call off contracts under the Strategic 
Partnership Agreement and Reserve Supplier Agreement 
any incidental and ancillary documentation.  

9   STREET BIN REPLACEMENT   

Consideration was given to a report of the Deputy Chief 
Executive, People and Place which sought approval to secure 
funding to replace the street bins, two vehicles and the need to 
minimise manual handling and reduce the dangers associated 
with needles and glass contained within street bins. 
The new bins would no longer require the constant replacement 
of plastic bin bags which would normally end up in the waste 
stream assisting with the councils target of becoming carbon 
neutral by 2025. The new bins have a greater capacity than the 
existing bins, with approximately 3 times the waste volume 
which can be currently held before requiring emptying. This new 
type of bin would allow for a reduction in the number to be 
installed, however, keeping the same number as current may 
allow the option to locate bins in more built up residential areas 
giving greater widespread coverage than we currently have on 
non-primary routes. This decision will be made following the 
consultation and ultimately the level of finance secured for this 
proposal.  
In addition it was proposed to replace bins within Oldham Town 
Centre with a new (ecofriendly) solar powered type. These are 
similar to those currently in use within Manchester City Centre. 
The town centre bins are serviced on average 4 times a day; 
sometimes more depending on season. The new bins which 
utilise solar power to power a compactor, allows a normal 240 
litre wheelie bin to hold the capacity of a large commercial 1100 
litre bin. 

Page 6



 

If the above proposals were accepted it would require the 
replacement of two existing 3.5-ton crew cab caged vehicles 
with two new purpose built 7.5-ton small compacting waste 
vehicles. These new vehicles would take up the role of street 
litter bin servicing across the whole Borough, but will also take 
on a secondary role currently serviced by a second crew and 
vehicle, servicing the existing 19 static dandy staff operating 
across the districts and main corridor routes. These larger 
capacity vehicles (3-ton waste carrying capacity) will allow for a 
full day servicing of bins, requiring only one recycling site visit 
either early morning or end of day.  
 
Options/alternatives considered  
Option 1 – New proposal 

Capital implications of purchasing 

Vehicle/ bin 
receptacles 

Quantity Purchase 
costs £ 

Useful 
Economic 
Life 
(years) 

Total cost 
(£) 

     

*7.5-ton 
compactors 

 
2 

 
86000 

 
7 

 
£172,000 

     

Wheelie 
Bins 

1172 35  £41,020 

     

** Wheelie 
Bin Housing 

 
1152 

 
260.00 

 
15 

 
£299,520 

     

Wheelie Bin 
installation 
cost 

 
1152 

 
75 

  
£86,400 

     

Solar-Bin 20 5150 10 £103,000 

     

Solar-Bin 
installation 
cost 

 
20 

 
100 

  
£2000 

     

Software 
and 
servicing 
costs for 
Solar bin 

20 
 
 
20 

Software 
license £800 
 
Maintenance 
cost per bin 
£550/5yrs 

Covers 
10yrs 
 
 
 
10 

£800.00 
 
 
 
£22,000 

     

Grand 
Total, with 
replacement 
vehicles 
funded 
through this 
program. 

    
 
 
 
£726,770.00 

     

Grand Total    £554770.00 Page 7



 

if Vehicles 
funded 
through 
Fleet 
replacement 
programme. 

 
Option 2 - Replacement of existing street litter bins on a like for 
like basis. 
  

Bin 
receptacles/Consumables 

Quantity Purchase 
costs £ 

Useful 
Economic 
Life 
(years) 

Total cost 
(£) 

     

Replacement bins 1172 215 15 £251,980 

     

Installation costs 1172 65  £76,180 

     

Replacement steel liners 1172 70 x 3 
over 
lifetime 
of bin 

3.5  £246,120 

     

Consumables (plastic 
bags) 

1172 Average 
£13 per 
bin / 
annum  

£15,236 
x 15yr life 

£228,540 

     

Grand Total    £802,820.00 

  
*Excluding the purchase of any vehicles. 
Total storage capacity for litter with existing 1172 x 120ltr bins is 
140,640 litres.    
 Proposal will see capacity of 298,480 litres for 1172 x 240ltr of 
new units. 
 
RESOLVED – That Option 1 replacing the bins with a new 
proposal be approved.  

10   TELEPHONY MODERNISATION   

The Cabinet gave consideration to a report of the Chief 
Technology Officer, Unity Partnership which sought approval to 
modernise the Council’s Telephony system.  
Oldham Council currently maintained a traditional, fixed desk 
telephony system provide by Mitel.  Since 2004 this system had 
grown and adapted and now required significant investment to 
bring it in line with the current standards and the council’s 
needs. The system did not cater for remote working and lacked 
many modern features.  
If left, the current provision will become less reliable and pose 
cyber security risks for Oldham Council. 
Additionally, staff had access to systems with overlapping 
features.  

a. Microsoft Teams Page 8



 

b. Mitel Fixed Desk Telephony 
c. A mobile phone (where necessary) 

 
Option alternatives considered  
Option1 - Do nothing. 
This option would see Oldham Council retain the outdated 
telephone system resulting in reliability and cyber security 
issues.  This would be a strategic barrier. 
Annual charges for mobile phones and fixed desk telephony 
remain the same. 
Option 2 - Upgrade the current system. 
This option would upgrade the current system, bringing it up to 
date with modern components, including those needed for Agile 
working.  This would cost a projected £1.9m over 5 years and is 
not a good strategic fit. 
Option 3  - Migrate to Cloud telephony system. 
Allocate £1.6m from the current ICT Capital Programme to fund 
moving to a modern cloud-based Telephony system.  This 
option was a strategic enabler, improved service availability and 
resilience and reduced cyber security risks.   
 
RESOLVED – That the allocation of £1.6m form the current ICT 
Capital Porgramme be agreed to fund moving to a cloud based 
telephony system. 

11   CONSTRUCTION FRAMEWORK DELIVERY AND 
MANAGEMENT PARTNER CONCESSION CONTRACT  

 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director of 
Commisisoing which sought approval to award a Concession 
Contract to Procure Partnerships Limited following a fully 
compliant procurement process that would enable them to 
commence working with the Council to procure a Construction 
Works Framework, sought to delegate authority to the Director 
of Economy in consultation with the Director of Finance and 
Director of Legal Services to award the planned Framework on 
behalf of the Council, and authorise the Director of Legal 
Services to sign the contractual documentation and any 
incidental and ancillary documentation to enable the required 
deadlines to be achieved. 
The request to award the five year Concession Contract to 
Procure Partnerships Limited (the “Concessionaire”) following a 
fully compliant procurement process was to enable the Council 
and the Concessionaire to commence working together to 
procure a Construction Works Framework which will facilitate the 
award of contracts from the Council’s own projected pipeline of 
works requirements. By virtue of procuring the Framework in a 
manner which enabled it to also be used by other Public Sector 
Bodies, the planned Framework was also expected to generate 
a monetary income for the Council and the Concessionaire 
which will contribute to the Council’s challenging savings 
targets. 
Option 1 – To approve the award  
Option 2 – Not to approve the award  
 

Page 9



 

RESOLVED – That the Cabinet would consider the 
commercially sensitive information at Item 15 of the agenda 
before making a decision.  

12   REQUEST FOR APPROVAL TO COLLABORATIVELY 
COMMISSION AN INTEGRATED SEXUAL HEALTH 
SERVICE WITH ROCHDALE AND BURY COUNCILS  

 

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Public 
Health which sought approval to recommission the Integrated 
Sexual Health Service as part of a cluster commisisoing 
arrangement with Bury and Rochdale Councils, to ensure that 
Oldham had a high quality integrated sexual health service to 
support population health and meet our mandated 
responsibilities for open access sexual health services. 
The current Integrated Sexual Health Service had been provided 
by the current provider since January 2016 as part of a cluster 
commissioning arrangement with Bury and Rochdale Councils. 
In June 2020, Cabinet agreed to extend the contract, under 
Regulation 72 (1)( c) of the PCR2015, for a period of 12 months 
(1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022) due to the COVID-19 outbreak.   
This paper outlined proposals to recommission the service, with 
the same cluster arrangement, and proceed to market for 
procurement of a new service for commencement from 1 April 
2022.  Rochdale Council would act as the lead commissioner for 
the service, and STAR Procurement (Stockport, Trafford and 
Rochdale Procurement) would lead the procurement.   
 
RESOLVED – That the Cabinet would consider the 
commercially sensitive information contained at Item 16 of the 
agenda before making a decision.  

13   0-19 YEARS INTEGRATED PARTNERSHIP MODEL   

Consideration was given to a joint report of the Managing 
Director, Children’s Services, Director of Public Health, Strategic 
Director of Communities and Reform, Strategic Director 
Commissioning which sought to outline proposals for the future 
design and delivery of a high quality universal and targeted 
services for children and families including meeting our 
mandated public health services for 0-19 year old children, 
Children’s Centre core offer and support for early years 
education 
The current Right Start and School Nursing Service had been 
provided by Bridgewater since 1st April 2016. The contract was 
extended in 2020 for one year from 2020 to 2021 and approval 
has recently been given to extend it for another year from 2021 
to 2022 due to the COVID-19 outbreak.   
No further extensions to the service are permissible under the 
Contract Procedure Rules, and this is the key opportunity to 
redesign the delivery to meet the wider aims of the services in 
Oldham.   
This paper outlined proposals for the future design and delivery 
of the service, ahead of a new contract from 1 April 2022.  The 
COVID pandemic has impacted on our capacity for this work 
until now and there was limited time before a new contract 
needs to be agreed.   
 Page 10



 

RESOLVED – That the commercially sensitive information 
contained at Item 17 of the agenda would be considered before 
a decision was taken.  

14   EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   

RESOLVED that, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded 
from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that they contain exempt information under paragraphs 
3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and it would not, on 
balance, be in the public interest to disclose the reports. 

15   CONSTRUCTION FRAMEWORK DELIVERY AND 
MANAGEMENT PARTNER CONCESSION CONTRACT  

 

The Cabinet gave consideration to the commercially sensitive 
information in relation to Item 11 Construction Framework 
Delivery and Management Partner Concession Contract. 
 
RESOLVED – That recommendations as detailed within the 
report be approved.  

16   REQUEST FOR APPROVAL TO COLLABORATIVELY 
COMMISSION AN INTEGRATED SEXUAL HEALTH 
SERVICE WITH ROCHDALE AND BURY COUNCILS  

 

The Cabinet gave consideration to the commercially sensitive 
information in relation to Item 12 - Request for approval to 
collaboratively commission an Integrated Sexual Health Service 
with Rochdale and Bury Councils. 
 
RESOLVED – That the recommendations as contained within 
the report be approved.  

17   0-19 YEARS INTEGRATED PARTNERSHIP MODEL   

The Cabinet gave consideration to the commercially sensitive 
information contained at Item 13 of the agenda. 
 
RESOLVED – That the recommendations contained within the 
commercially sensitive report be approved.  
 

The meeting started at 6.00pm and finished 6.37pm 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



 

 

  
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reason for Decision 
Oldham’s current Corporate Plan expired in December 2020. Work to refresh Oldham’s Corporate 
Plan was due to be completed by summer 2020, however, the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic 
meant that this was no longer viable. Instead, it was agreed at Cabinet that a COVID-19 Recovery 
Strategy would be developed, acting as an interim Corporate Plan until at least September 2022. 

 
Recommendations 
It is recommended that the Covid-19 Recovery Strategy is forwarded to Full Council for approval. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report to Cabinet 

 
Covid-19 Recovery Strategy 2021 – 2022 
 

Portfolio Holder:  
Councillor Shah, Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for 
Economic and Social Reform  
 
Officer Contact:   
Rebekah Sutcliffe, Strategic Director of Communities & Reform 
Shelley Kipling, Assistant Director Communications, Strategy and 
Performance 
 
Report Author: Jonathan Downs, Corporate Policy Lead  
 
21st June 2021 
 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



 

  2 

Cabinet 21st June 2021 
 
COVID-19 Recovery Strategy 2021 – 2022  
 
1 Background 
 
1.1 Oldham’s current Corporate Plan expired in December 2020. Work to refresh Oldham’s 

Corporate Plan was due to be completed by summer 2020, however, the impact of the 
COVID-19 pandemic meant that this was no longer viable. Instead, it was agreed by SMT, 
Leadership and ultimately Cabinet, that a COVID-19 Recovery Strategy would be 
developed, acting as an interim Corporate Plan until at least September 2022. 
 

1.2 As a Co-operative Council, Oldham is committed to tackling the impact of COVID-19, 
protecting our most vulnerable residents and communities. The steps we are taking to 
tackle the pandemic and the subsequent recovery planning aim to support people across 
the borough, especially those groups who have been most impacted. 

 
1.3 Building on the learning so far and the anticipated events to come, we have developed a 

comprehensive Recovery Strategy, which will help shape our approach and vision for 
Oldham over the next 18 months. We do this whilst we continue to respond to an ongoing 
critical incident. 

 
1.4 Our objectives and approach to the Recovery Strategy are rooted in our vision, the 

Oldham Model, ensuring as we adapt to a changing world that we remain focused on 
building thriving communities, an inclusive economy and to deliver co-operatively.  

 
2 Current Position 
 
2.1 To develop the new COVID-19 Recovery Strategy priorities, consultation has taken place 

at Directorate Management Team Meetings (DMT), with Cabinet Members individually, 
through a workshop at SMT and through engagement with overview and scrutiny. 

 
2.2 The Recovery Strategy is attached at Appendix 1 for approval, prior to progressing to 

Council. Key priority areas in the strategy are: 
 

1. Driving equality: Oldham is rich in diversity with a wealth of people from different 
backgrounds and cultures living and working together. However, we know that there are 
groups who are more likely to face inequality and discrimination than others. As we 
recover from the impact of COVID-19 it is critical that we tackle inequality and 
discrimination head on. We will continue to identify and mitigate the equality impacts 
caused by the pandemic, informing our recovery planning through lived experience. 

 
2. Investing in quality housing: Poor-quality housing has a profound impact on health. 

The condition of homes, insecure tenure, and wider neighbourhood characteristics all 
have a considerable effect on health and wellbeing. Groups in the population who are 
more likely to live in poor housing are often the same groups who are vulnerable to 
COVID-19 and other health conditions. To tackle this, we will improve housing quality, 
while bringing forward significant investment in new and affordable homes. 

 
3. Championing a green recovery: In Oldham, we want to respond to the impacts of 

Coronavirus in a bold and ambitious way.  We want to use this as an opportunity to 
stimulate a green recovery that accelerates our ambitions around reducing the 
borough’s carbon footprint and protecting our parks and greenspace for residents to 
enjoy. 

 

Page 14



 

  3 

4. Creating and protecting jobs and supporting businesses: Many businesses, 
especially across hospitality and retail, have been impacted by the COVID-19 
pandemic, with repeated forced closures due to national and local lockdowns.  We will 
continue to create good jobs for our residents, while supporting local businesses to 
restart and recover from the effects of the pandemic. 

 
5. Prioritising education and skills: The COVID-19 pandemic has had a huge impact 

on education and skills, with many young people needing support to ‘catch up’ in 
learning after several months of lockdown. We will work with schools and colleges to 
support children and young people to catch up and succeed in learning. We will also 
prioritise training for adults who have been made redundant, helping them retrain and 
secure employment. 

 
6. Promoting health and wellbeing and supporting the most vulnerable: We will 

continue to promote and improve the health and wellbeing of our communities, contain 
the spread of COVID-19 locally and target action to protect our most vulnerable 
residents and communities. 

 
2.3 Each of these focus areas forms a key strand of the COVID-19 Recovery Strategy, with 

individual actions attached to each priority area. The Strategy reflects the difficult and 
challenging times ahead and the opportunities that are arising as we recover from the 
pandemic as Team Oldham. The Strategy also sets out how we can embrace the ‘new 
normal’ to build a stronger local economy, increase community resilience and public 
participation, support our local health system, and support our most vulnerable residents. 

 
3.0 Monitoring the Recovery Plan 
 
3.1 The Council’s annual business planning process is the mechanism through which we will 

assure delivery against the Recovery Plan actions. Quarterly reporting via the Corporate 
Performance Framework will be provided against identified actions. In addition, our 
Corporate Performance Framework will be redeveloped to ensure oversight of the key 
performance metrics relating to our agreed priorities as well as to ensure effective service 
delivery of business as usual activity.  An annual performance report detailing progress 
against the Recovery plan priorities will be produced. 

 
3.2 To ensure continued oversight of delivery and performance against our six agreed priority 

areas, we will schedule focused Leadership sessions on each over the coming months.  
 
3.3 Following Full Council approval, we will launch the Covid-19 Recovery Strategy, ensuring 

the priorities are embedded across Team Oldham. This will include creating a full 
communications and engagement programme, both within Team Oldham, with 
stakeholders and residents. We will also create an online tool to regularly update on 
progress.  

 
4 Options/Alternatives 
 
4.1 Option one – to recommend that the Covid-19 Recovery Strategy is taken to Council for 

approval. 
 
4.2 Option two – to recommend that the Covid-19 Recovery Strategy is not taken to Council for 

approval. 
 
5 Preferred Option 
 
5.1 Option one is the preferred and recommended option. 
 

Page 15



 

  4 

 
 
6 Consultation 
 
6.1 Consultation has taken place at DMTs, with Cabinet Members individually, through a 

workshop at SMT and through engagement with overview and scrutiny. 
 
7 Financial Implications  
 
7.1 The Council approved its 2021/22 revenue budget and capital programme on 4 March 2021. 

This sets out the financial framework for the year and the total funding envelope (subject to 
any further 2021/22 funding notifications).    

 
7.2 There are within the approved budget, some resources to support the Councils response to 

COVID.  In addition, some specific grant funding received in 2020/21 will be carried forward.  
These resources can be used, within eligibility criteria to support the COVID recovery plan  
However, it is important to note that the Council must deliver £8.8m of savings in 2021/22 
and has a significant financial challenge to be addressed in 2022/23 and 2023/24.  
Therefore, the COVID Recovery Plan must be guided by the financial context in which the 
Council is operating. (Anne Ryans, Director of Finance) 

 
8 Legal Services Comments 
 
8.1 N/A (Colin Brittain) 
 
9. Co-operative Agenda 
 
9.1 The Corporate Plan is the strategy which will help us to achieve our co-operative ambition 

over the next eighteen months. 
 
10 Human Resources Comments 
 
10.1 N/A 
 
11 Risk Assessments 
 
11.1 N/A 
 
12 IT Implications 
 
12.1 N/A 
 
13 Property Implications 
 
13.1 N/A 
 
14 Procurement Implications 
 
14.1 N/A 
 
15 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications 
 
15.1 N/A 
 
16 Equality, community cohesion and crime implications 
 

Page 16



 

  5 

16.1 N/A 
 
17 Equality Impact Assessment Completed? 
 
17.1  N/A 
 
18 Key Decision 
 
18.1 No 
 
19 Key Decision Reference 
 
19.1 N/A 
 
20 Background Papers 
 
20.1   N/A 
 
21 Appendices  
 
21.1 Appendix 1: COVID-19 Recovery Plan 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Oldham Council 
Covid Recovery Strategy 
June 2021

P
age 19



Foreword 
Councillor Arooj Shah, 
Leader, Oldham Council 

This last year has been a tough one for our borough and its people. COVID-19 has hit 
Oldham hard. Many of us have lost loved ones, and seen others seriously ill or with long-term 
complications from Coronavirus. We also know that it has hit some of our areas and some of  
our communities much harder than others due to the existing inequalities in health, in income 
and in opportunities. 

Oldham was the first Council in the country to appoint a Cabinet Member for Covid Recovery 
back in May 2020. At the time of accepting the role I had no idea that a full year later we would 
still be in the midst of the pandemic, but also facing the need to deal with the very real long-term 
impacts that COVID-19 has had on local people’s physical and mental health, their finances, 
local jobs and businesses and the education of our children. 

This strategy is about acting quickly to do exactly that. While we are still responding to the very 
real challenges of managing a pandemic we have also established and will deliver against the 
key things needed to give Oldham the best change to recover as quickly as possible. And we’ll 
do this while always acknowledging that the situation isn’t the same for everyone. Some will 
need more help than others. 

It would be easy to reflect simply on the challenges but we have so much to be hopeful about 
and thankful for. Not least the amazing response of our communities over the last year. As a 
borough we have pulled together – helping our friends, family and neighbours, building stronger 
relationships in our communities and creating a legacy of care and understanding that will last 
way beyond this pandemic. 

Oldham has come together – local people, businesses, the voluntary and community sector and 
public services to support and care for each other like never before. 

Thank you so much for playing your part. 

P
age 20



Foreword
Dr Carolyn Wilkins OBE 
Chief Executive Oldham Council and 
Accountable Officer Oldham Clinical Commissioning Group

I’m delighted to be sharing our Covid Recovery Strategy – our clear plan for delivery over the  
next period. 

While the last year has been incredibly challenging it has shown what the public sector, working  
closely with its communities, can achieve. Together Oldham has shown the strength of its  
commitment, its resolve and its undeniable sense of teamwork. 

Team Oldham has been at the heart of our response – delivering care and support to those 
who need it, as well as delivering local testing, tracing and, most recently, the roll out of the 
Coronavirus vaccination programme. We have built new teams and services and reshaped 
others. Our helpline and door-to-door engagement teams have offered a lifeline to many 
thousands of residents and we have administered financial grants and advice to thousands of 
local businesses. 

Alongside this we’ve continued to deliver other vital services – from health visiting to social care 
and from youth services to bin collections, our teams have continued to do what needed to be 
done. Throughout the last year we have been all too aware of the impact the pandemic was 
having on local people’s health, their jobs, education, and finances. Alongside our response we 
have been planning for recovery; thinking about what more we can do to make things better for 
local people and businesses. 

This plan allows us to look beyond the current pandemic, to restate our ambition, establish our 
priorities and drive forward with a relentless focus on delivery for Oldham and its people. 

P
age 21



What you told us 
To help us build this plan we asked Oldham residents to tell us their 
experiences of the pandemic, their thoughts, fears and hopes for the 
future and to help us set priorities for Team Oldham for the next  
12-18 months. 
In February 2021 we carried out an online survey of more than 600 
Oldham residents and throughout March held focus groups with 
parents of school aged children, black and minority ethnic residents 
(who were underrepresented in the survey), and business owners. 
We asked residents to talk to us about the ways that COVID-19 had 
impacted their lives and the level of concern they continued to have 
about the pandemic. 

The real-life impacts were stark. 

83% of residents told us they continued to be worried about 
COVID-19. 

84% had been affected by social isolation and 77% felt their mental 
health had been affected. This rose to 81% among informal carers 
and 89% among parents of school-aged children. 88% of parents we 
spoke to were concerned about the impact the pandemic was having 
on children’s mental health. 

95% of parents were worried about the impact COVID-19 had on their 
children’s education.

56% felt their ability to meet their caring responsibilities had been 
affected. This rose to 95% of informal carers.

65% felt their physical health had been affected, 66% had medical 
appointments cancelled or rescheduled and 50% say they had 
ignored other health concerns because of COVID-19.

54% told us their work or employment situation had been directly 
affected, rising to 90% among business owners.

44% said their overall finances were affected. In 30% of families we 
spoke to someone had lost their job, 56% said they or someone in 
their family had been furloughed.

32% said they needed financial support throughout the pandemic and 
30% needed to borrow money at some point. 45% of residents we 
spoke to didn’t feel or were uncertain they would financially recover 
from the pandemic.

63% of people had been forced to isolate, rising to 77% among 
parents of school-aged children.

We asked local people what we should focus on to make sure we 
boosted the recovery of the borough. We offered them a list of 
suggestions to prioritise and also offered the opportunity to identify 
any additional priorities they felt we had missed.
Overwhelmingly they told us that the number one priority should be 
to prioritise those most in need. They felt creating safe and decent 
homes and providing easy access to parks and green spaces were 
also important.
In addition, 24% felt we should support communities and/or tackle 
deprivation, 30% wanted us to prioritise them being able to safely 
spend time with family and friends or to access leisure and travel  
and 19% felt we should support local businesses.

P
age 22



The Impact of COVID-19 in Oldham
At the time of writing, the COVID-19 crisis is still ongoing.

Many of Team Oldham’s services have been affected due to 
Government restrictions, increases in service demand, or staff being 
redeployed to help combat the impact of the pandemic. However,  
one is clear from the emergency response work - many of the 
challenges we have responded to during the pandemic existed  
before COVID-19, though in many cases these challenges have  
been exacerbated by the virus.

Oldham is home to a diverse range of people. This diversity is a 
strength, to be valued and promoted. However, as the pandemic 
has progressed, research has shown that some people across our 
communities are more at risk should they come into contact with the 
virus. Specifically those residents who are over the age of 70 years, 
clinically vulnerable due to a pre-existing medical condition, are from 
a Black, Asian or minority ethnic background, living in a care home or 
working in a job where they have greater contact with members of the 
public such as a nurse, taxi driver or security guard. In Oldham 17,589 
residents were identified as being clinically extremely vulnerable 
and advised to shield. We continue to work across Team Oldham to 
mitigate and reduce the inequalities that exist in all areas including: 
health and wellbeing, economic prosperity, education, and service 
access and delivery.

According to our COVID-19 Resident Survey, the pandemic has 
also had a major impact on social and community life. The virus 
has brought loneliness, anxiety, financial insecurity, isolation and 
exclusion. Some residents will, for the first time, need to navigate the 
benefits system. Families have been bereaved and some individuals 
are dealing with the long-term medical implications of having had the 
virus. Many have lost their jobs or face future financial hardship, while 
key sectors of our economy have been severely impacted.

 

Going into the pandemic, one in three households had at least one 
major housing problem relating to overcrowding, affordability or poor-
quality housing. The pandemic has highlighted the health implications 
of housing. Poor housing conditions such as overcrowding and high 
density are associated with greater spread of the virus, and people 
have had to spend more time in homes that are overcrowded, damp 
or unsafe. The economic fallout from the pandemic is likely to lead 
to an increase in evictions across the private rented sector, further 
exacerbating the challenges already faced across Oldham.

As Team Oldham continues to help and support our communities 
and businesses, Oldham Council is also working towards a cleaner 
and greener borough. One thing Coronavirus has shown us is there 
are solutions to the climate change emergency. Carbon emissions 
fell dramatically in spring 2020 as people moved to working from 
home, with a huge improvement in air quality. Lockdowns and 
social distancing restrictions have also meant more residents have 
explored our green spaces as they’ve had to stay local to get fresh 
air and exercise. Cleaner air quality, healthier water, effective waste 
management, and enhanced biodiversity protection not only reduce 
the vulnerability of communities to pandemics and improve resilience, 
but have the potential to boost economic activity, generate income, 
create jobs and reduce inequalities.

Businesses have reported significant stress as a result of the 
pandemic and contain measures, including decreased sales,  
cashflow issues and less than six months sustainability. Many 
are increasingly reliant on Government support. Even before 
additional COVID-19 restrictions were in place, in Oldham we saw 
unemployment claimants almost double from 6,545 in March 2020 to 
a total of 14,015 at peak in September 2021. The end of Government 
support schemes including furlough in September 2021 and the 
start of interest payments on business loans is likely to cause further 
economic challenges across Oldham.

P
age 23



For young people, the COVID-19 crisis has caused considerable 
disruption to education and employment, impacted upon mental 
health and reduced disposable income. But the main challenges for 
children’s services are yet to come. As children return to school, and 
as the full, long-term impact of the pandemic becomes apparent, we 
anticipate a sharp increase in demand for everything from universal 
support services through to urgent child protection responses. We 
will also be working closely with schools to support children as they 
return, putting children’s needs at the heart of our recovery.

Over the next six months COVID-19 continues to pose a very serious 
threat, compounded by the additional challenges faced as restrictions 
start to be relaxed. We need to learn from the lessons of this last 
year in how to safely reopen our society and economy and continue 
to suppress the virus. The contain measures we put in place will be 
crucial to doing this.

 

P
age 24



The Oldham Model – our vision for the borough
As we recover from the pandemic, the Oldham Model continues to 
provide our vision for the borough – a vision that Team Oldham shares 
with our wider partners across the borough. 

It outlines the shared goals of:

•	 an inclusive economy, where everyone has a fair chance  
to improve their living standards, wages and skills.

•	 co-operative services, underpinned by collaboration,  
integration and innovation, that improve outcomes for  
residents and create effective and seamless services; and

•	 thriving communities, where people have the power to  
be healthy and happy and can make positive choices  
about their lives.

 

P
age 25



Our Priority Areas
This strategy builds on the work already happening across Team 
Oldham to recover from the impact of the pandemic and will form 
the basis of our work as we start to transition from crisis support to 
recovery.
Our Recovery Strategy shows how Team Oldham will prioritise 
services and initiatives to build a stronger borough, helping our 
communities and economy recover.
The strategy therefore sets out how we will help residents and 
businesses to get though these tough times, either directly, or by 
signposting to where support is available across Team Oldham.
It covers the next 12 months to 18 months and, based on feedback 
from our residents and supported by data and evidence, includes six 
key themes:
•	 Driving Equality
•	 Investing in Quality Housing
•	 Championing a Green Recovery
•	 Creating and protecting jobs and supporting businesses
•	 Prioritising education, skills and early years
•	 Promoting health and wellbeing and protecting the  

most vulnerable

P
age 26



We will continue to promote and 
improve the health and wellbeing of 
our communities, contain the spread of 
COVID-19 locally and target action to 
protect our most vulnerable residents  
and communities

Covid recovery plan 
2021–2022

We will continue to create good jobs 
for our residents, while supporting local 
businesses to restart and recover from 
the effects of the pandemic.

We will work with schools and colleges 
to support children and young people to 
catch up and succeed in learning. We 
will also prioritise training for adults who 
have been made redundant, helping 
them retrain and secure employment.

Team  
Oldham

Driving  
Equality

Prioritising 
education,  
skills and  

Early Years

Championing  
a green  
recovery

Investing  
in quality  
housing

Creating and 
protecting jobs 
and supporting 

businesses

Promoting  
heath and 
wellbeing.
Supporting  
the most  

vulnerable

We want to use this as an opportunity 
to stimulate a green recovery that 
accelerates our ambitions around 
reducing the borough’s carbon footprint 
and protecting our greenspace for 
residents to enjoy.

We will improve housing quality both 
inside and outside of the home, while 
bringing forward significant investment  
in new and affordable homes.

We will continue to identify and mitigate 
the equality impacts caused by the 
pandemic, informing our recovery 
planning through lived experience.

P
age 27



Driving Equality – The Context
	 As we recover from the impact of COVID-19 it is critical that we tackle inequality and discrimination head on. The pandemic 

has exacerbated many pre-existing inequalities, including health and financial inequalities..

	 The Marmot review ‘Fair Society, Healthy lives’ demonstrated how health inequalities are affected by a wide range of social and 
economic factors including where we live, our housing, our income, the environment, our relationship with the local community 
and the lifestyle choices we make.

	 People living in deprived areas and in the lowest income group are much more likely to have a reduced life expectancy and a 
poorer health outcome than more affluent people.

	 Public Health England (PHE) have found older people, males, those living in deprived areas, and those from Black, Asian and 
Minority Ethnicities (BAME) are at increased risk of poor outcomes.

	 Oldham has a significant proportion of wards within the most deprived 10% or 20% in England on almost all of the measures 
within IMD.

	 The Northern Health Science Alliance has found that 12.4 more people per 100,000 population have died with COVID-19 in the 
North from March to July than elsewhere in the country, with 57.7 more people per 100,000 dying of all causes.

	 COVID-19 has also resulted in a further deepening and widening of poverty in the borough. Unemployment rates have doubled 
since March and rates are highest in our most disadvantaged communities. We are especially concerned about the rise in 
youth unemployment; now approaching 16% borough wide in some hotspots, within our poorer wards, as high as 37%.

	 Child poverty has increased over the past five years with 38% of children in Oldham live in poverty, the worst in Great Britain 
(18.4% average).

	 Inequalities are also experienced in how people are treated – in the assumptions that are made; the language that is used; the 
way we communicate; and how services are designed and accessed.

P
age 28



Driving Equality – over the next twelve months we will:

1. 	 Enable those adversely impacted by COVID-19 to access the help they need
•	 Continue to identify, monitor and co-develop solutions to mitigate the impact of COVID-19 on our communities through the work 

of the Equality Advisory Group and our partners. 
•	 Increase the number and quality of the services available online, making them easy to access for everyone. 
•	 Target support to our most vulnerable residents, supporting residents based on need through our place-based approach. 
•	 Support sustainability across the VCSFE sector, working as a system to explore how we do this. 
•	 Target prevention, earlier intervention and support services to those most at risk of homelessness, working towards ending 

rough sleeping in Oldham.
•	 Provide additional support to help children from disadvantaged backgrounds catch-up on their education and development.

2. 	 Reduce inequality and build resilience across Oldham’s communities
•	 Deliver our Equality Strategy, working with partners and communities to make Oldham a fairer place for everyone. 
•	 Increase the uptake of, and reduce inequalities in access to vaccination and screening programmes, including the Oldham 

Health Check and Covid vaccination programme.
•	 Improve mental health and wellbeing services, strengthening support for people at risk of emotional or mental health issues, 

including embedding mental health support for children and young people across children’s services and educational settings. 

3. 	 Reduce poverty and help people get back on their feet –
•	 Continue to tackle the symptoms and causes of poverty across the borough, including funding a Poverty Truth Commission, to 

develop new ways to help people who are struggling.
•	 Refresh and update the Business Growth & Investment and Work & Skills strategies to provide an economic recovery roadmap 

that aligns with COVID-19 Recovery Plan and Poverty Strategy. 
•	 Bring together financial support and debt advice services to make it easier for people to access the support they need.
•	 Improve people’s access to good quality, affordable food by improving provision across the borough.
•	 Fund Citizens Advice, to help people access the support they’re entitled to, and campaign to protect the £20 per week  

rise in Universal Credit.

P
age 29



Invest in Quality Housing – The Context
	 Around one million owner-occupied homes in the North now fail to meet the Decent Homes Standard, in addition to 354,000 

private rented homes.

	 There is a positive correlation between rates of Covid infection and both overcrowding and population density.

	 Public Health England (2020) found that issues of overcrowding and poor housing conditions contributed to an increase in 
cases amongst members of BAME communities.

	 The National Housing Federation (2020) indicated in June that 31% of adults in the UK had experienced mental or physical 
health problems during lockdown linked to limited housing space.

	 230,000 private renters – who were not in arrears prior to the pandemic – having fallen behind on rent (Shelter, 2020). As of May 
2020, 39% of private renters now claim housing benefits (ibid.), with new research revealing that Universal Credit claimants are 
now more likely to be owner-occupiers and from the PRS than from social housing (Edmiston et al., 2020).

	 There is an increase in energy use, due to more people spending more time at home. These costs are causing increased 
anxiety to a wider range of households.

	 Households feel financially insecure and renters feel insecure in their tenancies.

 

P
age 30



Invest in Quality Housing – over the next twelve months we will:
1. 	 Build more affordable homes
•	 Speed up Council homebuilding, starting to deliver new homes in the town centre.
•	 Work with Registered Providers (RPs) across the borough to help deliver a minimum of 25% affordable homes.
•	 Work with RPs to accelerate and encourage Pathways to Ownership and Affordable Rent homes.
•	 Work with Children’s Social Care to improve housing/semi-independent living provision for young people aged 16+ and  

care leavers.  
•	 Make available a range of supported accommodation for people with learning disabilities, reflecting different levels of need.

2.	 Improve the quality and condition of existing homes
•	 Use the learning from our recent ‘Empty Homes pilot’ to put in place an improved scheme to tackle empty homes.
•	 Commission a private sector stock condition survey for Oldham which will highlight areas for improvement.
•	 Expand the award-winning Warm Homes Oldham service to keep people warm, safe and independent in their own homes and 

reduce demand for health and social care services. 
•	 Review and agree selective licensing area scope following consultation.
•	 Focus on improving private sector housing/empty properties and enforce to habitable standards.
•	 Implement a new ‘Private Tenants Charter’, outlining what tenants can expect from us as their landlord and what we expect  

from our tenants.

3.	 Support rough sleepers into permanent accommodation
•	 Ensure the increasing numbers of people needing help because of actual or threatened homelessness receive a good standard 

of service and help into a long term home.
•	 Publish a Temporary Accommodation (TA) Strategy for Oldham – this includes bringing online the Council’s own TA provision as 

well as leased accommodation (moving away from hotels, B&Bs and other nightly paid provision).
•	 Under our Corporate Parenting obligations deliver on our commitment to ensure Children Looked After 16+ and Care Leavers 

under the age of 25 remain in ‘Priority Need’, never  letting them become ‘Intentionally Homeless’.
•	 Deliver A Bed for Every Night to reduce Rough Sleeping and provide the support people need to move into secure homes.

   
 

P
age 31



Championing a Green Recovery – The Context
	 Championing a green recovery is not only to ensure that we meet our climate change commitments, but also to ensure we 

realise the opportunity to make Oldham a green, healthy, fair, inclusive and socially just borough where everybody can thrive.

	 Communities have suffered during this period of economic hibernation caused by local and national lockdowns and we need to 
ensure that we secure a recovery that delivers sustainable growth for all our residents.

	 The only way to deliver sustainable long-term growth is to ensure that that growth is part of a transition to a decarbonised 
economy. Only growth that sustains industries that have a future will deliver the long-term jobs and investment that our 
communities need.

	 Nearly 700,000 direct jobs could be created in England’s low-carbon and renewable energy economy by 2030, rising to more 
than 1.18 million by 2050. We need to think about how we support Oldham residents into those jobs and secure investment in 
the critical infrastructure to make the transition.

	 Across Greater Manchester, empowering and resourcing communities to tackle issues such as poor air quality and congestion 
is also vital to achieving our climate goals.

	 Net zero represents a once-in-a generation opportunity to upgrade England’s poorly performing housing stock. Net zero’s 
potential to improve the lives of people will only be maximised if policy makers view the programme as a wider opportunity to 
undertake holistic improvements to our housing stock.

P
age 32



Championing a Green Recovery – over the next twelve months we will:
1.	 Providing well maintained, accessible outdoor space for people to enjoy
•	 Progress our Local Plan to identify, protect and enhance the borough’s green spaces, especially Sites of Biological Importance. 
•	 Implement a Clean Air Zone as part of the GM Clean Air Plan, tackling air pollution across the borough.
•	 Support the development of Active Environments, reducing inactivity and increasing engagement in physical activity and sport.
•	 Identify land where remembrance and reflection trees could be planted to commemorate the people who have died during the 

pandemic. These will be established in six parks, with one in each district.
•	 Create cleaner environments for people to enjoy, reducing fly-tipping and improving rates of recycling. 

2.	 Build a greener economy that reduces Oldham’s carbon footprint
•	 Champion the Northern Roots project, helping local communities get involved in the green economy through growing  

and enterprise.
•	 Develop plans for a new District Heat Network which will use renewable heat from disused mines underneath the town centre. 
•	 Start to deliver the Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery Scheme in private sector and social housing to improve energy 

efficiency, reduce fuel poverty and create new green jobs.
•	 Develop sustainable / green energy plans for corporate assets, and encourage growth in Oldham’s low-carbon and 

environmental goods and services sector, encouraging local investment in infrastructure that supports the green economy.
•	 Reduce emissions by improving our ICT technology, supporting the ability to work from different places.
•	 Engage young people with planning for the borough’s carbon neutral future, in line with the UN Conference on Climate Change.

3.	 Reduce carbon emissions from transport and increase cycling, walking and public transport use
•	 Improve walking and cycling routes in Oldham and continue to deliver the Bee Network.
•	 Implement a campaign to promote active travel including to schools, residents and workplaces.   
•	 Work with partners to improve the public transport offer in Oldham.
•	 Facilitate and accelerate the shift to electric vehicles by expanding the public Electric Vehicle charging network.

P
age 33



 
Creating and Protecting Jobs and Supporting Businesses – The Context

	 Unemployment in Oldham has doubled (+98%) over the last 12 months, to a current total of 13,655 claimants, to levels 
significantly above those seen at the peak of the last recession in 2009. This is broadly in line with GM (+105%), but lower than 
England rate (125%).

	 Over the same period Oldham’s monthly youth Claimant Count has increased by 117%, similar to GM (113%) but lower than 
England (133%).

	 Increases to unemployment have hit more traditional deprived areas to a greater extent, rather than being spread proportionally 
across the borough. Social housing estates seem to have impacted the most, especially the isolated social housing estates 
such as Holts and Sholver.

	 The Office for Budget Responsibility (OBR) are projecting that unemployment will continue to rise nationally until June 2021, 
and won’t start to show a decrease until around September 2021. As Oldham’s economy is less resilient (as shown during the 
previous recession) the recovery is likely to start and finish later.

	 Since March 2020, Oldham has provided more than £52M in grants to local businesses.

	 Data from the GMCA suggests footfall in town centres across GM has decreased by between 45-71% compared to last year. 
The consequences of hotel, pub and restaurant closures have been widespread and severe. The breadth of impact on the 
industry has made initial attempts to quantify the economic impact on the sector infeasible.

P
age 34



Creating and Protecting Jobs and Supporting Businesses – over the next twelve months we will:
1.	 Support businesses to get back on their feet
•	 Support the safe reopening of local businesses, building consumer confidence and encouraging residents back to the high street.
•	 Continue to promote Oldham as a place to live, to do business and to visit through our Creating a Better Place strategic framework,  

Town Centre Vision and Town Deal Investment Plan.
•	 Work with local businesses to capitalise on opportunities to sell more goods and services locally, and encourage commitment from  

the public and private sector to procure more locally and to support local innovation.
•	 Support businesses to survive and thrive through refocused business events and training in digital skills.
•	 Provide free business start-up support to kick-start new businesses in to life at pace.
•	 Provide targeted support to markets and market traders, helping them to access new markets.

2.	 Help people back into work or retrain for new careers
•	 Ensure responsive employment support for newly-unemployed, under-employed and those facing redundancy including disadvantaged 

groups and communities, especially young people have been disproportionately affected by the pandemic economically.
•	 Target provision at identified groups disproportionately impacted by COVID-19 e.g. young people, BAME, and those already  

disadvantaged in the Labour Market, in particular residents with disabilities.
•	 Ensure everyone has access to opportunities to upskill and reskill, adapting the skills provision so that it  meets the changing  

needs of businesses and the aspirations of individuals, reflecting our Education and Skills offer. 
•	 Prioritise entry level jobs across Team Oldham as a step to enable young people enter public service.
•	 Provide access to the Oldham Pledge to all Oldham’s children and young people, helping them develop skills so they are life  

ready, school ready and work ready.

3.	 Creating the conditions for inclusive growth and a thriving town centre
•	 Encourage businesses to develop and use green processes and actively encourage green industries to establish in the borough.
•	 Create the conditions that will deliver a more inclusive, zero-carbon economy by investing in transport infrastructure, digital  

infrastructure and the environment. 
•	 Develop and begin to implement the new Cultural Strategy and develop plans for a new performance space for the borough.
•	 Increase council spending with local businesses, and those who create local jobs.

P
age 35



Prioritising Education and Skills – The Context
	 Compared to the UK as a whole, the North East and the North West of England both have a higher proportion of employment  

in ‘shutdown sectors’, such as retail and manufacturing.

	 Research by the Institute for Student Employers (ISE) suggested that all types of entry-level roles have been reduced by  
23% in 2020.

	 Employers are also seeking 32% fewer entrants on apprentice or school leaver programmes than originally planned for  
this year (2021).

	 Youth Unemployment in Oldham stands at 14.4% This is the highest rate across Greater Manchester and higher than the 
national rate of 9.0%.

	 The effects of school closures and the lockdown in response to the COVID-19 pandemic has been particularly detrimental for 
the most disadvantaged groups in society, including vulnerable children and young people.

	 To end of term December 2020, around 33,200 pupils have been affected by bubble closures. Over 855 bubbles have closed in 
total. Only 3 schools have not had a bubble closure.

	 Recent figures from an online survey of 4,000 parents in England by the Institute of Fiscal Studies carried out between April and 
May shows that children from better-off households are spending 30% more time each day on educational activities than are 
children from the poorest fifth of households.

	 Without the right support the economic and educational inequality for young people will be wider than ever. Many will struggle 
to find work, those in work will struggle to climb the income ladder and it will be even more difficult for young people to fulfil 
their aspirations regardless of their background.

	 The First 1001 Days is the time between conception and age two. It is the period when brain development is at its peak growth 
period. It is a crucial period for young children’s learning, especially making relationships and language learning.

 

P
age 36



Prioritising Education and Skills – over the next twelve months we will:
1.	 Ensure school and college leavers move on to education, employment and training
•	 Work across Team Oldham to promote opportunities and careers to all young people leaving full-time education, ensuring  

every young person in Oldham will have the support they need to get into high quality education, employment, training,  
or an apprenticeship.

•	 Increase SEND transport provision and other work to support the most vulnerable children to attend school.
•	 Work with partners, children, young people and their families to identify the extent of hidden harm, for example, mental health 

impacts that will have been experienced by some our most vulnerable children and young people during the pandemic. 
•	
2.	 Work with local schools, colleges and early years settings to ensure children and young people achieve their full potential
•	 Ensure all children and young people in Oldham have an equal opportunity to thrive within their families and communities; and 

those at risk of marginalisation, exclusion and underachievement are protected and supported.
•	 Support schools to develop their digital and remote learning strategies so that high quality provision is available everywhere. 
•	 Support schools to maintain resilience and capacity to meet the changing demands through the waves of the pandemic and 

lockdowns, including forward planning on talent management and progression management.
•	 Support all children and young people and their parents to successfully return to education following the Covid pandemic,  

and feel confident and secure in doing so.
•	 Develop the early support and provision across Oldham schools to  promote inclusion and meet SEND need in  

mainstream provision.
•	 Revise the placement sufficiency strategy in Oldham to reduce the number of children educated out of borough.
•	
3.	 Enable the best start in life for our youngest children who have missed out as a result of COVID-19   
•	 Increase take up of the 2 year old early education offer with a specific focus on targeted communities.
•	 Increase support to parents and families to help parents provide positive home learning experiences. 
•	 Accelerate progress in achieving Good Level of Development (GLD) of pre-school children, reducing the gap between  

children in disadvantaged families and others and between boys and girls - gaps exacerbated by the impact of COVID-19.
•	 Launch our early years strategy to enable every child in Oldham to have the best possible start in life.

P
age 37



Promoting Health and Wellbeing and Supporting the Most Vulnerable – The Context
	 Oldham residents overall experience poorer health than other parts of the country. Life expectancy is lower than the national 

average, and the proportion of the population who experience long term conditions such as high blood pressure and lung 
disease is significantly higher than the national average. This poorer underlying health has made Oldham particularly vulnerable 
to high rates of serious illness and deaths from COVID.

	 The impact on the mental health on our residents is significant - with consequences of lockdown such as food insecurity, 
income loss, isolation and anxiety all worsening mental health outcomes.

	 We have seen increases in mental health referrals from A&E and the community, and increases in mental health admissions for 
34 hours and 3-5 days which are indicators of crisis.

	 The physical health of our residents has also been impacted both by high COVID-19 mortality and morbidity and by the 
disruption to the wider health and social care system caused by the pandemic. The NHS has worked at times to capacity 
to manage increasing COVID-19 hospital and ICU admissions. This has had knock on impacts on the health and social care 
system including the disruption to non-Covid acute care across Oldham and a backlog of care across acute and primary care.

	 Significant drops in A&E use, admissions for urgent conditions, and attendance rates for primary care also indicate that many 
residents have not been seeking the help they need. This is particularly the case for our most vulnerable residents and risks 
increasing the health inequalities that already exist within Oldham and causing more non-Covid deaths.

	 Additionally there are also longer-term impacts on NHS and social care capacity and resilience, including the impact on a 
workforce that has tirelessly worked through many months of a pandemic.

	 In November 2020 there was a 92% increase in IDVA referrals for high risk domestic violence. The average increase since 
March is 35%.

	 Increase in injuries to under 2’s - majority of cases were accidental injuries where wider impact of COVID-19 was a potential 
contributing factor, primarily linked to increased family pressure due to lockdown which lead to reduced supervision.

 

P
age 38



Promoting Health and Wellbeing and Supporting the Most Vulnerable –  
over the next twelve months we will:
1.	 Continue to contain the spread of COVID-19 in Oldham –
•	 Scale up testing in Oldham using new and existing technologies and increasing capacity.
•	 Deliver the vaccination program across Oldham, in line with JCVI Priorities, starting with the most vulnerable segments of our population.
•	 Proactively manage clusters of cases and outbreaks to prevent onwards transmission.

2.	 Work with residents and communities to improve health and wellbeing, preventing illness and premature death –  
•	 Implement the GM Living Well at Home Strategy, supporting people to live at home as independently as possible.
•	 Provide mental health support that targets the whole population (including children and young people), populations at higher risk and 

people who need additional support, including Oldham’s 23,000 unpaid carers. 
•	 Work across the Oldham Cares system to agree a co-operative approach and response to the NHS People Plan, ensuring we have the 

staff and skills to support our services.
•	 Support recovery of leisure facilities, helping ensure residents are physically active and are able to make positive life choices. 
•	 Increase capacity in substance misuse treatment , helping vulnerable people improve their health, rebuild relationships, find work and 

drive down crime and violence.
•	 Increase healthier behaviours, including healthy eating and physical activity, helping residents improve the quality of their lives.

3.	 Safeguard and supporting our most vulnerable residents –
•	 Continue identifying children at risk of harm and working to protect them through high quality assessment, planning and interventions.
•	 Ensure all young people know where and how to find support now and that there are smooth pathways between services.
•	 Develop the complex safeguarding offer across services to address need earlier.
•	 Ensure we have the right capacity and effective partnership working to improve the effectiveness of the response to domestic abuse, 

including through the provision of safe accommodation. 
•	 Launch a new residential provision offer to reduce out of borough placements.
•	 Enabling our most vulnerable residents to be supported to retain their independence as close to home as possible by  

managing risk, and working with stakeholders to ensure a strength based approach where people have choice and control.
•	 Develop our whole system response to early intervention and prevention , which will include the role of communities  

and the VCSFE in promoting well-being. 

P
age 39



Oldham Council  
Covid Recovery Strategy  
June 2021

AM
G

11
/6

/2
1

P
age 40



21 June 2021

Report to Cabinet

Council Performance Report March 2021

T h e  p u r p o s e  o f  t h i s  r e p o r t  i s  t o  a l l o w :

! T h e  r e v i e w  o f  C o u n c i l  P e r f o r m a n c e  f o r  M a r c h  2 0 2 1

! T h e  s c r u t i n y  o f  a r e a s  o f  u n d e r p e r f o r m a n c e  a s  a p p r o p r i a t e

! T o  n o t e  a r e a s  o f  g o o d  p e r f o r m a n c e

! A g r e e  i m p r o v e m e n t  p l a n s  f o r  a n y  a r e a s  o f  u n d e r  p e r f o r m a n c e .

Page 41

Agenda Item 7



O l d h a m  P r o f i l e  i n  N u m b e r s

P O P U L A T I O N I N C O M E  &  B E N E F I T S

H O U S E H O L D  I N F OH O U S I N G

E D U C A T I O N H E A L T H

C R I M E C O M M U N I T Y

C o r p o r a t e  P e r f o r m a n c e  R e p o r t

M e d i a n  H o u s e h o l d
I n c o m e ! 2 1 , 7 5 2

T o t a l  P o p u l a t i o n
( M i d  2 0 1 9 ) 2 3 7 , 1 1 0
M a l e 4 9 . 3 % 5 0 . 7 %F e m a l e

A g e d  6 5 +A g e d  1 6 - 6 4A g e d  0 - 1 5

2 2 . 5 % 6 1 . 3 % 1 6 . 2 %
O t h e rB a n g l a d e s h iP a k i s t a n iW h i t e

7 1 . 3 % 1 1 . 8 % 8 . 6 % 8 . 3 %
O N S  M i d - Y e a r  E s t i m a t e  2 0 1 8 /  O l d h a m  P o p u l a t i o n  E s t i m a t e s  2 0 2 0 C A C I  2 0 1 9 / D W P  2 0 1 9 / N o m i s  2 0 2 0

E S A  B e n e f i t s

U n e m p l o y m e n t

O u t  o f  W o r k  B e n e f i t s

E m p l o y m e n t  R a t e7 1 . 1 %
1 2 . 2 %
1 0 . 0 %

5 . 7 %

N u m b e r  o f
H o u s e h o l d s 9 7 , 2 1 9

S i n g l e  P e r s o n  H o u s e h o l d s3 0 . 3 %
1 3 . 1 % L o n e  P a r e n t  H o u s e h o l d s

O v e r c r o w d e d  H o u s e h o l d s7 . 5 %
6 0 . 7 % w i t h  N o  C h i l d r e n

O M B C  C o u n c i l  T a x  2 0 2 0 / C e n s u s  2 0 1 1

C l a i m i n g  C o u n c i l  T a x
B e n e f i t s / H o u s i n g  B e n e f i t s

P r i v a t e  R e n t e d

S o c i a l  R e n t e d

i n  F u e l  P o v e r t y

O w n e r  O c c u p i e d6 4 . 9 %
1 2 . 9 %
2 0 . 9 %
1 3 . 6 %
2 0 . 2 %

D f E  2 0 1 9 / P o s i t i v e  S t e p s  2 0 1 8 / C e n s u s  2 0 1 1 P u b l i c  H e a l t h  E n g l a n d / C e n s u s  2 0 1 1

Y e a r  6 :1 0 . 6 % 2 3 . 0 %
O b e s e  C h i l d r e n

R e c e p t i o n :

C u r r e n t l y  S m o k e

F e m a l e  L i f e  E x p e c t a n c y

M a l e  L i f e  E x p e c t a n c y7 7 . 4  y r s
8 1 . 2  y r s

1 8 . 0 %

L o n g  T e r m  H e a l t h
P r o b l e m s / D i s a b i l i t i e s1 6 . 3 %

1 2 4
V i c t i m  B a s e d  C r i m e s
( p e r  1 , 0 0 0  o f  t h e
P o p u l a t i o n )

S a t i s f i e d  w i t h
L o c a l  A r e a 7 1 %

V o l u n t e e r e d  i n  L a s t  1 2  M o n t h s3 8 %
3 1 % L o c a l  E l e c t i o n  T u r n o u t

R o b b e r y  o f  P e r s o n a l  P r o p e r t2 . 5
7 . 5 R e s i d e n t i a l  B u r g l a r y  R a t e

V e h i c l e  O f f e n c e s  R a t e1 2 . 1
3 9 . 2 V i o l e n c e  A g a i n s t  t h e  P e r s o n  R a t e 2 6 % F e e l  I n v o l v e d  i n  C o m m u n i t y

Y Y C  2 0 1 3  /  U K  E l e c t o r a l  C o m m i s i o n  2 0 1 8O N S  2 0 1 9

L H N A  2 0 1 9 / D E C C  2 0 1 9 / C o u n c i l  T a x  2 0 1 9

9 7 %    w i t h  a t
l e a s t  1  q u a l i f i c a t i o n  a t  K S 4

6 8 . 1 % S c h o o l - R e a d y  C h i l d r e n

5 6 . 9 % w i t h  s t a n d a r d  p a s s  i n
G C S E  E n g l i s h  a n d  M a t h s

9 6 . 4 %               A d u l t s
w i t h  N o

Q u a l i f i c a t i o n s

1 3 . 6 5 2 . 6 %
5  G C S E s  A * - C

( i n c l u d i n g  E n g  &
M a t h s )

y o u n g  p e o p l e
a g e d  1 6  t o  1 8

a r e  i n  E E T

2  o f  4 9Page 42



0 1 0 0
0 1 1 0 0
0 0 1 2 0
1 0 5 0
0 0 0 0

0 1 0 0
0 1 9 0
0 0 1 4 0
1 0 5 0
0 0 0 0

0 1 0 0
0 0 1 0 0
0 0 1 5 0
1 3 4 0
0 0 0 0

C o m m i s s i i o n i n g
R e f o r m

A d u l t s

C h i l d r e n

P e o p l e  a n d  P l a c e

A s  a n t i c i p a t e d ,  p e r f o r m a n c e  i n  2 0 2 1
h a s  c o n t i n u e d  t o  b e  a f f e c t e d  b y
C o v i d - 1 9 .  O n g o i n g  r e s t r i c t i o n s  h a v e
i m p a c t e d  o n  t h e  a c h i e v e m e n t  o f  a
n u m b e r  o f  p e r f o r m a n c e  m e a s u r e s .
W h i l s t  t h i s  w a s  e x p e c t e d ,  a  d e c i s i o n
w a s  m a d e  t o  c o n t i n u e  t o  r e p o r t
a g a i n s t  m e a s u r e s  t o  d e m o n s t r a t e
b o t h  t h e  i m p a c t  a n d  c h a l l e n g e s  t h e
p a n d e m i c  h a s  h a d  l o c a l l y .  A  C o v i d
R e c o v e r y  S t r a t e g y  h a s  b e e n
d e v e l o p e d ,  o u t l i n i n g  t h e  p r i o r i t i e s  t o
s u p p o r t  o u r  r e c o v e r y  f r o m  t h e
p a n d e m i c  a n d  w i l l  i n c l u d e  r e v i s e d
p e r f o r m a n c e  m e a s u r e s  w h i c h
c o n s i d e r  o u r  c u r r e n t  p o s i t i o n .

D e t a i l s  i n  A p p e n d i x  I V

D e t a i l s  i n  A p p e n d i x  I I I

D e t a i l s  i n  A p p e n d i c e s  I  a n d  I I

Q u a r t e r  1

A  V e r y  H i g h
B  H i g h
C  S i g n i f i c a n t
D  L o w
E  V e r y  L o w

I  C a t a s t r o p h i c
I I  C r i t i c a l
I I I  M a r g i n a l
I V  N e g l i g i b l e

A

B

C

D
E

I V      I I I       I I        I

L i k e l i h o o d

I m p a c t

C o r p o r a t e  O b j e c t i v e  3C o r p o r a t e  O b j e c t i v e  2C o r p o r a t e  O b j e c t i v e  1

A c h i e v e d
t a r g e t

W i t h i n
t o l e r a n c e

O u t s i d e
t o l e r a n c e

N o t
u p d a t e d

A n  i n c l u s i v e  e c o n o m y  w h e r e
p e o p l e  a n d  e n t e r p r i s e  t h r i v e

T h r i v i n g  c o m m u n i t i e s  w h e r e
e v e r y o n e  i s  e m p o w e r e d  t o
d o  t h e i r  b i t

C o o p e r a t i v e  s e r v i c e s  w i t h
p e o p l e  a n d  s o c i a l  v a l u e  a t
t h e i r  h e a r t

P e o p l eC o m m i s s i o n i n g C h i l d r e nA d u l t sC o m m u n i t i e s
&  R e f o r m

C o m p l e t e
O n  t r a c k
B e h i n d  s c h e d u l e
U n l i k e l y  t o  a c h i e v e
N o t  u p d a t e d

2 3

2 0

3

9

1 2

C o m m e n t s

A s  a n t i c i p a t e d ,  p e r f o r m a n c e  i n  2 0 2 1  h a

a n d  P l a c e

C o m m i s s i i o n i n g
R e f o r m

A d u l t s

C h i l d r e n

P e o p l e  a n d  P l a c e

0 0 0 0
0 1 1 0 0
0 0 1 2 0
0 0 3 0
0 0 0 0

I V      I I I       I I        I

A

B

C

D
E

Q u a r t e r  2 Q u a r t e r  3

I V      I I I       I I        I I V      I I I       I I        I

Q u a r t e r  4

3

1

4

1 4 3

2

27

26
N o t  u p d a t e d  a l s o  i n c l u d e s  m e a s u r e s  w h i c h  a r e  m o n i t o r i n g  o n l y .

3  o f  4 9

Page 43



C o r p o r a t e  P e r f o r m a n c e  R e p o r t

 C o m p l e t e

 O n  t r a c k

4 8

4 5

5 8

5 2 5 2

4 6

4 3

6 3
6 6

6 7

5 6

7 4

8 2

7 6

7 0

8 1

7 5

6 3

O
c t - 1 9

N o v - 1 9
D e c - 1 9
J a n - 2 0
F e b - 2 0
M

a r - 2 0
A p r - 2 0

M
a y - 2 0

J u n - 2 0
J u l - 2 0

A u g - 2 0
S e p - 2 0
O

c t - 2 0
N o v - 2 0
D e c - 2 0
J a n - 2 1
F e b - 2 1
M

a r - 2 1

4 0

4 5

5 0

5 5

6 0

6 5

7 0

7 5

8 0

8 5

N o  U p d a t e

>  5 %  o f f  T a r g e t

O f f  T a r g e t

A c h i e v e d  T a r g e t

7 9

9 6

9 1

6 5
6 8

7 9 7 9 7 9

J u n - 1 9

S e p - 1 9

D e c - 1 9

M
a r - 2 0

J u n - 2 0

S e p - 2 0

D e c - 2 0

M
a r - 2 1

6 0

6 5

7 0

7 5

8 0

8 5

9 0

9 5

1 0 0

6 0

1 0 0

T a r g e t

T a r g e t

 N o  U p d a t e

 U n l i k e l y  t o  a c h i e v e

 B e h i n d  s c h e d u l e

0
0

2 7
2 7

3
1 0

2
2 0

R A G - r a t e d  P e r f o r m a n c e  M e a s u r e  T r e n d  ( M a r c h  2 0 2 1 )

A c t i o n  T r e n d  ( M a r c h  2 0 2 1 )

C o u n t

1 4

P e r f o r m a n c e  M e a s u r e s  t h a t  a c h i e v e d  t h e i r  t a r g e t  a s  a  p e r c e n t a g e  o f  a l l  r e p o r t e d  P e r f o r m a n c e  M e a s u r e s .
T h e  a i m  i s  f o r  6 0 %  o r  m o r e  o f  t h e  P e r f o r m a n c e  M e a s u r e s  t o  h a v e  m e t  t h e i r  t a r g e t .

C o r p o r a t e  A c t i o n s  t h a t  a r e  o n  t r a c k  o r  c o m p l e t e d  a s  a  p e r c e n t a g e  o f  a l l  r e p o r t e d  C o r p o r a t e  A c t i o n s .
T h e  a i m  i s  f o r  9 0 %  o r  m o r e  o f  t h e  C o r p o r a t e  A c t i o n s  t o  b e  o n  t r a c k  o r  c o m p l e t e .

C o u n t

T h i s  Q u a r t e r
( M a r  2 1 )

0
0

1 4
3 3
2 1

P r e v .  Q u a r t e r
( D e c  2 0 )

T h i s  Q u a r t e r
( M a r  2 1 )

P r e v .  Q u a r t e r
( D e c  2 0 )

1
5
4

2 3

4  o f  4 9Page 44



R
e s i g n a t i o nR

e d u n d a n c y

E n d  o f  C
o n t r a c tR

e t i r e m
e n t

N
o  r e a s o n  p r o v i d e d

s a m e  p e r i o d
p r e v i o u s  y e a r

s a m e  p e r i o d
p r e v i o u s  y e a r

M a r c h  2 0 2 1H R

A v e r a g e  d a y s  F T E  p e r  e m p l o y e e  i s  c a l c u l a t e d  b y  t o t a l  s i c k  d a y s  i n
t h e  s e r v i c e  s i n c e  t h e  s t a r t  o f  t h e  y e a r  d i v i d e d  b y  t o t a l  n u m b e r  o f

F T E .  S m a l l e r  s e r v i c e " s  f i g u r e s  m a y  b e  m o r e  d i s p r o p o r t i o n a t e l y
a f f e c t e d  b y  i n d i v i d u a l  i n s t a n c e s  o f  l o n g  t e r m s  a b s e n c e

               E n v i r o n m e n t a l  M a n a g e m e n t3

               E c o n o m y2

               A d u l t  S o c i a l  C a r e1

S IC K N E S S  T O P  3  D IV IS IO N S  ( y e a r  t o  d a t e )

L O N G  T E R M  S IC K N E S S  ( y e a r  t o  d a t e )

t o p  3  r e a s o n s

S IC K N E S S  ( y e a r  t o  d a t e )

T U R N O V E R  ( y e a r  t o  d a t e )

T U R N O V E R  ( r o l l i n g  1 2  m o n t h s )

T O P  5  R E A S O N S  F O R  L E A V IN G  ( y e a r  t o  d a t e )

M e a s u r e L o n g N a m e A C T U A L  ( L a s t Y r ) A C T U A L  ( C u r r e n t ) F i l t e r  ( C u r r e n t ) C O M M E N T S  ( L a s t Y r ) C O M M E N T S  ( C u r r e n t ) C M E D A C T U A L  ( M o n t h L a s t Y r )

M 1 8 2  L e a v e r s  i n  t h e  l a s t  y e a r  a 1 2 . 6 8 1 1 . 9 6 0       3 1  M a r c h  2 0 2 1 2 . 6 8
M 1 8 2 a  L e a v e r  R e a s o n  ( 1 s t ) 1 5 8 1 5 2 0 R e s i g n a t i o n R e s i g n a t i o n       3 1  M a r c h  2 0 2 1 5 8
M 1 8 2 b  L e a v e r  R e a s o n  ( 2 n d ) 4 8 6 9 0 E n d  o f  c o n t r a c t R e d u n d a n c y       3 1  M a r c h  2 0 2 4 8
M 1 8 2 c  L e a v e r  R e a s o n  ( 3 r d ) 3 5 5 3 0 R e t i r e m e n t E n d  o f  C o n t r a c t       3 1  M a r c h  2 0 2 3 5
M 1 8 2 d  L e a v e r  R e a s o n  ( 4 t h ) 3 0 2 6 0 T U P E  T r a n s f e r R e t i r e m e n t       3 1  M a r c h  2 0 2 3 0
M 1 8 2 e  L e a v e r  R e a s o n  ( 5 t h ) 1 8 2 1 0 D i s m i s s a l N o  r e a s o n  p r o v i d e d       3 1  M a r c h  2 0 2 1 8
M 1 8 3  %  o f  p e o p l e  s t i l l  i n  p o s t  a 8 6 . 9 6 1 0 0 0 T h i s  f i g u r e  s h o w s  t h e  %  o f T h i s  i s  t h e  p e r c e n t a g e  o f  s t a f f  t h a t  s t a r t e d  i       3 1  M a r c h  2 0 2 8 6 . 9 6
M 1 8 4  A v e r a g e  D a y s  l o s t  t o  S i c 1 1 . 3 3 7 . 7 5 0 T h e  t o p  3  c a u s e s  o f  a b s e n T h e  t o p  3  r e a s o n s  f o r  s i c k n e s s  a b s e n c e  a r       3 1  M a r c h  2 0 2 1 1 . 3 3
M 1 8 5  L o n g  T e r m  S i c k n e s s  ( P e r 7 3 . 8 8 3 . 9 3 0 L o n g  T e r m  A b s e n c e  i s  a n y L o n g  t e r m  a b s e n c e  i s  a n y  a b s e n c e  l o n g e r  t       3 1  M a r c h  2 0 2 7 3 . 8
M 1 8 6 a  S i c k n e s s  D i v i s i o n  ( 1 s t ) 1 5 . 7 1 2 . 0 9 0 A d u l t  S o c i a l  C a r e A d u l t  S o c i a l  C a r e       3 1  M a r c h  2 0 2 1 5 . 7
M 1 8 6 b  S i c k n e s s  D i v i s i o n  ( 2 n d ) 1 4 . 4 1 0 . 9 0 E c o n o m y E c o n o m y       3 1  M a r c h  2 0 2 1 4 . 4

s a m e  p e r i o d
p r e v i o u s  y e a r

c u r r e n t  t r e n d

s a m e  p e r i o d
p r e v i o u s  y e a r

c u r r e n t  t r e n d

s a m e  p e r i o d
p r e v i o u s  y e a r

c u r r e n t  t r e n d

s a m e  p e r i o d
p r e v i o u s  y e a r

c u r r e n t  t r e n d

c u r r e n t  t r e n d

c u r r e n t  t r e n d

y e a r  e n d  2 0 1 9 / 2 0

R e s i g n a t i o n
E n d  o f  c o n t r a c t
R e t i r e m e n t
T U P E  T r a n s f e r
O t h e r

1 5 8
4 8
3 5
3 0
1 8

7 . 7 5
a v e r a g e  d a y s  l o s t

t o  s i c k n e s s

8 3 . 9 %

T h e  t o p  3  r e a s o n s  f o r  s i c k n e s s  a b s e n c e  a r e
M e n t a l  H e a l t h  ( 3 . 1 3  d a y s  p e r  F T E ) ,
M u s c u l o - s k e l e t a l  ( 2 . 1 6  d a y s  p e r  F T E )  a n d  H e a r t
a n d  B l o o d  r e l a t e d  ( 0 . 5  d a y s  p e r  F T E ) .

L o n g  t e r m  a b s e n c e  i s  a n y  a b s e n c e  l o n g e r  t h a n  2 0
d a y s  i n  d u r a t i o n

o f  d a y s  l o s t  a r e  d u e  t o
l o n g - t e r m  s i c k n e s s

1 2 . 0 9  d a y s  p e r  F T E

1 0 . 9 0  d a y s  p e r  F T E

9 . 0 0  d a y s  p e r  F T E

R e d u n d a n c y

E n d  o f  C o n t r a c t

R e t i r e m e n t

R e s i g n a t i o n1 5 2

6 9

5 3

2 6

S t a f f  t u r n o v e r

1 2 . 0 %

1 0 0 . 0 %
o f  p e o p l e
s t i l l  i n  p o s t
a f t e r  1 2  m o n t h s

2 1 N o  r e a s o n  p r o v i d e d

1 1 . 3 3

7 3 . 8 %

1 2 . 7 %

8 7 . 0 %

P
age 45



O l d h a m  C o u n c i l  L e a v e r s  :  2 0 2 0 - 2 1H R

*  3 6 0  m e m b e r s  o f  s t a f f  l e f t  t h e  C o u n c i l  i n  t h e  p e r i o d  f r o m  A p r i l  2 0 2 0  #  M a r c h  2 0 2 1 .  T h i s  r e p r e s e n t s  a  t u r n o v e r  a  r a t e  o f  1 1 . 9 6 %  w h i c h  i s  l o w e r
t h a n  t h e  U K  a v e r a g e  o f  1 5 %  ( t h e  h i g h e r  t h e  t u r n o v e r  t h e  m o r e  l e a v e r s  a n  o r g a n i s a t i o n  h a s ) .

*  T h e  a v e r a g e  l e n g t h  o f  s e r v i c e  o f  l e a v e r s  w a s  9 . 8  y e a r s  w h i c h  i s  s i g n i f i c a n t l y  h i g h e r  t h a n  t h e  U K  a l l  i n d u s t r y  a v e r a g e  o f  4 . 5  y e a r s .

*  A  s i g n i f i c a n t  p r o p o r t i o n  o f  l e a v e r s  i n  t h e  y e a r  2 0 2 0 / 2 1  l e f t  e i t h e r  t h r o u g h  V o l u n t a r y  R e d u n d a n c y  ( V R )  o r  R e t i r e m e n t  ( 2 6 %  o f  a l l  l e a v e r s ) .  T h e
h i g h  n u m b e r  o f  V R s  f o l l o w s  a  s u c c e s s f u l  p r o g r a m m e  w h i c h  e n s u r e d  t h a t  t h e  n u m b e r  o f  C o m p u l s o r y  R e d u n d a n c i e s  m a d e  t h r o u g h  t h e  b u d g e t
r e d u c t i o n  p r o g r a m m e  r e m a i n e d  l o w .  

2 0 2 0 - 2 1  :  R e a s o n  f o r  L e a v i n g

E n d  o f  C o n t r a c t

C o m p u l s o r y  R e d u n d a n c y

R e t i r e m e n t

N o t  k n o w n

T U P E

D i s m i s s a l

D e a t h  i n  S e r v i c e

V o l u n t a r y  R e d u n d a n c y

R e s i g n a t i o n

6  o f  4 9

P
age 46



R e s i g n a t i o n sH R
*  4 3 %  ( 1 5 2 )  o f  l e a v e r s  f r o m  t h e  C o u n c i l  r e s i g n e d  f r o m  t h e i r  p o s i t i o n .

*  W h i l s t  r e s i g n a t i o n s  a r e  s o m e t i m e s  u n a v o i d a b l e  a n d  p a r t  o f  a n y  h e a l t h y  o r g a n i s a t i o n  t h e r e  a r e  a  n u m b e r  o f  w o r k s t r e a m s  o f  t h e  w o r k f o r c e
s t r a t e g y  t h a t  w i l l  t a r g e t  t h e  r e d u c t i o n  o f  u n w a n t e d  r e s i g n a t i o n s .  T h e  w o r k s t r e a m s  i n c l u d e :

-  T h e  d e v e l o p m e n t  o f  a  C a r e e r  P a t h w a y s  a n d  T a l e n t  M a n a g e m e n t  a p p r o a c h  t o  e n s u r e  a l l  r o l e s  h a v e  c l e a r  c a r e e r  p r o g r e s s i o n  r o u t e s

-  N e w  s k i l l s  a n d  l e a d e r s h i p  d e v e l o p m e n t  p r o g r a m m e s  t o  e n s u r e  a l l  s t a f f  a r e  s u p p o r t e d  t o  p r o g r e s s  t h e i r  c a r e e r  w i t h  t h e  C o u n c i l

-  T h e  r e v i s i o n  o f  t h e  # T e a m O l d h a m  r e w a r d  a n d  b e n e f i t s  p a c k a g e  t o  e n s u r e  w e  r e m a i n  a n  a t t r a c t i v e  e m p l o y e r  t o  w o r k  f o r

-  I m p r o v i n g  o u r  e x i t  i n t e r v i e w  p r o c e s s  t o  b e t t e r  c a p t u r e  d a t a  o n  t h e  r e a s o n s  w h y  e m p l o y e e s  l e a v e

7  o f  4 9

P
age 47



M i l l i o n s

M
18

9a

M
18

9b

M
18

9c

M
18

9d

M
18

9e

M
18

9f

M
18

9g

0

1 0

2 0

3 0

4 0

5 0

6 0

7 0

E t l k e y E f f e c t i v e d a t e A c t u a l C o m m e n t s

M 1 8 9     2 8  F e b r u a r y  2 0 2 9
M 1 8 9     2 8  F e b r u a r y  2 0 2 9

$ M

B u d g e t

B a l a n c e d  B u d g e t

F o r e c a s t e d
O v e r s p e n d

F o r e c a s t e d
U n d e r s p e n d! 9 . 0 0 0 M

! 1 1 . 0 0 0 M

! 1 0 . 0 0 0 M

G r a p h  L e g e n d

M o n t h  9  2 0 2 0 / 2 1
B u d g e t  F o r e c a s t

! 7 . 7 1 3 M
! 1 0 . 5 9 8 M

! 9 . 7 6 4 M

! 6 6 . 9 4 1 M

! 6 2 . 0 1 3 M

! 6 5 . 6 0 1 M

! 6 4 . 0 1 3 M

! 5 0 . 7 7 8 M

! 3 5 . 3 7 5 M

! 3 7 . 4 0 5 M

! 6 7 . 1 0 6 M

! 4 9 . 0 8 2 M

C o m m u n i t i e s
&  R e f o r m

C h i l d r e n s
S e r v i c e s

C S  &  A S C
( C o m m u n i t y

S e r v i c e s  &
A d u l t  S o c i a l  C a r e )

P e o p l e
&  P l a c e

C h i e f
E x e c u t i v e

! 1 0 . 0 0 0 M

P o r t f o l i o B u d g e t
$ M

F o r e c a s t
$ M

V a r i a n c e
$ M

C h i e f  E x e c 7 . 7 1 3 7 . 4 2 7 ( 0 . 2 8 6 )
C o m m i s s i o n i n g 9 . 7 6 4 1 0 . 5 9 8 0 . 8 3 4
P e o p l e  &  P l a c e 6 2 . 0 1 3 6 6 . 9 4 1 4 . 9 2 8
C S  &  A S C 6 4 . 0 1 3 6 5 . 6 0 1 1 . 5 8 8
C h i l d r e n s  S v c s 5 0 . 7 7 8 5 9 . 1 8 5 8 . 4 0 7
R e f o r m 3 5 . 3 7 5 3 7 . 4 0 5 2 . 0 3 0
C , T  &  C A 6 7 . 1 0 6 4 9 . 0 8 2 ( 1 8 . 0 2 4 )

2 9 6 . 7 6 2 2 9 6 . 2 3 9

( C a p i t a l ,
T r e a s u r y  a n d

C o r p o r a t e
A c c o u n t i n g )

C o m m i s s i o n i n g

A p p r o v e d  2 0 2 0 / 2 1
B u d g e t  R e d u c t i o n s

N o t  a c h i e v e d

$ 1 . 0 0 0 M

T o t a l  S a v i n g s
P r o p o s e d  
$ 3 . 0 1 1 M

D e l i v e r e d

$ 1 . 6 0 0 M

- 0 . 5 2 2
N E T  E X P E N D IT U R E

! 7 . 4 2 7 M

C , T  &  C A

! 5 9 . 1 8 5 M

8  o f  4 9

P
age 48



!  I  C o r p o r a t e  M e a s u r e  d e t a i l

!  I I  C o r p o r a t e  P l a n  A c t i o n s  d e t a i l

!  I I I  R e d  C o r p o r a t e  M e a s u r e  F o l l o w - u p  A c t i o n ( s )

!  I V  R i s k s  a s s o c i a t e d  w i t h  A c t i o n s

!  V  A m e n d m e n t s

!  V I   S u s p e n d e d  C o r p o r a t e  M e a s u r e s

9  o f  4 9Page 49



M e a s u r e  N a m e P o r t f o l i o N o t e s G M C A
A v e r a g e

2 0 1 9 / 2 0
Y e a r  E n d

O u t t u r n

P r e v i o u s
P e r i o d

C u r r e n t
M o n t h
T a r g e t

C u r r e n t
M o n t h
A c t u a l C u r r e n t  M o n t h  A c t u a l  a n d  S t a t u s

S T A R T  W E L L  :  C h i l d r e n  a n d  Y o u n g  p e o p l e  g e t  t h e  b e s t  s t a r t  i n  l i f e  a n d  m a k e  t h e  m o s t  o f  t h e i r  e d u c a t i o n

M 7 2 9 ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  o f
c h i l d r e n  r e c e i v i n g  t h e i r  1 - 3
p r e f e r e n c e  o f  s c h o o l  p l a c e
f o r  t h e  S e p t e m b e r  i n t a k e  i n
R e c e p t i o n  a n d  Y e a r  7

C l l r  S
M u s h t a q

A n n u a l 9 2 . 2 % ( P r e v  Y r )

A C T U A L
9 2 . 2 %

T A R G E T
9 2 . 0 %

9 2 . 0 % 9 3 . 0 %

M 7 1 6 ( C P )  T i m e l i n e s s  o f
q u a l i t y  E H C  p l a n s :
P e r c e n t a g e  c o m p l e t e d
w i t h i n  2 0  w e e k s  o v e r  1 2
m o n t h s

C l l r  S
M u s h t a q

M o n t h l y 6 5 . 4 % 7 7 . 8 % ( P r e v  M t h )

A C T U A L
9 4 . 1 %

T A R G E T
7 0 . 0 %

7 0 . 0 % 9 3 . 6 %

M 7 0 0 ( C P )  A t t e n d a n c e
r a t e s  i n  O l d h a m  P r i m a r y
a n d  S e c o n d a r y  S c h o o l s

C l l r  S
M u s h t a q

A n n u a l 9 5 . 4 % ( P r e v  Y r )

A C T U A L
9 5 . 4 %

T A R G E T
9 5 . 2 %

9 4 . 3 %

M 6 8 3 a ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  o f
I C P C s  t h a t  t a k e  p l a c e
w i t h i n  1 5  w o r k i n g  d a y s  o f  a
s t r a t e g y  d i s c u s s i o n ,  o r  t h e
s t r a t e g y  d i s c u s s i o n  a t
w h i c h  s e c t i o n  4 7  e n q u i r i e s
w e r e  i n i t i a t e d  i f  m o r e  t h a n
o n e  h a s  b e e n  h e l d  ( i n
m o n t h )

C l l r  E  M o o r e s M o n t h l y N / A
N e w

M e a s u r e

( P r e v  M t h )

A C T U A L
9 6 . 7 %

T A R G E T
8 0 . 0 %

8 0 . 0 % 9 7 . 8 %

M 6 4 9 ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  t a k e
u p  o f  2  y e a r - o l d  c h i l d r e n
b e n e f i t t i n g  f r o m  f u n d e d
e a r l y  e d u c a t i o n  p l a c e s

C l l r  E  M o o r e s B i - A n n u a l 7 3 . 0 % 8 5 . 0 % 6 8 . 0 %

C u r r e n t  M o n t h  A c t u a l  a n d  S t a t u s

L E G E N Dt o l e r a n c e

( + / -  5 %  o f  t a r g e t )

o n  o r  b e t t e r  t h a n  t a r g e t
w i t h i n  t o l e r a n c e
w o r s e  t h a n  t o l e r a n c e

1 0  o f  4 9

P
age 50



M e a s u r e  N a m e P o r t f o l i o N o t e s G M C A
A v e r a g e

2 0 1 9 / 2 0
Y e a r  E n d

O u t t u r n

P r e v i o u s
P e r i o d

C u r r e n t
M o n t h
T a r g e t

C u r r e n t
M o n t h
A c t u a l C u r r e n t  M o n t h  A c t u a l  a n d  S t a t u s

M 6 4 0 ( C P )  P e r c e n t  o f  1 6  t o
1 7  y e a r  o l d s  w h o  a r e  n o t  i n
e d u c a t i o n ,  e m p l o y m e n t  o r
t r a i n i n g  ( N E E T )

C l l r  S
M u s h t a q

M o n t h l y 3 . 4 % 3 . 4 % ( P r e v  M t h )

A C T U A L
3 . 4 %

3 . 5 %

M 6 1 9 a ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  o f
C a r e  L e a v e r s  a g e d  1 6 - 1 8
( p o s t  y e a r  1 1 )  i n  E d u c a t i o n ,
E m p l o y m e n t  o r  T r a i n i n g

C l l r  E  M o o r e s M o n t h l y N / A
N e w

M e a s u r e

( P r e v  M t h )

A C T U A L
7 6 . 0 %

T A R G E T
6 0 . 0 %

6 0 . 0 % 7 8 . 0 %

M 6 1 9 b ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  o f
C a r e  L e a v e r s  a g e d  1 9 - 2 1
i n  E d u c a t i o n ,  E m p l o y m e n t
o r  T r a i n i n g

C l l r  E  M o o r e s M o n t h l y N / A
N e w

M e a s u r e

( P r e v  M t h )

A C T U A L
4 9 %

T A R G E T
6 0 %

6 0 % 4 8 %

M 6 3 9 ( C P )  A c h i e v e  t h e
e x p e c t e d  s t a n d a r d  f o r  t h e
c h i l d h o o d  i m m u n i s a t i o n
p r o g r a m m e  a s  i n d i c a t e d  b y
u p t a k e  o f  M M R  a t  a g e  5

C l l r  Z
C h a u h a n

Q u a r t e r l y 9 6 . 9 % ( P r e v  Q t r )

A C T U A L
9 7 . 3 %

T A R G E T
9 5 . 0 %

9 5 . 0 % 9 7 . 3 %

M 6 5 5 ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  o f
c h i l d r e n  s e e n  i n  t h e
p r e v i o u s  1 2  m o n t h s  b y  a n
N H S  d e n t i s t

C l l r  Z
C h a u h a n

Q u a r t e r l y 6 3 % ( P r e v  Q t r )

A C T U A L
5 8 %

T A R G E T
6 0 %

6 0 % 3 2 %

M 6 5 6 ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  o f
H e a l t h  V i s i t o r  m a n d a t e d
r e v i e w s  c o m p l e t e d  w i t h i n
t i m e s c a l e

C l l r  Z
C h a u h a n

Q u a r t e r l y 8 8 . 6 % ( P r e v  Q t r )

A C T U A L
7 0 . 8 %

T A R G E T
8 8 . 0 %

8 8 . 0 % 7 0 . 4 %

1 1  o f  4 9

P
age 51



M e a s u r e  N a m e P o r t f o l i o N o t e s G M C A
A v e r a g e

2 0 1 9 / 2 0
Y e a r  E n d

O u t t u r n

P r e v i o u s
P e r i o d

C u r r e n t
M o n t h
T a r g e t

C u r r e n t
M o n t h
A c t u a l C u r r e n t  M o n t h  A c t u a l  a n d  S t a t u s

M 7 3 8 ( C P )  P a r t i c i p a t i o n  o f
1 7  y e a r  o l d s  i n  e d u c a t i o n
o r  t r a i n i n g  ( c o u n t e d  a s
Y e a r  1 2  y e a r  g r o u p  u n d e r
C C I S )

C l l r  S
M u s h t a q

M o n t h l y 9 5 . 4 0 % ( P r e v  M t h )

A C T U A L
9 4 . 0 0 %

T A R G E T
9 4 . 0 0 %

9 4 . 0 0 % 9 4 . 1 0 %

M 9 4 1 ( C P )  A v e r a g e  t i m e
b e t w e e n  a  c h i l d  e n t e r i n g
c a r e  a n d  m o v i n g  i n  w i t h  i t s
a d o p t i v e  f a m i l y ,  f o r  c h i l d r e n
w h o  h a v e  b e e n  a d o p t e d
( d a y s )  p e r  y e a r

C l l r  E  M o o r e s Q u a r t e r l y 4 8 8  d a y s ( P r e v  Q t r )

A C T U A L
4 6 5  d a y s
T A R G E T
4 2 6  d a y s

4 2 6  d a y s 4 8 3  d a y s

1 2  o f  4 9

P
age 52



M e a s u r e  N a m e P o r t f o l i o N o t e s G M C A
A v e r a g e

2 0 1 9 / 2 0
Y e a r  E n d

O u t t u r n

P r e v i o u s
P e r i o d

C u r r e n t
M o n t h
T a r g e t

C u r r e n t
M o n t h
A c t u a l C u r r e n t  M o n t h  A c t u a l  a n d  S t a t u s

L I V E  W E L L  :  A d u l t s  o f  w o r k i n g  a g e  b e n e f i t  f r o m  i n c l u s i v e  g r o w t h ,  l i v e  w e l l  a n d  a r e  e m p o w e r e d  t o  d o  t h e i r  b i t

M 6 3 6 ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  w h o
q u i t  s m o k i n g  a t  4  w e e k s

C l l r  Z
C h a u h a n

Q u a r t e r l y 4 7 . 3 % ( P r e v  Q t r )

A C T U A L
5 0 . 3 %

T A R G E T
5 0 . 0 %

5 0 . 0 % 5 1 . 9 %

M 4 0 8 ( C P )  T o t a l  n e w
h o m e s  b u i l t

C l l r  H  R o b e r t s Q u a r t e r l y 7 7 0 6 9 5 ( P r e v  Q t r )

A C T U A L
1 3 8

T A R G E T
3 3 7

4 5 0 3 5 4

M 3 5 6 ( C P )  N u m b e r  o f  w o r k
r e l a t e d  o p p o r t u n i t i e s
c r e a t e d  b y  G e t  O l d h a m
W o r k i n g

C l l r  S  F i e l d i n g M o n t h l y 8 , 0 5 6 ( P r e v  M t h )

A C T U A L
9 , 0 0 4

9 , 0 9 4

M 6 3 ( C P )  N u m b e r  o f
v i s i t o r s  t o  G a l l e r y  O l d h a m

C l l r  B
B r o w n r i d g e

Q u a r t e r l y

M 6 7 ( C P )  T o t a l  n u m b e r  o f
e - b o o k s ,  e - a u d i o  b o o k s
a n d  e - m a g a z i n e s  l o a n e d
p e r  m o n t h

C l l r  B
B r o w n r i d g e

M o n t h l y N / A
N e w

M e a s u r e

( P r e v  M t h )

A C T U A L
8 , 6 8 5

T A R G E T
5 , 6 0 0

5 , 6 0 0 9 , 3 8 8

M 6 9 ( C P )  N u m b e r  o f  l i b r a r y
v i s i t s  p e r  1 0 0 0  p o p u l a t i o n .
T o  l i b r a r y  s e r v i c e  p o i n t s  -
n o t  i n c l u d i n g  w e b  v i s i t s

C l l r  B
B r o w n r i d g e

M o n t h l y 5 , 1 8 3 ( P r e v  M t h )

A C T U A L
4 7 8

1 5 3

1 3  o f  4 9

P
age 53



M e a s u r e  N a m e P o r t f o l i o N o t e s G M C A
A v e r a g e

2 0 1 9 / 2 0
Y e a r  E n d

O u t t u r n

P r e v i o u s
P e r i o d

C u r r e n t
M o n t h
T a r g e t

C u r r e n t
M o n t h
A c t u a l C u r r e n t  M o n t h  A c t u a l  a n d  S t a t u s

M 1 9 7 ( C P )  N u m b e r  o f  v i s i t s
t o  O C L  L e i s u r e  C e n t r e s
p e r  1 0 0 0  p o p u l a t i o n

C l l r  B
B r o w n r i d g e

Q u a r t e r l y

M 2 5 6 ( C P )  N u m b e r  o f  l i f e
l o n g  l e a r n i n g  e n r o l m e n t s

C l l r  S  F i e l d i n g M o n t h l y 5 , 1 7 6 ( P r e v  M t h )

A C T U A L
2 , 1 1 6

2 , 2 0 7

M 3 5 7 a ( C P )  N u m b e r  o f  G e t
O l d h a m  W o r k i n g  r e l a t e d
J o b  o p p o r t u n i t i e s  f i l l e d

C l l r  S  F i e l d i n g M o n t h l y 4 , 5 6 8 ( P r e v  M t h )

A C T U A L
4 , 9 8 1

5 , 0 9 3

M 4 0 9 ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  o f
c o m p l e t e d  h o m e s  t h a t  a r e
a f f o r d a b l e

C l l r  H  R o b e r t s Q u a r t e r l y 1 8 . 0 % 2 5 . 3 % ( P r e v  Q t r )

A C T U A L
2 6 . 1 %

T A R G E T
2 5 . 0 %

2 5 . 0 % 3 6 . 4 %

M 5 4 8 ( C P )  P r o p o r t i o n  o f
a d u l t s  w i t h  l e a r n i n g
d i s a b i l i t i e s  i n  p a i d
e m p l o y m e n t  i n  E n g l a n d

C l l r  Z
C h a u h a n

Q u a r t e r l y 5 . 6 % 3 . 0 5 % ( P r e v  Q t r )

A C T U A L
3 . 2 %

T A R G E T
4 . 0 %

4 . 0 % 3 . 0 %

M 7 1 5 ( C P )  A n n u a l  E H C P
( S E N D )  s t a t u t o r y  r e v i e w s
c o m p l e t e d  w i t h i n  l e g a l  t i m e
f r a m e

C l l r  S
M u s h t a q

M o n t h l y 4 9 . 2 % ( P r e v  M t h )

A C T U A L
9 7 . 8 %

T A R G E T
7 0 . 0 %

7 0 . 0 % 9 5 . 3 %

1 4  o f  4 9

P
age 54



M e a s u r e  N a m e P o r t f o l i o N o t e s G M C A
A v e r a g e

2 0 1 9 / 2 0
Y e a r  E n d

O u t t u r n

P r e v i o u s
P e r i o d

C u r r e n t
M o n t h
T a r g e t

C u r r e n t
M o n t h
A c t u a l C u r r e n t  M o n t h  A c t u a l  a n d  S t a t u s

A G E  W E L L  :  O l d e r  p e o p l e  l i v e  f u l f i l l i n g  l i v e s  a n d  f o r m  p a r t  o f  a n  e n g a g e d  a n d  r e s i l i e n t  c o m m u n i t y

M 5 4 3 ( C P )  N u m b e r  o f
i n d i v i d u a l s  ( 6 5 + )  i n  a
p e r m a n e n t  r e s i d e n t i a l  o r
n u r s i n g  p l a c e m e n t  #  p e r
1 0 , 0 0 0  p o p u l a t i o n  6 5 +

C l l r  Z
C h a u h a n

M o n t h l y 2 0 4 ( P r e v  M t h )

A C T U A L
1 7 6

T A R G E T
2 0 0

2 0 0 1 7 8

M 8 6 3 ( C P )  P e r c e n t  o f
e l i g i b l e  a d u l t s  a g e d  6 5 +
w h o  h a v e  r e c e i v e d  t h e  f l u
v a c c i n e

C l l r  Z
C h a u h a n

Q u a r t e r l y 7 5 . 4 % 7 2 . 8 % ( P r e v  Q t r )

A C T U A L
7 3 . 1 %

T A R G E T
7 5 . 0 %

7 5 . 0 % 7 3 . 1 %

1 5  o f  4 9

P
age 55



M e a s u r e  N a m e P o r t f o l i o N o t e s G M C A
A v e r a g e

2 0 1 9 / 2 0
Y e a r  E n d

O u t t u r n

P r e v i o u s
P e r i o d

C u r r e n t
M o n t h
T a r g e t

C u r r e n t
M o n t h
A c t u a l C u r r e n t  M o n t h  A c t u a l  a n d  S t a t u s

P L A C E  :  A n  o r g a n i s a t i o n  t h a t  w o r k s  c o o p e r a t i v e l y  w i t h  r e s i d e n t s  a n d  p a r t n e r s  t o  d e l i v e r  f o r  O l d h a m

M 9 1 5 ( C P )  C u s t o m e r
s a t i s f a c t i o n  ( C o n t a c t
C e n t r e )

C l l r  A  J a b b a r M o n t h l y 9 6 . 1 1 % ( P r e v  M t h )

A C T U A L
9 6 . 3 9 %

T A R G E T
9 4 . 0 0 %

9 4 . 0 0 % 9 7 . 9 7 %

M 6 3 1 a ( C P )  E a r l y  H e l p  -
P r o p o r t i o n  o f  c a s e s  w h e r e
a t  l e a s t  o n e  i n d i v i d u a l
s h o w s  a n  i m p r o v e m e n t  i n
o n e  o r  m o r e  a s s e s s e d
s c o r e s  -  e x c l u d i n g  s m o k i n g
&  w o r k  a n d  s k i l l s  ( i n  m t h )

C l l r  A
C h a d d e r t o n

M o n t h l y N / A
N e w

M e a s u r e

( P r e v  M t h )

A C T U A L
8 3 . 2 %

T A R G E T
6 5 . 0 %

6 5 . 0 % 7 7 . 5 %

M 5 0 1 ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  o f
H o u s e h o l d  w a s t e  s e n t  f o r
R e u s e ,  R e c y c l i n g  o r
C o m p o s t i n g

C l l r  B
B r o w n r i d g e

M o n t h l y 4 9 . 6 5 % 4 3 . 9 6 % ( P r e v  M t h )

A C T U A L
4 1 . 0 6 %

4 5 . 8 1 %

M 2 7 5 ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  o f
m i n o r  p l a n n i n g  a p p l i c a t i o n s
d e t e r m i n e d  i n  t i m e

C l l r  H  R o b e r t s Q u a r t e r l y 8 9 . 9 % ( P r e v  Q t r )

A C T U A L
7 6 . 0 %

T A R G E T
8 0 . 0 %

8 0 . 0 % 8 5 . 0 %

M 1 2 6 ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e
C O 2  r e d u c t i o n  o n  1 9 9 0
b a s e l i n e

C l l r  B
B r o w n r i d g e

A n n u a l  3 y r
i n  a r r e a r s

4 5 % ( P r e v  Y r )

A C T U A L
4 5 %

T A R G E T
4 1 . 6 %

4 3 . 2 % 4 4 %

M 2 7 4 ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  o f
m a j o r  p l a n n i n g  a p p l i c a t i o n s
d e t e r m i n e d  i n  t i m e

C l l r  H  R o b e r t s Q u a r t e r l y 9 0 . 9 % ( P r e v  Q t r )

A C T U A L
1 0 0 . 0 %

T A R G E T
8 0 . 0 %

8 0 . 0 % 1 0 0 . 0 %

1 6  o f  4 9

P
age 56



M e a s u r e  N a m e P o r t f o l i o N o t e s G M C A
A v e r a g e

2 0 1 9 / 2 0
Y e a r  E n d

O u t t u r n

P r e v i o u s
P e r i o d

C u r r e n t
M o n t h
T a r g e t

C u r r e n t
M o n t h
A c t u a l C u r r e n t  M o n t h  A c t u a l  a n d  S t a t u s

M 3 3 3 ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e
C o u n c i l  s p e n d  i n  O l d h a m

C l l r  A  J a b b a r M o n t h l y 5 7 . 0 0 % ( P r e v  M t h )

A C T U A L
5 0 . 7 0 %

T A R G E T
5 5 . 0 0 %

5 5 . 0 0 % 5 2 . 5 0 %

M 4 9 3 ( C P )  S t r e e t s  a n d
g r o u n d s  i n s p e c t i o n  i s s u e s

C l l r  B
B r o w n r i d g e

M o n t h l y 1 4 % ( P r e v  M t h )

A C T U A L
1 2 %

T A R G E T
2 1 %

2 1 % 1 7 %

M 8 9 0 ( C P )  H i g h w a y s :
C l a s s i f i e d  N e t w o r k  S u r f a c e
C o n d i t i o n  ( P e r c e n t a g e  o f
p r i n c i p a l  r o a d s  r e q u i r i n g
m a i n t e n a n c e )

C l l r  B
B r o w n r i d g e

A n n u a l 4 . 7 % ( P r e v  Y r )

A C T U A L
4 . 7 %

T A R G E T
4 . 0 %

4 . 0 %

1 7  o f  4 9

P
age 57



M e a s u r e  N a m e P o r t f o l i o N o t e s G M C A
A v e r a g e

2 0 1 9 / 2 0
Y e a r  E n d

O u t t u r n

P r e v i o u s
P e r i o d

C u r r e n t
M o n t h
T a r g e t

C u r r e n t
M o n t h
A c t u a l C u r r e n t  M o n t h  A c t u a l  a n d  S t a t u s

W E L L  L E D  :  O l d h a m  h a s  a n  i n c l u s i v e  e c o n o m y ,  t h r i v i n g  c o m m u n i t i e s  a n d  r e s i d e n t s  w h o  a r e  i n d e p e n d e n t ,  r e s i l i e n t  a n d  e n g a g e d

S 2 0 2 ( C P )  C o u n c i l
S i c k n e s s  A b s e n c e

C l l r  A
C h a d d e r t o n

M o n t h l y 1 0 . 0
d a y s

1 1 . 3  d a y s ( P r e v  M t h )

A C T U A L
6 . 9  d a y s

T A R G E T
1 0 . 5  d a y s

1 1 . 3  d a y s 7 . 8  d a y s

M 6 6 4 a ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  o f
r e f e r r a l s  w h i c h  a r e  r e p e a t
r e f e r r a l s  t o  C h i l d r e n " s
S o c i a l  C a r e  ( i n  m o n t h )

C l l r  E  M o o r e s M o n t h l y N / A
N e w

M e a s u r e

( P r e v  M t h )

A C T U A L
2 8 . 6 %

T A R G E T
2 1 . 0 %

2 1 . 0 % 2 2 . 5 %

M 3 4 0 ( C P )  P e r c e n t  o f
I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  O p i n i o n s
r e s u l t i n g  i n  W e a k ,
I n a d e q u a t e ,  L i m i t e d
A s s u r a n c e

C l l r  A  J a b b a r Q u a r t e r l y 1 1 % ( P r e v  Q t r )

A C T U A L
1 0 %

T A R G E T
1 5 %

1 5 % 1 4 %

M 3 6 5 ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  o f
C o u n c i l  a n n u a l  a p p r e n t i c e
l e v y  d i s t r i b u t e d  t o
e m p l o y e r s  a n d
a p p r e n t i c e s h i p  t r a i n i n g
a g e n c i e s  w i t h i n  O l d h a m

C l l r  A
C h a d d e r t o n

Q u a r t e r l y 4 3 . 7 % ( P r e v  Q t r )

A C T U A L
1 6 . 2 %

T A R G E T
7 . 0 %

1 3 . 0 % 1 2 . 2 %

M 6 8 2 a ( C P )  C h i l d r e n " s
S o c i a l  C a r e  #  P e r c e n t a g e
o f  c o m p l e t e d  a s s e s s m e n t s
t o  t i m e s c a l e  ( i n  m o n t h )

C l l r  E  M o o r e s M o n t h l y N / A
N e w

M e a s u r e

( P r e v  M t h )

A C T U A L
8 5 . 6 %

T A R G E T
8 0 . 0 %

8 0 . 0 % 9 4 . 0 %

S 3 5 7 ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  o f
c o u n c i l  t a x  i n  y e a r
c o l l e c t e d  o f  t h e  t o t a l  o w e d
( c u m u l a t i v e )

C l l r  A  J a b b a r M o n t h l y 9 5 . 0 3 % 9 4 . 0 5 % ( P r e v  M t h )

A C T U A L
9 1 . 5 5 %

9 3 . 2 9 %

1 8  o f  4 9

P
age 58



M e a s u r e  N a m e P o r t f o l i o N o t e s G M C A
A v e r a g e

2 0 1 9 / 2 0
Y e a r  E n d

O u t t u r n

P r e v i o u s
P e r i o d

C u r r e n t
M o n t h
T a r g e t

C u r r e n t
M o n t h
A c t u a l C u r r e n t  M o n t h  A c t u a l  a n d  S t a t u s

S 3 6 8 ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  o f
n a t i o n a l  n o n  d o m e s t i c
r a t e s  ( N N D R )  c o l l e c t e d  i n
y e a r  a s  a  %  o f  t h e  t o t a l
o w e d

C l l r  A  J a b b a r M o n t h l y 9 6 . 7 3 % 9 6 . 1 8 % ( P r e v  M t h )

A C T U A L
8 6 . 8 0 %

9 0 . 4 8 %

S 3 7 0 ( C P )  A v e r a g e  t i m e
t a k e n  t o  p r o c e s s  C o u n c i l
T a x  R e d u c t i o n  ( n e w  c l a i m s
a n d  c h a n g e  e v e n t s )

C l l r  A  J a b b a r M o n t h l y N / A
N e w

M e a s u r e

( P r e v  M t h )

A C T U A L
2 7  d a y s

T A R G E T
1 5  d a y s

1 5  d a y s 2 0  d a y s

1 9  o f  4 9

P
age 59



R e f A c t i o n s A c t i o n
U p d a t e r

C a b i n e t
M e m b e r

D a t e
C o m m e n t s

R e v i e w e d

D u e  D a t e F o r e c a s t e d
C o m p l e t i o n

D a t e

C o m m e n t s A c t i o n
O w n e r

D i r e c t o r
A p p r o v e

D a t e

A s s o c i a t e d
H i g h - l e v e l
R i s k s

C o r p o r a t e  O b j e c t i v e  1  :  A n  i n c l u s i v e  e c o n o m y  w h e r e  p e o p l e  a n d  e n t e r p r i s e  t h r i v e
D A 1 1 3 E n g a g e m e n t  w i t h  G M H S P ( H e a l t h  a n d

S o c i a l  C a r e  P a r t n e r s h i p )  f o r  t h e  t e n d e r
f o r  S u p p o r t e d  E m p l o y m e n t  S e r v i c e  a n d
e n a b l e  l o c a l  i m p r o v e m e n t  o f
e m p l o y m e n t  o f  p e o p l e  w i t h  L e a r n i n g
D i s a b i l i t i e s ,  A u t i s m  a n d  M e n t a l  H e a l t h

C h a r l o t t e
W a l k e r

C l l r  Z
C h a u h a n

1 3 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 T h e  s c h e m e  s t a r t e d  i n  A u g u s t  2 0 2 0  a n d
r u n s  f o r  a  p e r i o d  o f  t h r e e  y e a r s .

M a r k
W a r r e n

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D C 1 0 0 S u p p o r t  O l d h a m  E d u c a t i o n  P a r t n e r s h i p
B o a r d  i n  p r i o r i t i s i n g  a l l  t h e
r e c o m m e n d a t i o n s  o f  E d u c a t i o n  &  S k i l l s
C o m m i s s i o n

T o n y
S h e p h e r d

C l l r  S
M u s h t a q

1 / 1 0 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 8 / 2 0 2 0 A l l  o f  t h e  w o r k  o f  t h e  O l d h a m  E d u c a t i o n
P a r t n e r s h i p  ( O E P ) ,  L o c a l  A u t h o r i t y  a n d
O p p o r t u n i t y  A r e a  w a s  i n t e g r a t e d  t o  e n s u r e
t h a t  p r i o r i t i e s  a r e  m e t  i n  a  c o h e s i v e
m a n n e r  t o  e n s u r e  t h e  b e s t  o u t c o m e s  f o r
t h e  c h i l d r e n  a n d  y o u n g  p e o p l e  i n  O l d h a m .
T h e  O E P  h a s  n o w  e n d e d  a t  t h e  e n d  o f  t h e
f o u r  y e a r s  a n d  t h e  w o r k  i s  c o n t i n u e d
t h r o u g h  O l d h a m  L e a r n i n g .

G e r a r d
J o n e s

2 0 / 1 0 / 2 0 2 0

D C 1 0 1 F o c u s  o n  r a i s i n g  s t a n d a r d s  i n  r e a d i n g
w r i t i n g ,  m a t h s  a n d  p h o n i c s  t o  l e v e l  u p
e d u c a t i o n a l  o u t c o m e s  a t  t h e  e n d  o f  a l l
k e y  s t a g e s

T o n y
S h e p h e r d

C l l r  S
M u s h t a q

1 / 1 0 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 9 / 2 0 2 0 A  r a n g e  o f  p r o j e c t s  h a v e  b e e n  i n  p l a c e
w o r k i n g  w i t h  t h e  L o c a l  A u t h o r i t y ,  O l d h a m
E d u c a t i o n  P a r t n e r s h i p  a n d  O l d h a m
O p p o r t u n i t y  A r e a .   O u t c o m e s  f o r  s u m m e r
2 0 1 9  w e r e  p o s i t i v e .   G i v e n  t h e  c u r r e n t
C o v i d - 1 9  s i t u a t i o n  w e  w i l l  n o t  r e c e i v e  d a t a
f o r  2 0 2 0 .   W o r k  i n  t h i s  a r e a  h a s  n o w
m o v e d  t o  O l d h a m  L e a r n i n g .

G e r a r d
J o n e s

1 4 / 1 / 2 0 2 1

C o m p l e t e
O n  t r a c k

B e h i n d  S c h e d u l e
U n l i k e l y  t o  a c h i e v e

2 0  o f  4 9

P
age 60



R e f A c t i o n s A c t i o n
U p d a t e r

C a b i n e t
M e m b e r

D a t e
C o m m e n t s

R e v i e w e d

D u e  D a t e F o r e c a s t e d
C o m p l e t i o n

D a t e

C o m m e n t s A c t i o n
O w n e r

D i r e c t o r
A p p r o v e

D a t e

A s s o c i a t e d
H i g h - l e v e l
R i s k s

D C 1 0 5 I n v e s t  $ 3 7  m i l l i o n  i n  n e w  p r i m a r y  a n d
s e c o n d a r y  s c h o o l  f a c i l i t i e s  i n  o r d e r  t o
m e e t  d e m a n d s  o n  p r o j e c t e d  p u p i l  n e e d .

A n d y
C o l l i n g e

C l l r  S
M u s h t a q

1 3 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 1 / 4 / 2 0 2 4 A  c o m p r e h e n s i v e  p r o g r a m m e  o f
i n v e s t m e n t  i n  a d d i t i o n a l  s c h o o l  p l a c e s
c o n t i n u e s  a t  p a c e  a n d  f u r t h e r  p l a n s  a r e
b e i n g  f o r m u l a t e d  t o  e n h a n c e  t h e  o f f e r  t o
p a r e n t s  a n d  m e e t  o u r  s t a t u t o r y  o b l i g a t i o n s
t o  p r o v i d e  s u f f i c i e n t  s c h o o l  p l a c e s  a n d
o f f e r  p a r e n t s  a  c h o i c e  o f  g o o d  s c h o o l
p l a c e s .

G e r a r d
J o n e s

3 0 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D C 1 1 1 E n s u r e  a l l  c h i l d r e n  a r e  s c h o o l  r e a d y
w h e n  t h e y  a r e  d u e  t o  s t a r t  s c h o o l

P a u l a
H e a l e y

C l l r  E
M o o r e s

1 9 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 9 / 2 0 2 0 C o m p l e t i o n  o f  t h e  E Y F S  P r o f i l e
a s s e s s m e n t  i n  2 0 2 1  i s n ' t  m a n a d t o r y .
S c h o o l s  h a v e  b e e n  a s k e d  t o  m a k e  % b e s t
e n d e a v o u r s "  t o  u n d e r t a k e .  T h e  L A  i s
w o r k i n g  w i t h  s c h o o l s  t o  c o n s i d e r  o p t i o n s
f o r  t h e  c o l l e c t i o n  o f  d a t a .  A n y  d a t a
c o l l e c t e d  s h o u l d  b e  t r e a t e d  w i t h  c a u t i o n .
E v i d e n c i n g  O l d h a m " s  c o n t i n u i n g  t r a j e c t o r y
i n  o u t c o m e s  i n  t h e  E Y F S  p r o f i l e  i s  u n l i k e l y .

G e r a r d
J o n e s

3 0 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D C 1 5 5 G e t  O l d h a m  W o r k i n g  t o  e n g a g e  w i t h
6 , 0 0 0  r e s i d e n t s  a n d  f i l l  5 , 0 0 0  n e w
e m p l o y m e n t - r e l a t e d  o p p o r t u n i t i e s  b y
2 0 2 0

J o n  B l o o r C l l r  S
F i e l d i n g

1 4 / 4 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 S i n c e  A p r i l  2 0 1 6  t h e  G O W  p h a s e  2
p r o g r a m m e  h a s  f i l l e d  5 , 0 3 4  w o r k  r e l a t e d
o p p o r t u n i t i e s  ( a g a i n s t  a  t a r g e t  o f  4 , 0 6 1 ) .
T h i s  c o n s i s t e d  o f  3 , 6 4 2  j o b s ,
1 1 7  t r a i n e e s h i p s ,  6 0 6  a p p r e n t i c e s h i p s  &
6 6 9  W o r k  e x p e r i e n c e  p l a c e m e n t s .  T h e
p r o g r a m m e  h a s  t h e r e f o r e  a c h i e v e d  t h e
t a r g e t  s e t  9  m o n t h s  e a r l y .  I t  h a s  b e e n
e n h a n c e d  b y  $ 2 . 5 m  e x t e r n a l  f u n d i n g .

G e r a r d
J o n e s

3 0 / 4 / 2 0 2 0

D C 1 5 6 E n c o u r a g e  % I n  w o r k "  p r o g r e s s i o n  t o  h e l p
a t  l e a s t  4 0 0  r e s i d e n t s  g a i n  n e w  s k i l l s  s o
t h e y  c a n  g a i n  p r o m o t i o n s  u p  t h e  c a r e e r
l a d d e r  ( C a r e e r  A d v a n c e m e n t  S e r v i c e )

J o n  B l o o r C l l r  S
F i e l d i n g

2 8 / 4 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 6 / 2 0 2 0 W o r k  i s  c u r r e n t l y  o n g o i n g  t o  r e v i e w  t h i s
p r o g r a m m e .  I t  h a s  a c h i e v e d  s i g n f i c a n t
u p l i f t  i n  s a l a r y  l e v e l s  f o r  p r o g r a m m e
a t t e n d e e s .  F u n d i n g  e n d e d  M a r c h  2 0 2 0  -
w o r k  i s  o n g o i n g  t o  s e c u r e  e x t e r n a l  f u n d s .

G e r a r d
J o n e s

3 0 / 4 / 2 0 2 0

2 1  o f  4 9

P
age 61



R e f A c t i o n s A c t i o n
U p d a t e r

C a b i n e t
M e m b e r

D a t e
C o m m e n t s

R e v i e w e d

D u e  D a t e F o r e c a s t e d
C o m p l e t i o n

D a t e

C o m m e n t s A c t i o n
O w n e r

D i r e c t o r
A p p r o v e

D a t e

A s s o c i a t e d
H i g h - l e v e l
R i s k s

D C 1 5 7 F i g h t  f o r  a  F a i r  E m p l o y m e n t  b o r o u g h ,
a n d  l e a d  t h e  w a y  a s  a  G M  G o o d
E m p l o y m e n t  C h a r t e r  m e m b e r

J o n  B l o o r C l l r  S
F i e l d i n g

2 8 / 4 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 6 / 2 0 2 0 T h e  C o u n c i l  i s  w o r k i n g  t o w a r d s  s i g n i n g  t h e
G M  G o o d  E m p l o y e r  C h a r t e r .  I t  i s  a l s o
s u p p o r t i n g  t h i s  i n i t i a t i v e  w i t h  p r o m o t i o n  v i a
G r o w t h  C o m p a n y  a n d  t h e  C o u n c i l
B u s i n e s s  G r o w t h  a n d  I n v e s t m e n t  t e a m .

G e r a r d
J o n e s

3 0 / 4 / 2 0 2 0

D C 1 9 1 E x p l o r e  o p t i o n s  t o  s u p p o r t  p a r e n t s  a s
c o - e d u c a t o r s ,  s t r e n g t h e n i n g  t h e
p a r t n e r s h i p  b e t w e e n  c o u n c i l ,  s c h o o l s
a n d  p a r e n t s

T o n y
S h e p h e r d

C l l r  S
M u s h t a q

7 / 7 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 6 / 2 0 2 0 E n g a g e m e n t  t h r o u g h  P C F ,  P O I N T  a n d
u p d a t e s  t o  t h e  L o c a l  O f f e r .  C o - p r o d u c t i o n
w i t h  p a r t n e r s  h a s ,  a n d  w i l l  c o n t i n u e  t o  t a k e
p l a c e  i n t o  t h e  f u t u r e  a s  p a r t  o f  t h e  S E N D
S t r a t e g y .

G e r a r d
J o n e s

2 2 / 7 / 2 0 2 0

D C 1 9 3 I m p r o v e  s u p p o r t  f o r  s c h o o l s  r e c r u i t i n g
g o v e r n o r s ,  p a r t i c u l a r l y  f r o m
u n d e r r e p r e s e n t e d  c o m m u n i t i e s

A n d y
C o l l i n g e

C l l r  S
M u s h t a q

1 3 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 1 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 W e  c o n t i n u e  t o  l o o k  a t  i n n o v a t i v e  w a y s  t o
w i d e n  u p t a k e  o f  G o v e r n o r  v a c a n c i e s
a c r o s s  a l l  c o m m u n i t i e s  i n  O l d h a m .

G e r a r d
J o n e s

3 0 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D C 1 9 4 C o u n c i l  i n v e s t m e n t  w i l l  h a v e  e n s u r e d
b y  2 0 2 2  t h a t  a l l  n e w  s c h o o l  p l a c e s
c r e a t e d  f o r  O l d h a m  c h i l d r e n  a n d  y o u n g
p e o p l e  a r e  i n  g o o d  o r  o u t s t a n d i n g
s c h o o l s .

T o n y
S h e p h e r d

C l l r  S
M u s h t a q

1 9 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 2 3 0 / 9 / 2 0 2 2 A d d i t i o n a l  p l a c e s  c o m p l e t e d  i n  2 0 2 0  a t
C r o m p t o n  H o u s e  ( r a t e d  G o o d )  a n d  n e w
s c h o o l  o p e n e d  a t  L e e s b r o o k  ( n o
j u d g e m e n t ) .  A d d i t i o n a l  p l a c e s  p l a n n e d  f o r
N o r t h  C h a d d e r t o n  a n d  a  n e w  B l u e  C o a t  2
s c h o o l  i n  2 0 2 2  a r e  o n  t r a c k .

G e r a r d
J o n e s

3 0 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D C 1 9 5 O l d h a m  t o  m a t c h  t h e  n a t i o n a l  l e v e l  o f
s c h o o l  r e a d i n e s s  b y  2 0 2 1  t h r o u g h
s u p p o r t i n g  b e s t  p r a c t i c e  i n  e a r l y  f a m i l y
l e a r n i n g  s u p p o r t  p r o g r a m m e s

P a u l a
H e a l e y

C l l r  S
M u s h t a q

9 / 1 0 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 7 / 2 0 2 1 G i v e n  t h e  c u r r e n t  C O V I D - 1 9  s i t u a t i o n  n o
E Y F S P  d a t a  w i l l  b e  a v a i l a b l e  n a t i o n a l l y  o r
l o c a l l y  f o r  2 0 2 0 .  W o r k  c o n t i n u e s  t o  e n s u r e
c h i l d r e n  a r e  s c h o o l  r e a d y  t h r o u g h  a  r a n g e
o f  s u p p o r t  p r o g r a m m e s  a n d  w i l l  b e
m o n i t o r e d  t h r o u g h  t h e  n e w  E Y s
p a r t n e r s h i p .  F u t u r e  u p d a t e s  a r o u n d  s c h o o l
r e a d i n e s s  w i l l  c o n t i n u e  t o  b e  p r o v i d e d  i n
D C 1 1 1 .

G e r a r d
J o n e s

2 0 / 1 0 / 2 0 2 0

2 2  o f  4 9

P
age 62



R e f A c t i o n s A c t i o n
U p d a t e r

C a b i n e t
M e m b e r

D a t e
C o m m e n t s

R e v i e w e d

D u e  D a t e F o r e c a s t e d
C o m p l e t i o n

D a t e

C o m m e n t s A c t i o n
O w n e r

D i r e c t o r
A p p r o v e

D a t e

A s s o c i a t e d
H i g h - l e v e l
R i s k s

D C 1 9 6 O l d h a m  c h i l d r e n  a n d  y o u n g  p e o p l e
( 5 - 1 6 )  t o  r e p o r t  b e t t e r  t h a n  n a t i o n a l
a v e r a g e s  o f  w e l l b e i n g  b y  2 0 2 1  t h r o u g h
t a r g e t e d  s u p p o r t  f o r  S E M H ( S o c i a l
E m o t i o n a l  a n d  M e n t a l  H e a l t h )
p r o g r a m m e s  i n  s c h o o l s .

N a t a l i e
W i l l i a m s

C l l r  S
M u s h t a q

1 9 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 W e  c a n n o t  m e a s u r e  t h i s  &  c o m p a r e  t o
n a t i o n a l ,  t h e  w h o l e  s c h o o l  a p p r o a c h  w o r k
u n d e r t a k e n  b y  t h e  M W  t e a m  w i t h  s c h o o l
l e a d s  h a s  h a d  s i g n i f i c a n t  i m p a c t  o f
i n c r e a s i n g  c o n f i d e n c e  o f  s t a f f  &  p u p i l s
a r o u n d  M H  a t  a  u n i v e r s a l  l e v e l .
I n t e r v e n t i o n s  h a v e  i n c r e a s e d  t o  p r e v e n t
t h e  e s c a l a t i o n  t o  t a r g e t e d  s e r v i c e s .  M H S T
i s  b e i n g  m o b i l i s e d  t o  s u p p o r t  l o w  l e v e l
i n t e r v e n t i o n .

G e r a r d
J o n e s

3 0 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D C 1 9 7 P r o m o t e  t h e  C h i l d r e n " s  C h a m p i o n s
s c h e m e  s o  t h a t  e v e r y  c h i l d  l o o k e d  a f t e r
h a s  a  c h a m p i o n  t o  s u p p o r t  t h e m

E l a i n e
D e v a n e y

C l l r  E
M o o r e s

1 1 / 1 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 W e  h a v e  m a i n t a i n e d  t h e  n u m b e r  o f
C h i l d r e n  i n  C a r e  a n d  C a r e  L e a v e r s  w i t h  a
C h i l d r e n ' s  C h a m p i o n  t h r o u g h o u t  t h e
C o v i d - 1 9  p a n d e m i c .  A t  t h e  r e c e n t  O f s t e d
f o c u s e d  v i s i t ,  t h e  C h i l d r e n  i n  C a r e  C o u n c i l
s h a r e d  w i t h  t h e  i n s p e c t o r  t h a t  t h e y  r e a l l y
v a l u e  t h e  s u p p o r t  f r o m  C h i l d r e n
C h a m p i o n s ,  a n d  t h i s  i s  a  d e v e l o p m e n t  t h a t
t h e y  a r e  p r o u d  o f .

G e r a r d
J o n e s

1 4 / 1 / 2 0 2 1

D C 1 9 8 E x p l o r e  t h e  o p t i o n s  t o  p r o v i d e  f r e e
p r e s c r i p t i o n s  t o  a l l  c h i l d r e n  l o o k e d  a f t e r
a n d  c a r e  l e a v e r s  u n d e r  2 5

E l a i n e
D e v a n e y

C l l r  E
M o o r e s

1 4 / 4 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 T h e  f r e e  p r e s c r i p t i o n s  p r o c e s s  i s  s e t - u p .
H e a l t h  p a r t n e r s  h a v e  a g r e e d  t o  f u n d  a l l
f r e e  p r e s c r i p t i o n s .  O n e  y o u n g  p e r s o n
r e c e i v e d  t h e i r  f r e e  p r e s c r i p t i o n s  a f t e r
t e s t i n g  t h e  a p p l i c a t i o n  p r o c e s s  a n d  t h e
s y s t e m  i s  n o w  l i v e .

G e r a r d
J o n e s

3 0 / 4 / 2 0 2 0

D E 1 1 7 I m p r o v e  s e c u r i t y  a t  b u s  s t a t i o n s ,
m e t r o l i n k  s t o p s  a n d  c a r  p a r k s

C a r o l
B r o w n

C l l r  B
B r o w n r i d g e

1 4 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 A p p r o p r i a t e  i n t e r v e n t i o n s  r e q u e s t e d
t h r o u g h  T f G M  a s  t h e  r e s p o n s i b l e  a u t h o r i t y .

H e l e n
L o c k w o o d

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

2 3  o f  4 9

P
age 63



R e f A c t i o n s A c t i o n
U p d a t e r

C a b i n e t
M e m b e r

D a t e
C o m m e n t s

R e v i e w e d

D u e  D a t e F o r e c a s t e d
C o m p l e t i o n

D a t e

C o m m e n t s A c t i o n
O w n e r

D i r e c t o r
A p p r o v e

D a t e

A s s o c i a t e d
H i g h - l e v e l
R i s k s

D E 1 1 9 E n h a n c e  a n d  s u p p o r t  a l l  t o w n  c e n t r e s
b y  r e t a i n i n g  a n d  h e l p i n g  b u s i n e s s e s  t o
g r o w  a n d  t h r i v e ,  a n d  b y  e n c o u r a g i n g
n e w  b u s i n e s s e s  t o  s t a r t  u p  i n  e m p t y
p r o p e r t i e s

E m m a
B a r t o n

C l l r  S
F i e l d i n g

9 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 9 / 2 0 2 0 G r e a v e s  s a l e  c o m p l e t e d ,  a n d  f u l l y
r e f u r b i s h e d  a n d  w i l l  o p e n  s h o r t l y  o n c e
l o c k d o w n  e a s e s .

A l l  s c h e m e s  i n  L e e s ,  S h a w  a n d  F a i l s w o r t h
h a v e  b e e n  c o m p l e t e d  a n d  p a i d  o u t .

R o y t o n  s c h e m e  s t i l l  o p e n  b u t  n o t  a c t i v e l y
p r o m o t e d ,  d u e  t o  C o v i d - 1 9 .  R e l a u n c h
p l a n n e d  f o r  A p r i l  2 0 2 1  w i t h  n e w  l e a f l e t
d r o p .

H e l e n
L o c k w o o d

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D E 1 3 9 G r e a t e r  M a n c h e s t e r " s  P l a n  f o r  H o m e s ,
J o b s  a n d  t h e  E n v i r o n m e n t  ( a k a  G M S F ) :
i n  p a r t n e r s h i p  w i t h  G M C A ,  p r o v i d e
s u p p o r t  f o r  t h e  o p p o r t u n i t i e s  a n d
i m p l i c a t i o n s  a s s o c i a t e d  w i t h  t h e
p r o p o s e d  d e v e l o p m e n t  s i t e s  a c r o s s  t h e
b o r o u g h

E m m a
B a r t o n

C l l r  H
R o b e r t s

9 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 T h e  r e m a i n i n g  n i n e  G M  d i s t r i c t s  s o u g h t
a p p r o v a l  t o  p r e p a r e  % P l a c e s  f o r  E v e r y o n e  #
a  j o i n t  d e v e l o p m e n t  p l a n  d o c u m e n t "  a n d
e s t a b l i s h  a  n e w  j o i n t  c o m m i t t e e  t o  d e l e g a t e
P l a c e s  f o r  E v e r y o n e  t o .
T h e  t i m e t a b l e  f o r  p r e p a r a t i o n  o f  P l a c e s  f o r
E v e r y o n e  w i l l  b e  a g r e e d  a t  t h e  f i r s t
m e e t i n g .

H e l e n
L o c k w o o d

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D E 1 4 8 M a i n t a i n  o u r  2 4 - h o u r  r o a d  r e p a i r
p r o m i s e  f o r  p r i o r i t y  r o u t e s  a n d  i n v e s t  i n
o u r  s e c o n d a r y  r o u t e s  a n d  h i g h w a y s

G o r d o n
A n d e r s o n

C l l r  B
B r o w n r i d g e

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 W o r k  i s  u n d e r w a y  t o  p r o g r e s s  t h e  t h i r d
y e a r  o f  t h e  t h r e e  y e a r  $ 1 2 m  H i g h w a y s
I n v e s t m e n t  P r o g r a m m e  o n  b o t h  t h e  p r i o r i t y
r o u t e s  a n d  s e c o n d a r y  r o u t e s  a n d  m o n i t o r
t h e  c o n d i t i o n  o f  t h e  n e t w o r k   v i a  a n  A n n u a l
E n g i n e e r s  i n s p e c t i o n .

H e l e n
L o c k w o o d

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D E 1 7 0 R e v i e w ,  d e v e l o p  a n d  d e l i v e r  a  n e w
T o w n  C e n t r e  V i s i o n ,  w i t h  a n  a s s o c i a t e d
a c t i o n  p l a n ,  c h i l d r e n ` s  m a s t e r p l a n ,  a n d
c o m p r e h e n s i v e  i n v e s t m e n t  p l a n ,  w h i c h
w i l l  s u p p o r t  o u r  l o c a l  c o m m u n i t i e s  a n d
e n s u r e  i t  i s  a  p l a c e  t h a t  t h r i v e s .

E m m a
B a r t o n

C l l r  S
F i e l d i n g

5 / 1 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 9 / 2 0 2 0 C o m p l e t e d H e l e n
L o c k w o o d

1 2 / 1 / 2 0 2 1

2 4  o f  4 9

P
age 64



R e f A c t i o n s A c t i o n
U p d a t e r

C a b i n e t
M e m b e r

D a t e
C o m m e n t s

R e v i e w e d

D u e  D a t e F o r e c a s t e d
C o m p l e t i o n

D a t e

C o m m e n t s A c t i o n
O w n e r

D i r e c t o r
A p p r o v e

D a t e

A s s o c i a t e d
H i g h - l e v e l
R i s k s

D E 1 7 1 D e v e l o p  a n d  d e l i v e r  t h e  O l d h a m
M u s e u m  a n d  A r c h i v e  ( O M A )  C e n t r e  t o
e n h a n c e  t h e  c u l t u r a l  o f f e r  i n  t h e  t o w n
c e n t r e

E m m a
B a r t o n

C l l r  S
F i e l d i n g

7 / 1 0 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 H e l e n
L o c k w o o d

2 0 / 1 0 / 2 0 2 0

D E 1 7 2 D e v e l o p  a n d  d e l i v e r  t h e  t r a n s f o r m a t i o n
o f  O l d h a m  M u m p s  ( P r i n c e s  G a t e )  a r e a

E m m a
B a r t o n

C l l r  S
F i e l d i n g

9 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 L i d l - d i s c u s s i o n s  c o n t i n u e  i n  l i g h t  o f
T r a v e l o d g e  a d m i n i s t r a t i o n .

T h e  O l d  B a n k #  d i s p o s a l  p r o g r e s s i n g .

S i t e  C  n o w  l i n k e d  t o  f u t u r e  t o w n  c e n t r e
h e a t i n g  p r o j e c t  f o r  t h i s  l o c a t i o n .

H e l e n
L o c k w o o d

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D E 1 7 3 D e v e l o p  o p t i o n s  /  b u s i n e s s  c a s e s  f o r
k e y  p r o j e c t s  w h i c h  w i l l  a c t  a s  e n a b l e r s
f o r  c a t a l y t i c  t r a n s f o r m a t i o n  o f  O u r  T o w n
C e n t r e  -  ( e x a m p l e s  -  M a r k e t  a n d  r e t a i l
o f f e r ,  p u b l i c  s e r v i c e s  a c c o m m o d a t i o n ,
c u l t u r e  o f f e r  a n d  e v e n t  s p a c e )

E m m a
B a r t o n

C l l r  S
F i e l d i n g

9 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 6 / 2 0 2 0 W o r k  a r o u n d  t h e  p o t e n t i a l  r e l o c a t i o n  o f  t h e
m a r k e t  a n d  o f f i c e  a c c o m m o d a t i o n  w i t h i n
S p i n d l e s  c o n t i n u e s .

F u r t h e r  d e s i g n  d e v e l o p m e n t  i s  u n d e r w a y
o n  t h e  l i n e a r  p a r k .

F i n a l  c o n f i r m a t i o n  o f  t h e  o u t c o m e  o f  t h e
T o w n s  F u n d  b i d  i s  s t i l l  a w a i t e d .

H e l e n
L o c k w o o d

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D E 1 8 6 D e v e l o p  O l d h a m  t o w n  c e n t r e " s  n i g h t
t i m e  e c o n o m y ,  a t t r a c t i n g  n e w ,  h i g h
q u a l i t y  b u s i n e s s e s  a n d  c r e a t i n g  a
c o n n e c t e d ,  d i v e r s e  a n d  s a f e  e v e n i n g
o f f e r

E m m a
B a r t o n

C l l r  S
F i e l d i n g

9 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 6 / 2 0 2 0 T h e  C o u n c i l  i s  i n  a d v a n c e d  d i s c u s s i o n s  t o
a p p o i n t  a n  o p e r a t o r  f o r  t h e  E g y p t i a n  R o o m
f o o d  h a l l .  F i t - o u t  w o r k s  c o u l d  s t a r t  i n  J u n e .

T h e  G M C A  i s  e x p l o r i n g  a  n i g h t - t i m e  e v e n t
( i n d i e  f e s t i v a l  f o r  n e w  m u s i c ) .

H e l e n
L o c k w o o d

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D E 1 8 7 D o u b l e  t h e  n u m b e r  o f  c o - o p e r a t i v e
e n t e r p r i s e s  a c t i v e  i n  t h e  b o r o u g h

E m m a
B a r t o n

C l l r  S
F i e l d i n g

9 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 6 / 2 0 2 0 W o r k  i s  o n - g o i n g  t o  s u p p o r t  t h e  O l d h a m  I n
P l a c e  P a r t n e r s h i p  L A P  a p p l i c a t i o n .   W e
a r e  c u r r e n t l y  w o r k i n g  w i t h  t h e  t e a m  l e a d i n g
i t  t o  f i n d  t h e m  a  t o w n  c e n t r e  l o c a t i o n  t h a t
w i l l  a c t  a s  a  o n e - s t o p - s h o p  f o r  s o c i a l
e n t e r p r i s e  s u p p o r t .

H e l e n
L o c k w o o d

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D E 1 9 0 I d e n t i f y  s i t e s  f o r  p u b l i c  w a t e r  f o u n t a i n s
t o  s u p p o r t  o u r  g r e e n  a g e n d a

G a i l
A s p i n a l l

C l l r  B
B r o w n r i d g e

9 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 6 / 2 0 2 0 T h i s  a c t i o n  i s  c l o s e d  a s  t h e  p r o j e c t  i s  n o t
g o i n g  a h e a d .

H e l e n
L o c k w o o d

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

2 5  o f  4 9

P
age 65



R e f A c t i o n s A c t i o n
U p d a t e r

C a b i n e t
M e m b e r

D a t e
C o m m e n t s

R e v i e w e d

D u e  D a t e F o r e c a s t e d
C o m p l e t i o n

D a t e

C o m m e n t s A c t i o n
O w n e r

D i r e c t o r
A p p r o v e

D a t e

A s s o c i a t e d
H i g h - l e v e l
R i s k s

D E 1 9 1 E x t e n d  o u r  f r e e  w e e k e n d  c a r  p a r k i n g
p l e d g e  ( u p  t o  3  h o u r s )  w i t h  u n l i m i t e d
f r e e  p a r k i n g  o n  w e e k d a y s  a f t e r  3 p m .

E m m a
B a r t o n

C l l r  B
B r o w n r i d g e

5 / 1 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 6 / 2 0 2 0 C o m p l e t e d H e l e n
L o c k w o o d

1 2 / 1 / 2 0 2 1

D P 2 1 3 E s t a b l i s h  j o i n t  w o r k i n g  w i t h  p l a n n i n g  t o
s u p p o r t  h e a l t h  p r o m o t i n g  e n v i r o n m e n t s
w i t h i n  t h e  c o n t e x t  o f  t h e  G M  s p a t i a l
f r a m e w o r k  f o r  n e w  h o m e s ,  t o w n  c e n t r e
p l a n n i n g  a n d  t r a n s p o r t  i n f r a s t r u c t u r e
p l a n n i n g

K a t r i n a
S t e p h e n s

C l l r  Z
C h a u h a n

6 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 6 / 2 0 2 0 W o r k  i n  r e s p o n s e  t o  C o u n c i l  m o t i o n  o n
h e a l t h  i m p a c t  a s s e s s m e n t s  i s  p r o g r e s s i n g .
 A  p r o c e s s  t o  p r o v i d e  p u b l i c  h e a l t h  i n p u t
i n t o  L i c e n s i n g  d e c i s i o n s  h a s  b e e n  s c o p e d ,
a n d  i s  o n  t r a c k .  W o r k  p a u s e d  d u e  t o
C o v i d - 1 9 .

R e b e k a h
S u t c l i f f e

1 2 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D P 4 1 4 C r e a t e  a  p r o g r a m m e  o f  e v e n t s  a n d
a c t i v i t i e s  t o  t a c k l e  s o c i a l  i s o l a t i o n  a n d
i n c r e a s e  a c c e s s  t o  c u l t u r e

K a t r i n a
S t e p h e n s

C l l r  Z
C h a u h a n

6 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 6 / 2 0 2 0 A u d i o - D e s c r i b e d  &  B S L  t o u r s  a n d  a c t i v i t i e s
a t  G a l l e r y  O l d h a m  o n - g o i n g .  T h e
U n e x p e c t e d  a c t i v i t y  p r o g r a m m e  e n g a g i n g
o l d e r  p e o p l e  w i t h  h i s t o r y  c o l l e c t i o n s .
L i b r a r i e s  o f  S a n c t u a r y  p r o g r a m m e
o n - g o i n g .  R e a d i n g  F r i e n d s  w h i c h  t a r g e t e d
o l d e r  s o c i a l  i s o l a t e d  p e o p l e  n o w  i n c l u d e s
y o u n g e r  L G B T  g r o u p s .  A u t i s m  &  d e m e n t i a
f r i e n d l y  a c t i v i t i e s .  W o r k  p a u s e d  d u e  t o
C o v i d - 1 9 .

R e b e k a h
S u t c l i f f e

1 2 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D P 4 1 5 D e v e l o p  t h e  L o c a l  C u l t u r a l  E d u c a t i o n
P a r t n e r s h i p s

K a t r i n a
S t e p h e n s

C l l r  B
B r o w n r i d g e

6 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 6 / 2 0 2 0 F u n d i n g  h a s  b e e n  s e c u r e d  t o  a p p o i n t  a
c o - o r d i n a t o r .  C o r e  g r o u p  h a s  b r o k e n  i n  t o
t a s k  t e a m s  t o  p r o g r e s s  k e y  a c t i v i t i e s .
C o n t i n u i n g  t o  e x p l o r e  m a t c h  f u n d i n g
o p t i o n s  t o  r e l e a s e  C u r i o u s  M i n d s
d e v e l o p m e n t  f u n d s  t o  p r o g r e s s  o b j e c t i v e s .
W o r k  p a u s e d  d u e  t o  C o v i d - 1 9 .

R e b e k a h
S u t c l i f f e

1 2 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

2 6  o f  4 9

P
age 66



R e f A c t i o n s A c t i o n
U p d a t e r

C a b i n e t
M e m b e r

D a t e
C o m m e n t s

R e v i e w e d

D u e  D a t e F o r e c a s t e d
C o m p l e t i o n

D a t e

C o m m e n t s A c t i o n
O w n e r

D i r e c t o r
A p p r o v e

D a t e

A s s o c i a t e d
H i g h - l e v e l
R i s k s

C o r p o r a t e  O b j e c t i v e  2  :  T h r i v i n g  c o m m u n i t i e s  w h e r e  e v e r y o n e  i s  e m p o w e r e d  t o  d o  t h e i r  b i t
D A 1 0 4 I m p l e m e n t  G M  L e a r n i n g  D i s a b i l i t i e s

p r i o r i t i e s  e n s u r i n g  a l l  1 0  p r i o r i t i e s
b e c o m e  B A U

C h a r l o t t e
W a l k e r

C l l r  Z
C h a u h a n

1 1 / 1 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 1 2 / 2 0 2 0 A l l  1 0  G M  L e a r n i n g  D i s a b i l i t i e s  p r i o r i t i e s
a r e  e m b e d d e d  i n  t h e  L o c a l  L D  s t r a t e g y .
T h i s  i s  o n g o i n g  w o r k  a n d  f o r m s  p a r t  o f  t h e
w o r k p l a n  a n d  t h e  l o c a l  L e a r n i n g
D i s a b i l i t i e s  s t r a t e g y  i n  O l d h a m .  W e  a r e  i n
t h e  p r o c e s s  o f  c o l l a t i n g  a n d  c r o s s
r e f e r e n c i n g  G M  L D  D e l i v e r y  B o a r d  p o s t
C o v i d  e x p e c t a t i o n s  t o  a l i g n  l o c a l l y .

M a r k
W a r r e n

1 9 / 1 / 2 0 2 1

D A 1 1 2 R e v i e w  o f  t h e  c o m m u n i t y  s e r v i c e s
s t a t u t o r y  r e q u i r e m e n t s  a n d  c o m p l i a n c e
t o  i n c l u d e ; - C a r e  A c t - S o c i a l  c a r e  G r e e n
p a p e r - N H S  1 0 - y e a r  p l a n
c o m p l i a n c e - L P S ( L i b e r t y  P r o t e c t i o n
S a f e g u a r d i n g ) / M C A ( M e n t a l  C a p a c i t y
A c t )

D a v i d
G a r n e r

C l l r  Z
C h a u h a n

1 2 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 1 2 / 2 0 1 9 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 2 T h i s  c o n t i n u e s  a s  a n  o n g o i n g  a r e a  o f  w o r k
t h a t  r e q u i r e s  o n g o i n g  m o n i t o r i n g  o f
l e g i s l a t i o n  a n d  s t a t u t o r y  g u i d a n c e
i m p a c t i n g  o n  t h e  w o r k  o f  c o m m u n i t y  h e a l t h
&  s o c i a l  c a r e .  I n  2 0 2 1  a  n u m b e r  o f
s i g n i f i c a n t  c h a n g e s  a r e  t o  b e  i m p l e m e n t e d
a c r o s s  h e a l t h  &  s o c i a l  i n c l u d i n g  t h e  h e a l t h
&  c a r e  w h i t e  p a p e r ,  A S C  g r e e n  p a p e r ,  M H
r e f o r m  &  I n t e g r a t e d  C a r e  S y s t e m s .

M a r k
W a r r e n

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D A 1 1 5 N e w  l e g i s l a t i v e  f r a m e w o r k s  r e l a t i n g  t o
M C A ( M e n t a l  C a p a c i t y  A c t ) / L P S ( L i b e r t y
P r o t e c t i o n  S a f e g u a r d i n g )  a r e
e m b e d d e d  c o n f i d e n t l y  i n  p r a c t i c e  a n d
l e a d s  t o  a n  i n c r e a s e  i n  C o P  D o L s  i n
c o m m u n i t y  s e t t i n g s

H a y l e y
E c c l e s

C l l r  Z
C h a u h a n

1 3 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 B I A  t r a i n i n g  n o w  c o m p l e t e d  a n d  r e f r e s h e r
t r a i n i n g  c o m p l e t e d .   F o c u s  w o r k  t o  b e
c o m m e n c e d  i n  i m p l e m e n t i n g  L P S
t r a n s i t i o n .   M C A  t r a i n i n g  t o  c o m m e n c e  i n
m e n t a l  h e a l t h  s e r v i c e s .

M a r k
W a r r e n

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D A 1 2 1 M o n i t o r  t h e  e f f e c t i v e n e s s  o f  t h e  n e w
R A S  a p p r o a c h  a n d  f u r t h e r  d e v e l o p  o u r
p e r s o n a l i s e d  a p p r o a c h  t o  o u r
c u s t o m e r " s  h e a l t h  a n d  s o c i a l  c a r e
j o u r n e y .

K i r s t y
L i t t l e w o o d

C l l r  Z
C h a u h a n

3 0 / 4 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 6 / 2 0 2 0 R e p o r t i n g  a r r a n g e m e n t s  n o w  i n  p l a c e  t o
m o n i t o r  o u t p u t s  f r o m  t h e  R A S  a n d  s u b
g r o u p s  e s t a b l i s h e d  t o  l e a d  o n  r e v i e w i n g
t h e  d a t a ,  t o  e n s u r e  t h e  s y s t e m  i s  e f f e c t i v e .

M a r k
W a r r e n

1 5 / 7 / 2 0 2 0

2 7  o f  4 9

P
age 67



R e f A c t i o n s A c t i o n
U p d a t e r

C a b i n e t
M e m b e r

D a t e
C o m m e n t s

R e v i e w e d

D u e  D a t e F o r e c a s t e d
C o m p l e t i o n

D a t e

C o m m e n t s A c t i o n
O w n e r

D i r e c t o r
A p p r o v e

D a t e

A s s o c i a t e d
H i g h - l e v e l
R i s k s

D A 1 2 3 O M B C  t o  c o n t i n u e  t o  t a k e  a  l e a d  G M
r o l e  i n  t h e  G M  t r a n s f o r m a t i o n  a g e n d a ,
w o r k i n g  a c r o s s  t h e  c o r e  f e a t u r e s  o f  t h e
G M  A S C  T r a n s f o r m a t i o n  m o d e l  ( w h i c h
i n c l u d e s  s u p p o r t i n g  p e o p l e  t o  l i v e
i n d e p e n d e n t  l i v e s  f o r  l o n g e r  i n  t h e i r
o w n  h o m e s )

D a v i d
G a r n e r

C l l r  Z
C h a u h a n

1 2 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 2 T h i s  i s  a n  o n g o i n g  p i e c e  o f  w o r k  t h a t
i n c l u d e s  i n v o l v e m e n t  i n  a  w i d e  r a n g e  o f
d i f f e r e n t  G M  T r a n s f o r m a t i o n  A g e n d a s  t h a t
r e f l e c t  t h e  p r i o r i t i e s  o f  t h e  O l d h a m  L o c a l i t y
P l a n .  T h i s  w i l l  r e m a i n  a  k e y  a r e a  o f  w o r k
t h r o u g h o u t  2 0 2 1 - 2 2  w i t h  s i g n i f i c a n t  a c t i v i t y
r e l a t i n g  t o  h e a l t h  &  s o c i a l  c a r e  a c r o s s  G M .

M a r k
W a r r e n

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D A 1 2 5 A c h i e v e m e n t  o f  o u r  j o i n t  v i s i o n  a n d
p r i o r i t i e s  f o r  t h e  c o m m u n i t y  h e a l t h  a n d
a d u l t  s o c i a l  c a r e  s e r v i c e ,  c o v e r i n g  k e y
a r e a s ,  s u c h  a s  s t a k e h o l d e r
r e l a t i o n s h i p ,  a c c e s s  t o  s e r v i c e s ,
c o m m u n i t y  e n a b l e m e n t  a n d  I M T .

M a r k
W a r r e n

C l l r  Z
C h a u h a n

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 P r i o r i t i e s  c o n t i n u e  t o  b e  d e v e l o p e d  a n d
r e m a i n  a t  m u l t i p l e  s t a g e s  o f
i m p l e m e n t a t i o n .  T h i s  f o r m s  a  k e y  p a r t  o f
t h e  C - 1 9  r e c o v e r y  p l a n n i n g  a n d  C H A S C
b u s i n e s s  p l a n .  T h i s  i s  a n  o n g o i n g  p r i o r i t y
f o r  C H A S C  w i t h  a  f o c u s  o n  t h e  o n g o i n g
d e v e l o p m e n t  o f  t h e  i n t e g r a t e d  a p p r o a c h  t o
h e a l t h  a n d  s o c i a l  c a r e  b o t h  l o c a l l y  a n d  a s
w e  r e s p o n d  t o  a  r a n g e  o f  n a t i o n a l  p o l i c i e s
i n c l

M a r k
W a r r e n

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D C 1 6 7 D e l i v e r  o n  t h e  c o r p o r a t e  p a r e n t i n g
s t r a t e g y  t o  s i g n i f i c a n t l y  i m p r o v e  t h e  l i f e
c h a n c e s  o f  e v e r y  c h i l d  i n  O l d h a m " s
c a r e .

E l a i n e
D e v a n e y

C l l r  E
M o o r e s

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 2 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 2 A  r e c e n t l y  e s t a b l i s h e d  M u l t i - a g e n c y
P l a n n i n g  a n d  S u p p o r t  P a n e l  ( M a P a S )
c o m p r o m i s i n g  o f  e d u c a t i o n ,  h e a l t h  a n d
s o c i a l  c a r e  i s  i d e n t i f y i n g  a n d  p u t t i n g  i n
p l a c e  p a c k a g e s  o f  s u p p o r t  f o r  C h i l d r e n
L o o k e d  A f t e r  i d e n t i f i e d  a s  r e q u i r i n g
a d d i t i o n a l  s u p p o r t  w i t h  t h e i r  e d u c a t i o n  a n d
c h i l d r e n  a n d  y o u n g  p e o p l e  w h o s e
e d u c a t i o n  h a s  b e e n  s i g n i f i c a n t l y  i m p a c t e d
b y  C O V I D

G e r a r d
J o n e s

3 0 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

2 8  o f  4 9

P
age 68



R e f A c t i o n s A c t i o n
U p d a t e r

C a b i n e t
M e m b e r

D a t e
C o m m e n t s

R e v i e w e d

D u e  D a t e F o r e c a s t e d
C o m p l e t i o n

D a t e

C o m m e n t s A c t i o n
O w n e r

D i r e c t o r
A p p r o v e

D a t e

A s s o c i a t e d
H i g h - l e v e l
R i s k s

D C 1 7 1 C o l l a b o r a t e  w i t h  t h e  E a r l y  I n t e r v e n t i o n
a n d  P r e v e n t i o n  R e v i e w  i n  t h e
d e v e l o p m e n t  o f  O l d h a m  F a m i l y
C o n n e c t  t o  e n s u r e  t h a t
r e c o m m e n d a t i o n s  a r e  i m p l e m e n t e d  i n
l i n e  w i t h  o u r  a m b i t i o n  f o r  C h i l d r e n  i n
O l d h a m

E l a i n e
D e v a n e y

C l l r  A
C h a d d e r t o n

1 4 / 4 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 T h e  r e v i e w  f i n d i n g s  a r e  b e i n g  u s e d  t o
i n f o r m  t h e  d e v e l o p m e n t  o f  t h e  O l d h a m
F a m i l y  c o n n e c t  m o d e l .  A  g r o u p  h a s  b e e n
c o n v e n e d  t o  s t e e r  t h e  d e v e l o p m e n t  o f  t h e
t e n d e r  f o r  t h e  c o n t r a c t e d  l o w e r  l e v e l
s e r v i c e s  a n d  c o n n e c t i v i t y  w i t h  O l d h a m
F a m i l y  C o n n e c t .

G e r a r d
J o n e s

3 0 / 4 / 2 0 2 0

D C 1 9 0 S u p p o r t  s c h o o l s  t o  s e t  u p  b r e a k f a s t
c l u b s  i n  e v e r y  w a r d ,  a n d  c o n t i n u e
p r o j e c t s  t o  t a c k l e  h o l i d a y  h u n g e r

A m a n d a
R i c h a r d s o n

C l l r  S
M u s h t a q

2 0 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 S c h o o l s  a n d  s e t t i n g s  c l o s e d  o n  2 3  M a r c h
2 0 2 0  o w i n g  t o  C o v i d - 1 9 .  A l t e r n a t i v e  m o d e l
f o r  F S M  f e e d i n g  i s  i n  p l a c e  l o c a l l y  a n d
n a t i o n a l l y .  T h e  g o v e r n m e n t  h a s
a n n o u n c e d  a  p a c k a g e  o f  s u p p o r t  f o r  p u p i l s
i n  r e c e i p t  o f  F S M  d u r i n g  s u m m e r  h o l i d a y s
a n d  s c h o o l s  a r e  e n g a g e d  w i t h  t h e
i m p l e m e n t a t i o n  o f  t h i s .  A  r e p o r t  w i l l  g o  t o
P o r t f o l i o  i n  d u e  c o u r s e  r e :  b r e a k f a s t  c l u b s .

G e r a r d
J o n e s

3 0 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D C 1 9 9 R e v i e w  o u r  f o s t e r i n g  a n d  a d o p t i o n
s e r v i c e  t o  c r e a t e  m o r e ,  s t a b l e  p l a c e s
f o r  c h i l d r e n  l o o k e d  a f t e r ,  i n c l u d i n g
t h r o u g h  a n  i n c e n t i v e  s c h e m e  f o r
r e s i d e n t s  t o  b e c o m e  f o s t e r  c a r e r s

E l a i n e
D e v a n e y

C l l r  E
M o o r e s

1 1 / 1 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 5 9 %  o f  C h i l d r e n  i n  C a r e  a r e  p l a c e d  w i t h
O l d h a m  F o s t e r i n g  S e r v i c e .  6 6 %  o f  c h i l d r e n
p l a c e d  o u t  o f  b o r o u g h  a r e  w i t h  o u r  o w n
f o s t e r  c a r e r s ,  p l a c e d  w i t h  p a r e n t s  o r  i n
p r e - a d o p t i v e  p l a c e m e n t s  w h i c h  r e m a i n s
s t r o n g .  W i t h i n  t h e  O l d h a m  R e g i o n a l
A d o p t i o n  A g e n c y  c h i l d r e n  a r e  m a t c h e d  i n
s u i t a b l e  p l a c e m e n t s  t h a t  a r e  s t a b l e  a n d
w e l l  s u p p o r t e d  b y  u s .

G e r a r d
J o n e s

1 4 / 1 / 2 0 2 1

2 9  o f  4 9

P
age 69



R e f A c t i o n s A c t i o n
U p d a t e r

C a b i n e t
M e m b e r

D a t e
C o m m e n t s

R e v i e w e d

D u e  D a t e F o r e c a s t e d
C o m p l e t i o n

D a t e

C o m m e n t s A c t i o n
O w n e r

D i r e c t o r
A p p r o v e

D a t e

A s s o c i a t e d
H i g h - l e v e l
R i s k s

D C 2 0 0 C o n t i n u e  t o  w o r k  t o  e n s u r e  t h a t  a l l  o u r
C h i l d r e n  L o o k e d  A f t e r  a r e  p l a c e d  i n  t h e
b o r o u g h

E l a i n e
D e v a n e y

C l l r  E
M o o r e s

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 C h i l d r e n  L o o k e d  A f t e r  a r e  p l a c e d  w i t h i n
O l d h a m  r e s i d e n t i a l  a n d  f o s t e r i n g  p r o v i s i o n
w h e r e  s a f e  t o  d o  s o .  R e g u l a r  r e v i e w s  o f
o u t  o f  b o r o u g h  p l a c e m e n t s  r e m a i n s  a
p r i o r i t y  f o r  t h e  s e r v i c e .  T o  i m p r o v e
p l a c e m e n t  s t a b i l i t y  w e  h a v e  r e v i e w e d  o u r
r e s i d e n t i a l  o f f e r  a n d  d e v e l o p e d  o u r
S u f f i c i e n c y  S t r a t e g y  t o  m e e t  f u t u r e  n e e d s
s o  c h i l d r e n  c a n  r e m a i n  c l o s e  t o  O l d h a m .

G e r a r d
J o n e s

3 0 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D E 1 2 4 D e l i v e r  p i p e l i n e  o f  1 , 0 0 0  n e w  h o m e s
a c r o s s  t h e  b o r o u g h  #  w i t h  a  r a n g e  o f
h i g h  q u a l i t y  a f f o r d a b l e  a n d  a s p i r a t i o n a l
h o u s i n g

E m m a
B a r t o n

C l l r  H
R o b e r t s

9 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 2 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 2 S u c c e s s f u l  B r o w n f i e l d  L a n d  F u n d
a l l o c a t i o n  f o r  g r a n t  t o  d e l i v e r  5 1 3  h o m e s  a t
S o u t h l i n k ,  D e r k e r  a n d  C r o s s b a n k .  D e l i v e r y
S t r a t e g y  c o m m i s s i o n e d  f o r  1 2  c o u n c i l
o w n e d  s i t e s  w i t h  c a p a c i t y  f o r  1 2 0 0  h o m e s .
O v e r  2 0 0  n e w  a f f o r d a b l e  h o m e s  s e t  f o r
c o m p l e t i o n  i n  2 0 2 1 / 2 .

H e l e n
L o c k w o o d

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D E 1 2 6 C o m m i t  t o  p r e s e r v i n g  a n d  e n h a n c i n g
t h e  q u a l i t y  o f  o u r  e n v i r o n m e n t .
P r o s e c u t i n g  f l y  t i p p e r s  a n d  p e o p l e  w h o
d r o p  l i t t e r

C a r o l
B r o w n

C l l r  B
B r o w n r i d g e

1 4 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 E n f o r c e m e n t  w o r k  r e a c t i n g  t o  s e r v i c e
r e q u e s t s  c o n t i n u e s  a n d  a r e a  c l e a n i n g  i s
d i r e c t e d  t o  c o v e r  h o t s p o t s .

H e l e n
L o c k w o o d

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D E 1 3 2 R e v i e w ,  a d o p t  a n d  i m p l e m e n t  a  n e w
O l d h a m  H o u s i n g  S t r a t e g y  2 0 1 9

E m m a
B a r t o n

C l l r  H
R o b e r t s

9 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 2 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 2 N e w  H o m e l e s s n e s s  P l e d g e s  a g r e e d  w i t h
O S H P  c e n t r e d  a r o u n d  f o u r  t h e m e s  o f
f i n a n c i a l  i n c l u s i o n ;  a  c o r p o r a t e
c o m m i t m e n t  t o  c a r e  l e a v e r s ;  p r e v e n t i n g
a n d  r e s p o n d i n g  t o  d o m e s t i c  a b u s e ;  a n d
t e n a n c y  s u p p o r t .

P r i m r o s e  B a n k  c o m p l e t e d  a n d  h o m e s  n o w
o c c u p i e d .   S I " s  b e i n g  c o m m i s s i o n e d  f o r
H R A  s i t e s .

H e l e n
L o c k w o o d

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

3 0  o f  4 9

P
age 70



R e f A c t i o n s A c t i o n
U p d a t e r

C a b i n e t
M e m b e r

D a t e
C o m m e n t s

R e v i e w e d

D u e  D a t e F o r e c a s t e d
C o m p l e t i o n

D a t e

C o m m e n t s A c t i o n
O w n e r

D i r e c t o r
A p p r o v e

D a t e

A s s o c i a t e d
H i g h - l e v e l
R i s k s

D E 1 4 0 L o c a l  P l a n  R e v i e w  ( I s s u e s  a n d
O p t i o n s )

E m m a
B a r t o n

C l l r  H
R o b e r t s

9 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 C o n s u l t a t i o n  o n  I s s u e s  a n d  O p t i o n s  i s
s c h e d u l e d  f o r  s u m m e r  2 0 2 1 .  A  r e v i s e d
L o c a l  S c h e m e  w i l l  b e  p r e p a r e d ,
i n c o r p o r a t i n g  a n  a m e n d e d  t i m e t a b l e  f o r  t h e
L o c a l  P l a n ,  o n c e  t h e  t i m e t a b l e  f o r  P l a c e s
f o r  E v e r y o n e  h a s  b e e n  a g r e e d  ( s e e
a b o v e ) .

H e l e n
L o c k w o o d

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D E 1 4 4 D e v e l o p  a  j o i n t  p r o g r a m m e  o f  w o r k s  t o
i m p r o v e  A i r  Q u a l i t y  a c r o s s  t h e  B o r o u g h
a n d  G r e a t e r  M a n c h e s t e r  a r e a

C a r o l
B r o w n

C l l r  B
B r o w n r i d g e

1 4 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 C o n s u l t a t i o n  r e s p o n s e  c u r r e n t l y  b e i n g
a n a l y s e d  a n d  i m p a c t  o n  t h e  o r i g i n a l
b u s i n e s s  c a s e  a s s e s e d .  F i n a l  r e s p o n s e  t o
b e  s u b m i t t e d  s u m m e r  2 0 2 1  t o  G o v e r n m e n t
f o r  C l e a n  A i r  Z o n e .

H e l e n
L o c k w o o d

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D E 1 6 9 I m p r o v i n g  P r i v a t e  R e n t e d  S e c t o r
s t a n d a r d s

E m m a
B a r t o n

C l l r  H
R o b e r t s

9 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 2 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 2 T h e  E m p t y  H o m e s  P i l o t  d e l i v e r e d  3
r e f u r b i s h e d  p r o p e r t i e s .  C o n v e r s a t i o n s
h a v e  b e e n  h a d  w i t h  H E  t o  r e n e w  t h e
s c h e m e  a n d  b i d  f o r  m o r e  f u n d i n g ,  t h i s  i s
b e i n g  t a k e n  f o r w a r d  H E  r e p s .  T h e  B o n d
S c h e m e  c o n t i n u e s  t o  w o r k  w i t h  L a n d l o r d s .
A  P R S  G r o u p  h a s  a l s o  b e e n  s e t  u p ,
c h a i r e d  b y  C l l r  R o b e r t s  t o  i n t r o d u c e  a
T e n a n t s  C h a r t e r  a n d  o t h e r  P R S
i n t e r v e n t i o n  a f t e r  e l e c t i o n s .

H e l e n
L o c k w o o d

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D E 1 8 8 E s t a b l i s h  t h e  O l d h a m  C o d e ,  s e t t i n g  o u r
e x p e c t a t i o n s  f o r  t h e  q u a l i t y  o f  n e w
h o m e s

E m m a
B a r t o n

C l l r  S
F i e l d i n g

9 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 6 / 2 0 2 0 C o n s u l t a t i o n  o n  I s s u e s  a n d  O p t i o n s  i s
s c h e d u l e d  f o r  s u m m e r  2 0 2 1 .  A  r e v i s e d
L o c a l  S c h e m e  w i l l  b e  p r e p a r e d ,
i n c o r p o r a t i n g  a n  a m e n d e d  t i m e t a b l e  f o r  t h e
L o c a l  P l a n ,  o n c e  t h e  t i m e t a b l e  f o r  P l a c e s
f o r  E v e r y o n e  h a s  b e e n  a g r e e d  ( s e e
a b o v e ) .

H e l e n
L o c k w o o d

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D E 1 8 9 W o r k  w i t h  s t a k e h o l d e r s  a n d  t h e  w i d e r
c o m m u n i t y  t o  d e v e l o p  v o l u n t a r y
s o l u t i o n s  t o  t h e  p r o b l e m  o f  v e h i c l e  u s e
a r o u n d  s c h o o l s  a n d  v e h i c l e  i d l i n g ;  c i v i l
e n f o r c e m e n t  [ a l s o  s e e  D E 1 9 2 ]

E m m a
B a r t o n

C l l r  S
F i e l d i n g

8 / 4 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 6 / 2 0 2 0 R e s o l v e d . H e l e n
L o c k w o o d

2 0 / 1 0 / 2 0 2 0

3 1  o f  4 9

P
age 71



R e f A c t i o n s A c t i o n
U p d a t e r

C a b i n e t
M e m b e r

D a t e
C o m m e n t s

R e v i e w e d

D u e  D a t e F o r e c a s t e d
C o m p l e t i o n

D a t e

C o m m e n t s A c t i o n
O w n e r

D i r e c t o r
A p p r o v e

D a t e

A s s o c i a t e d
H i g h - l e v e l
R i s k s

D E 1 9 2 W o r k  w i t h  s t a k e h o l d e r s  a n d  t h e  w i d e r
c o m m u n i t y  t o  d e v e l o p  v o l u n t a r y
s o l u t i o n s  t o  t h e  p r o b l e m  o f  v e h i c l e  u s e
a r o u n d  s c h o o l s  a n d  v e h i c l e  i d l i n g ;
v e h i c l e  e m m i s s i o n s  [ a l s o  s e e  D E 1 8 9 ]

C a r o l
B r o w n

C l l r  B
B r o w n r i d g e

1 4 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 W o r k  t o  s u p p o r t  c l e a n e r  a i r  a r o u n d
s c h o o l s  a n d  t h e  a p p r o p r i a t e  u s e  o f
l e g i s l a t i o n  i s  c u r r e n t l y  u n d e r w a y .

H e l e n
L o c k w o o d

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D P 2 9 3 L e a d  t h e  s t r a t e g i c  d e v e l o p m e n t  o f
p l a c e  b a s e d  i n t e g r a t i o n  a n d  r e f o r m
a c r o s s  t h e  b o r o u g h  a n d  i m p l e m e n t
p l a n n i n g  f o r  t h e  G M  r e f o r m  w h i t e  p a p e r .

N i c o l a
W h i t e

C l l r  S
F i e l d i n g

2 0 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 2 C o m m u n i t i e s  b o a r d  e s t a b l i s h e d .   P B I
M e m b e r s  b r i e f i n g  s e s s i o n s  c o m p l e t e d  f o r
e a c h  o f  t h e  f i v e  a r e a s  a n d  u p d a t e  p r o v i d e d
t o  O v e r v i e w  a n d  S c r u t i n y .
D a t e  e x t e n d e d  t o  r e f l e c t  P B I  f o r m s  p a r t  o f
C o m m u n i t i e s  P r o g r a m m e  a n d  w o r k  h a s
c o m m e n c e d  i n  l i n e  w i t h  a p p r o a c h  f o r
d e l i v e r i n g  t r a n s f o r m a t i o n a l  c h a n g e .

R e b e k a h
S u t c l i f f e

2 0 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D P 3 5 9 W o r k  w i t h  S e n i o r  O f f i c e r s  a n d  E l e c t e d
M e m b e r s  t o  d e v e l o p  a  n a r r a t i v e  f o r
b o t h  t h e  p l a c e  a n d  t h e  o r g a n i s a t i o n  t h a t
r e f l e c t s  o u r  a m b i t i o n s ,  o u r  p r i o r i t i e s  a n d
o u r  v a l u e s .

S h e l l e y
K i p l i n g

C l l r  S
F i e l d i n g

1 3 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 W o r k  o n  a  n a r r a t i v e  f o r  O l d h a m  c o n t i n u e s
a n d  w i l l  f o r m  p a r t  o f  t h e  c o r p o r a t e  r e c o v e r y
p l a n  c u r r e n t l y  g o i n g  t h r o u g h  s i g n  o f f
p r o c e s s e s

R e b e k a h
S u t c l i f f e

1 3 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D P 3 6 3 W o r k  w i t h  O l d h a m  C o l i s e u m  a n d  A r t s
C o u n c i l  E n g l a n d  t o  a g r e e  a  s u s t a i n a b l e
m o d e l  f o r  t h e  f u t u r e  o f  p e r f o r m i n g  a r t s
i n  t h e  b o r o u g h

S u b n u m
H a r i f f - K h a n

C l l r  S
F i e l d i n g

6 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 6 / 2 0 2 0 S t i l l  a w a i t i n g  o u t c o m e  o f  T o w n s  F u n d
A p p l i c a t i o n .  D e v e l o p m e n t  o f  C u l t u r a l
S t r a t e g y  ( s c h e d u l e d  c o m p l e t i o n  e n d  A p r i l
2 1 )  w i l l  t a k e  a c c o u n t  o f  p o t e n t i a l  o f f e r e d  b y
a  n e w  p e r f o r m a n c e  s p a c e

R e b e k a h
S u t c l i f f e

1 2 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D P 3 6 6 R e v i e w  o f  p r e v e n t i o n  a n d  e a r l y
i n t e r v e n t i o n  t o  i n f o r m  r e c o m m i s s i o n i n g
o f  E a r l y  H e l p

L i z  L y o n s C l l r  A
C h a d d e r t o n

6 / 1 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 1 2 / 2 0 2 0 P r e f e r r e d  p r o v i d e r s  a p p o i n t e d  a n d
m o b i l i s a t i o n  c o m p l e t e ,  s e r v i c e s  n o w  l i v e
u n d e r  n e w  c o n t r a c t  a g r e e m e n t s .

R e b e k a h
S u t c l i f f e

1 1 / 1 / 2 0 2 1

3 2  o f  4 9

P
age 72



R e f A c t i o n s A c t i o n
U p d a t e r

C a b i n e t
M e m b e r

D a t e
C o m m e n t s

R e v i e w e d

D u e  D a t e F o r e c a s t e d
C o m p l e t i o n

D a t e

C o m m e n t s A c t i o n
O w n e r

D i r e c t o r
A p p r o v e

D a t e

A s s o c i a t e d
H i g h - l e v e l
R i s k s

D P 4 1 3 D e v e l o p  N o r t h e r n  R o o t s ,  b u i l d i n g
r e l a t i o n s h i p s  w i t h  p a r t n e r s  a n d
s t a k e h o l d e r s ,  a n d  c o n s u l t i n g  w i t h
r e s i d e n t s .  [ A n  a c t i o n  i n  t h e  E c o n o m y
p o r t f o l i o  r e  t h e  A l e x a n d r a  P a r k  d e p o t
e x i s t s  #  D E 1 4 2 ]

A n n a  D a
S i l v a

C l l r  S
F i e l d i n g

1 2 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 9 / 2 0 2 0 N R  c h a r i t a b l e  c o m p a n y  i s
o p e r a t i o n a l , a p p l i e d  f o r  c h a r i t a b l e
r e g i s t r a t i o n  &  r e c r u i t i n g  f i n a l  b o a r d
m e m b e r s . C o n s u l t a t i o n  w i t h
r e s i d e n t s , p a r t n e r s  &  s t a k e h o l d e r s
o n g o i n g . F u n d i n g  a p p  t o  T o w n s  F u n d  s u b m
i n  D e c  2 0 ; r e s u l t  p e n d i n g . G r a n t s  r e c e i v e d
f r o m  G r e e n  R e c o v e r y  C h a l l e n g e  F u n d  &
P l a c e s  t o  R i d e . D e s i g n  T e a m  t o  d e v e l o p  &
s u b m i t  p l a n n i n g  a p p  n o w  i n  c o n t r a c t

R e b e k a h
S u t c l i f f e

1 3 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D P 4 1 6 E n c o u r a g e  w i d e r  u s e  o f  o u r  e x c e l l e n t
l e i s u r e  f a c i l i t i e s ,  a n d  b e t t e r  f o o d
c h o i c e s  t h r o u g h  H e a l t h y  O l d h a m
p r o m o t i o n s  t a r g e t i n g  t h o s e  w h o  b e n e f i t
t h e  m o s t

K a t r i n a
S t e p h e n s

C l l r  Z
C h a u h a n

6 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 6 / 2 0 2 0 P r o m o t i n g  p h y s i c a l  a c t i v i t y  o p p o r t u n i t i e s
a n d  h e a l t h i e r  f o o d  c h o i c e s  a r e  k e y  t h e m e s
i n  t h e  d e v e l o p i n g  h e a l t h y  w e i g h t  a n d
p h y s i c a l  a c t i v i t y  s t r a t e g y ,  i n c l u d i n g  l o c a l
a d o p t i o n  o f  t h e  % T h a t  C o u n t s "  c a m p a i g n .
W o r k  i s  u n d e r w a y  t h r o u g h  t h e  L D P  t o
d e v e l o p  a n d  p r o m o t e  a  w i d e r  l e i s u r e  a n d
p h y s i c a l  a c t i v i t y  o f f e r  f o r  t h e  b o r o u g h .
W o r k  p a u s e d  d u e  t o  C o v i d - 1 9 .

R e b e k a h
S u t c l i f f e

1 2 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

C o r p o r a t e  O b j e c t i v e  3  :  C o o p e r a t i v e  s e r v i c e s  w i t h  p e o p l e  a n d  s o c i a l  v a l u e  a t  t h e i r  h e a r t
D A 1 0 5 L e a d  t h e  w o r k  b e i n g  u n d e r t a k e n  w i t h

p a r t n e r  o r g a n i s a t i o n s  t o  i m p l e m e n t  a
n e w  a p p r o a c h  t o  t h e  d e l i v e r y  o f
c o m m u n i t y  e n a b l e m e n t

D a v i d
G a r n e r

C l l r  Z
C h a u h a n

1 2 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 2 T h e  C o m m u n i t y  E n a b l e m e n t  P r o g r a m m e  i s
o n g o i n g .   T h e  e n a b l e m e n t  t e a m s  a r e  a  k e y
p a r t  o f  t h e  r e s p o n s e  t o  C - 1 9  a n d  p l a n s  a r e
i n  p l a c e  t o  e n s u r e  t h a t  t h e  p r o v i s i o n  o f
c o m m u n i t y  e n a b l e m e n t  m e e t s  t h e  l o n g e r
t e r m  r e q u i r e m e n t s  o f  O l d h a m  r e s i d e n t s  a s
w e l l  a s  b e i n g  a b l e  t o  r e s p o n d  o n  a n
o n g o i n g  b a s i s  t o  t h e  C - 1 9  p a n d e m i c .  T h i s
i s  o n g o i n g .

M a r k
W a r r e n

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

3 3  o f  4 9

P
age 73



R e f A c t i o n s A c t i o n
U p d a t e r

C a b i n e t
M e m b e r

D a t e
C o m m e n t s

R e v i e w e d

D u e  D a t e F o r e c a s t e d
C o m p l e t i o n

D a t e

C o m m e n t s A c t i o n
O w n e r

D i r e c t o r
A p p r o v e

D a t e

A s s o c i a t e d
H i g h - l e v e l
R i s k s

D A 1 0 8 I m p l e m e n t a t i o n  o f  t h e  p h a s e  2  c l u s t e r
a n d  s p e c i a l i s e d  s e r v i c e  i n t e g r a t i o n
p r o g r a m m e  t o  r e a l i s e  t r u e  i n t e g r a t e d
s e r v i c e  d e l i v e r y  ( l i n k s  t o  s e v e r a l
b u s i n e s s  p l a n n i n g  a c t i o n s )

K a t i e
L o c k e y

C l l r  Z
C h a u h a n

1 4 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 D u e  t o  C - 1 9  w e  h a v e  e x p e r i e n c e d  d e l a y s ,
w h i l s t  p r i o r i t i s i n g  h o s p i t a l  d i s c h a r g e
a l o n g s i d e  c u r r e n t  w o r k l o a d s .  W e  a r e
c u r r e n t l y  i m p l e m e n t i n g  a n d  a l i g n i n g  t h e
w o r k  o f  s t r a n d  3 a ;  t h e  N e i g h b o u r h o o d
S e r v i c e  m o d e l ,  t o  i n f o r m  t h e  r e s t r u c t u r e  o f
C H A S C  s e r v i c e s  a l i g n e d  w i t h  P C N ' s .  T h e
p r e s e n t  f o c u s  i s  w i t h  N o r t h  P C N  a n d
s u p p o r t i n g  t h e  f o r m a t i o n  o f  a  S h a d o w
b o a r d .

M a r k
W a r r e n

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D A 1 1 0 O v e r s e e  t h e  t r a n s i t i o n  o f  c l i n i c a l
s e r v i c e s  t o  N C A ( N o r t h e r n  C a r e
A l l i a n c e )  a n d  e n s u r e  O M B C  s t a f f  a n d
p r i o r i t i e s  a r e  e m b e d d e d  w i t h i n  t h e
r e v i s e d  g o v e r n a n c e  a n d  e m p l o y e r
m o d e l  a r r a n g e m e n t s

M a r k
W a r r e n

C l l r  Z
C h a u h a n

8 / 1 0 / 2 0 1 9 3 1 / 8 / 2 0 1 9 3 1 / 8 / 2 0 1 9 T r a n s f e r  o f  s t a f f  s u c c e s s f u l l y  t o o k  p l a c e  o n
1  J u l y .  T h e  f i r s t  1 0 0  d a y  c h e c k  h a s  b e e n
c o m p l e t e d  a n d  w o r k  c o n t i n u e s  t o  m o n i t o r
t h e  i m p a c t  o f  t h e  t r a n s f e r .

M a r k
W a r r e n

3 0 / 4 / 2 0 2 0

D A 1 1 1 D e v e l o p m e n t  o f  a n  O l d h a m  C a r e s
S t r a t e g i c  C o m m i s s i o n i n g  F u n c t i o n
( S C F )  w i t h  t h e  C C G  t o  e n a b l e  t r a n s i t i o n
t o  a  s i n g l e  c o m m i s s i o n i n g  f u n c t i o n

M i k e
B a r k e r

C l l r  Z
C h a u h a n

1 9 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 1 2 / 2 0 1 9 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 2 W o r k  c o n t i n u e s  w i t h  a n  a d j u s t e d  f o c u s  i n
l i g h t  o f  t h e  W h i t e  P a p e r  u n v e i l e d  i n  F e b .
W e  a r e  n o w  w o r k i n g  t o  a  n a t i o n a l
t i m e t a b l e .  T h e  C C G  m o v e  f r o m  E H  i s
c o m p l e t e ,  t h e  n e w  g o v e r n a n c e  s t r u c t u r e  i s
d e v e l o p e d  i n  d r a f t  a n d  w e  a r e  s e e k i n g
o r g a n i s a t i o n a l  a p p r o v a l s  b y  t h e  e n d  o f  Q 1 .
S t a f f i n g  s t r u c t u r e s  a n d  p e o p l e  i m p a c t s  w i l l
b e  d e t e r m i n e d  n o w  b y  n a t i o n a l  t i m e l i n e s

M a r k
W a r r e n

1 9 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

3 4  o f  4 9

P
age 74



R e f A c t i o n s A c t i o n
U p d a t e r

C a b i n e t
M e m b e r

D a t e
C o m m e n t s

R e v i e w e d

D u e  D a t e F o r e c a s t e d
C o m p l e t i o n

D a t e

C o m m e n t s A c t i o n
O w n e r

D i r e c t o r
A p p r o v e

D a t e

A s s o c i a t e d
H i g h - l e v e l
R i s k s

D A 1 1 7 I m p l e m e n t  a  r e d e s i g n e d ,  i n t e g r a t e d
s a f e g u a r d i n g  m o d e l

H a y l e y
E c c l e s

C l l r  Z
C h a u h a n

1 3 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 1 / 7 / 2 0 2 1 I n t e g r a t i o n  i s  p r o g r e s s i n g  w e l l .  R i s k
H u d d l e s  a r e  b e i n g  e x p a n d e d  t o  i n c l u d e
Q u a l i t y  &  F o c u s  C a r e  p r a c t i t i o n e r s .  M e n t a l
H e a l t h  S a f e g u a r d i n g  p r o j e c t  i s  o n g o i n g ;
l e a d  b y  J o h n  M o r a n .  C o m p l e x
S a f e g u a r d i n g  p r o j e c t  w o r k  a c r o s s  G M ;
p r o g r e s s i n g  w e l l  w i t h  l o c a l  &  N a t i o n a l
l e a d s ;  o n  t r a c k .

M a r k
W a r r e n

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D C 2 0 1 I n c l u s i o n  ( S E N D )  S t r a t e g y  w i l l  a i m  t o -
I n c r e a s e  c h i l d r e n  e d u c a t e d  i n  t h e
b o r o u g h -  R e d u c e  E H C  r e q u e s t s  a n d
u s e  r e s o u r c e s  f l e x i b l y -  I m p r o v e  p o s t  1 9
p r o v i s i o n -  E n s u r e  a  s u s t a i n a b l e  a n d
e f f e c t i v e  l o c a l  o f f e r  i s  i n  p l a c e

P a u l a
G r e e n

C l l r  S
M u s h t a q

6 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 R e q u e s t s  f o r  E H C P  n e e d s  a s s e s s m e n t s  &
t h e  p r o c e s s  o f  a s s e s s m e n t  c o n t i n u e
d e s p i t e  C - 1 9 .  E H C P  r e c o v e r y  p l a n  i s
u n d e r w a y  t h r o u g h  S E N D  a n n u a l  r e v i e w
t e a m .  D u e  t o  C o v i d  r e s p o n s e  t h e  S E N D
s t r a t e g y  h a s  b e e n  r e v i s e d  w i t h  y e a r  o n e
o u t c o m e s  i d e n t i f i e d .  T h e  s t r a t e g y  w i l l  b e
f u r t h e r  d e v e l o p e d  i n  e a r l y  2 0 2 1  t o  i n c l u d e
3  a n d  5  y e a r  o u t c o m e s .

G e r a r d
J o n e s

3 0 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D E 1 6 2 T h e  M e d i u m  T e r m  P r o p e r t y  S t r a t e g y
( M T P S )  i s  f o c u s e d  o n  r a t i o n a l i s i n g  t h e
C o u n c i l " s  C o r p o r a t e  E s t a t e  ( o v e r  a  4
y e a r  p e r i o d )

E m m a
B a r t o n

C l l r  S
F i e l d i n g

9 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 2 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 2 N o  c h a n g e  t o  Q 1 ,  Q 2  o r  Q 3  u p d a t e .  I n
a d d i t i o n  t o  a  d i s p o s a l s  p r o g r a m m e ,  a n
a c c o m m o d a t i o n  r e v i e w ,  p l a c e d  b a s e d
i n t e g r a t i o n  a n d  w o r k i n g  d i f f e r e n t l y
s t r a t e g i e s  a r e  b e i n g  d e v e l o p e d .

H e l e n
L o c k w o o d

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D S 1 0 3 T h r o u g h  o u r  W e l f a r e  R i g h t s  S e r v i c e ,
s u p p o r t  p e o p l e  a d v e r s e l y  a f f e c t e d  b y
W e l f a r e  R e f o r m .

A n n e
R y a n s

C l l r  A
J a b b a r

7 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 T h e  t e a m  h a s  p r o a c t i v e l y  s u p p o r t e d  t h o s e
w h o  w h o  c o n t a c t  t h e  t e a m  f o r  a s s i s t a n c e
a n d  h a v e  d e v e l o p e d  o u t r e a c h
a r r a n g e m e n t s  w i t h  c l u s t e r  t e a m s .   T h e
t e a m  h a s  e x c e e d e d  i t s  t a r g e t  o f  a c h i e v i n g
$ 1 m  o f  a d d i t i o n a l  f i n a n c i a l  s u p p o r t  f o r
c u s t o m e r s .

M i k e
B a r k e r

1 2 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

3 5  o f  4 9

P
age 75



R e f A c t i o n s A c t i o n
U p d a t e r

C a b i n e t
M e m b e r

D a t e
C o m m e n t s

R e v i e w e d

D u e  D a t e F o r e c a s t e d
C o m p l e t i o n

D a t e

C o m m e n t s A c t i o n
O w n e r

D i r e c t o r
A p p r o v e

D a t e

A s s o c i a t e d
H i g h - l e v e l
R i s k s

D S 1 8 4 S u p p o r t i n g  d e l i v e r y  a g a i n s t  k e y
s t r a t e g i e s  i n c l u d i n g  t h e  t o w n  c e n t r e
v i s i o n ,  t h e  m e d i u m  t e r m  p r o p e r t y
s t r a t e g y ,  i n c o m e  s t r a t e g y  a n d
c o m m e r c i a l  p r o p e r t y  i n v e s t m e n t
s t r a t e g y

A n n e
R y a n s

C l l r  A
J a b b a r

7 / 4 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 W o r k  c o n t i n u e d  t o  s u p p o r t  t h e s e  s t r a t e g i e s
b u t  d u e  t o  C - 1 9  &  t h e  n e e d  t o  m a k e
f i n a n c i a l  s a v i n g s  t h e r e  w a s  a  m a j o r  r e v i e w
o f  t h e  C r e a t i n g  a  B e t t e r  P l a c e  s t r a t e g y  -
a p p r o v e d  b y  C a b i n e t  o n  2 4  A u g . 2 0 2 0 .
F i n a n c e  o f f i c e r s  a t t e n d e d  a l l  m e e t i n g s ,
w o r k i n g  g r o u p s  &  M e m b e r  b r i e f i n g s  t o
p r o g r e s s  t h e  t o w n  c e n t r e  v i s i o n .   W o r k
p l a n n e d  f o r  2 0 2 0 / 2 1  h a s  b e e n  c o m p l e t e d .

M i k e
B a r k e r

1 2 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

D S 2 3 2 P r o c u r e m e n t  w i l l  c a r r y  o u t  a  d u e
d i l i g e n c e  e x e r c i s e  e s t a b l i s h i n g  b y
c a t e g o r y  o f  s p e n d  b u s i n e s s  t y p e s
w i t h i n  O l d h a m

S t e v e  B o y d C l l r  A
J a b b a r

8 / 7 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 6 / 2 0 2 0 P r o c u r e m e n t  h a v e  n o w  c o m p l e t e d  t h e  t a s k
o f  i d e n t i f y i n g  l o c a l  b u s i n e s s e s  b y  c a t e g o r y
t y p e ,  a n d  h a v e  n o w  s t a r t e d  t h e  p r o c e s s  o f
t a r g e t e d  e n g a g e m e n t  w i t h  O l d h a m
S u p p l i e r s  w i t h i n  t h e  v a r i o u s  c o h o r t s .

M i k e
B a r k e r

1 5 / 7 / 2 0 2 0

D S 2 4 0 R e v i e w  c o u n c i l  r e p o r t  t e m p l a t e s  t o
i n c l u d e  t h e  i m p a c t  o n  c h i l d r e n  a n d
y o u n g  p e o p l e  o n  e v e r y  r e p o r t

E l i z a b e t h
D r o g a n

C l l r  S
F i e l d i n g

1 / 1 0 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 9 / 2 0 2 0 T e m p l a t e s  h a v e  b e e n  c o m p l e t e d . P a u l
E n t w i s t l e

4 / 8 / 2 0 2 0

D S 2 4 2 D e l i v e r  I T  S t r a t e g i c  R o a d m a p  w i t h i n
a g r e e d  t i m e f r a m e s  i n  p r o j e c t  p l a n .

C h r i s  P e t r i e C l l r  A
J a b b a r

8 / 1 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1 T h e  I T  s t r a t e g i c  r o a d m a p  h a s  b e e n
r e p r o f i l e d  a n d  a p p r o v e d  b y  t h e  S t r a t e g i c
I n v e s t m e n t  B o a r d  ( S I B ) .  I n d i v i d u a l  p r o j e c t s
a r e  r e p o r t e d  a n d  t r a c k e d  t h r o u g h  t h e  S I B
m o n t h l y  m e e t i n g s  w h i c h  w i l l  c o n t i n u e  i n t o
2 0 2 1 / 2 2 .

H e l e n
L o c k w o o d

1 5 / 4 / 2 0 2 1

3 6  o f  4 9

P
age 76



C o r p o r a t e  P e r f o r m a n c e  R e p o r t

R e d
M e a s u r e

C u r r e n t  a n d  P r e v i o u s  P e r f o r m a n c e

F o l l o w  U p  A c t i o n  a n d  A s s u r a n c e  D e t a i l s

T a r g e t

A c c o u n t a b l e  L e a d  F o l l o w  U p  A c t i o n D i r e c t o r  A s s u r a n c eA c c o u n t a b l e  L e a d

T a r g e t  D a t e

N o  B e n c h m a r k i n g
A v a i l a b l e

R e m e d i a l  A c t i o n  D e s c r i p t i o n A c t i o n  O w n e r A c t i o n  T a r g e t
D a t e

A c t i o n  C o m m e n t s E F F E C T I V E D A
T E

A c t i o n  S t a t u s

T h e  t a r g e t  w a s  o n  t r a c k  t o  b e  m e t  u n t i l  t h e  l a s t  q u a r t e r .  N o  f u r t h e r  t r a n s f e r s  h a v e  b e e n  m a d      3 1 - M a r - 2 0 2 O n  T a r g e t

1 3 1 3

1 6

1 2

3 0 / 6 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 9 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 1 2 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1
0

2

4

6

8

1 0

1 2

1 4

1 6

1 8

M 3 6 5 ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  o f  C o u n c i l  a n n u a l  a p p r e n t i c e  l e v y  d i s t r i b u t e d  t o  e m p l o y e r s  a n d  a p p r e n t i c e s h i p
t r a i n i n g  a g e n c i e s  w i t h i n  O l d h a m

I m p a c t  o f  t h e  p a n d e m i c  o n  l o c a l
b u s i n e s s e s  m e a n t  n o  l e v y  t r a n s f e r s
o c c u r r e d  i n  Q 4 .  A s  t h e  g o v e r n m e n t
f u n d s  n e w  i n i t i a t i v e s  s u c h  a s  K i c k s t a r t ,
b u s i n e s s e s  h a v e  b e e n  m o v i n g  f o c u s  t o
a c c e s s  t h e s e  p r o g r a m m e s ;  p e r c e i v e d  t o
b e  m o r e  c o s t  e f f e c t i v e .  M o v i n g  f o r w a r d ,
t h e r e  w i l l  b e  o p p o r t u n i t y  t o  u s e  t h e
m o m e n t u m  o f  s u c h  p r o g r a m m e s  t o
s u p p o r t  c r e a t i o n  o f  n e w  a p p r e n t i c e s h i p s
t h r o u g h  l e v y  t r a n s f e r s .  W e  r e m a i n
c o m m i t t e d  t o  u s i n g  a m b i t i o u s  t a r g e t s  f o r
a l l  e n t r y  l e v e l  o p p o r t u n i t i e s  a s  p a r t  o f
r e c o v e r y  s t r a t e g y .

J u l i a  V e a l lT h e  t a r g e t  w a s  o n  t r a c k  t o  b e  m e t  u n t i l  t h e  l a s t  q u a r t e r .  N o  f u r t h e r  t r a n s f e r s  h a v e  b e e n  m a d e  d u e  t o
c o n t i n u e d  C o v i d - 1 9  c h a l l e n g e s  a f f e c t i n g  b u s i n e s s e s .  T h e  g o v e r n m e n t  K i c k s t a r t  p r o g r a m m e  h a s  a l s o
s e e n  b u s i n e s s e s  f a v o u r  t h i s  s c h e m e  o v e r  a p p r e n t i c e s h i p s  i n  t h e  s h o r t - t e r m .

V i k k i  M o r r i s

n o  d a t e  a v a i l a b l e

3 7  o f  4 9

P
age 77



C o r p o r a t e  P e r f o r m a n c e  R e p o r t

R e d
M e a s u r e

C u r r e n t  a n d  P r e v i o u s  P e r f o r m a n c e

F o l l o w  U p  A c t i o n  a n d  A s s u r a n c e  D e t a i l s

T a r g e t

A c c o u n t a b l e  L e a d  F o l l o w  U p  A c t i o n D i r e c t o r  A s s u r a n c eA c c o u n t a b l e  L e a d

T a r g e t  D a t e

N o  B e n c h m a r k i n g
A v a i l a b l e

R e m e d i a l  A c t i o n  D e s c r i p t i o n A c t i o n  O w n e r A c t i o n  T a r g e t
D a t e

A c t i o n  C o m m e n t s E F F E C T I V E D A
T E

A c t i o n  S t a t u s

C l a i m s  a n d  c h a n g e s  o f  c i r c u m s t a n c e s  f o r  C o u n c i l  T a x  R e d u c t i o n  i n c r e a s e d  s i g n i f i c a n t l y  d u r i      3 1 - M a r - 2 0 2 O n  T a r g e t

1 1

2 1

2 7

2 0

3 1 / 1 2 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 1 / 2 0 2 1 2 8 / 2 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1
0

5

1 0

1 5

2 0

2 5

3 0

S 3 7 0 ( C P )  A v e r a g e  t i m e  t a k e n  t o  p r o c e s s  C o u n c i l  T a x  R e d u c t i o n  ( n e w  c l a i m s  a n d  c h a n g e  e v e n t s )

T h e  i n c r e a s e d  w o r k l o a d  r e p o r t e d
t h r o u g h o u t  m o s t  o f  t h e  y e a r ,  a s
e x p e c t e d ,  h a s  c o n t i n u e d  i n t o  M a r c h  &
w i l l  c o n t i n u e  i n t o  2 0 2 1 / 2 2 .  A c h i e v i n g  t h e
t a r g e t  h a s  t h e r e f o r e  n o t  p r o v e d  p o s s i b l e .
T h e  R e v e n u e s  &  B e n e f i t s  t e a m  i s
w o r k i n g  h a r d  t o  r e d u c e  t h e  d e l a y  i n
r e s p o n s e  t i m e .  M a n a g e m e n t  a c t i o n  h a s
b e e n  t a k e n  t o  i m p r o v e  p e r f o r m a n c e  w i t h
a d d i t i o n a l  t e m p o r a r y  s t a f f  e n g a g e d  &
o v e r t i m e  o f f e r e d .  R e c o g n i s i n g  t h e
c h a l l e n g e  o f  C O V I D - 1 9 ,  t a r g e t  h a s  b e e n
r e v i s e d  f o r  2 0 2 1 / 2 2 .  T h e  p o s i t i o n  i s
b e i n g  c l o s e l y  m o n i t o r e d .

A n n e  R y a n sC l a i m s  a n d  c h a n g e s  o f  c i r c u m s t a n c e s  f o r  C o u n c i l  T a x  R e d u c t i o n  i n c r e a s e d  s i g n i f i c a n t l y  d u r i n g  t h e
c o u r s e  o f  t h e  y e a r  a s  a  r e s u l t  o f  t h e  C O V I D  c r i s i s .  R e m o t e  a c c e s s  t o  c o r e  b e n e f i t  p r o c e s s i n g  s y s t e m s
r e d u c e d  p r o d u c t i v i t y  i n  t h e  e a r l y  s t a g e s  o f  l o c k d o w n  b y  a n  e s t i m a t e d  2 0 %  b u t  i m p r o v e d  o v e r  t h e
c o u r s e  o f  2 0 2 0 / 2 1  a s  a  r e s u l t  o f  o n - g o i n g  w o r k  b y  I C T  t o  s t r e n g t h e n  t h e  a b i l i t y  t o  h o m e w o r k .  T h e
s e r v i c e  e x p e c t s  t h e  c u r r e n t  h i g h  l e v e l s  o f  U n i v e r s a l  C r e d i t  f i l e s  r e c e i v e d  t o  c o n t i n u e  i n  2 0 2 1 / 2 2  a n d
t h e  t a r g e t  h a s  b e e n  a d j u s t e d  ( f r o m  1 5  d a y s  t o  1 8  d a y s ) .  T h e  l i k e l i h o o d  t h a t  t h e  s e r v i c e  w o u l d  n o t
a c h i e v e  t h e  1 5  d a y  o u t t u r n  f o r  2 0 2 0 / 2 1  w a s  f l a g g e d  u p  i n  p r e v i o u s  c o m m e n t a r i e s  o n  p e r f o r m a n c e .  T h e
1 5  d a y  t a r g e t  w a s  s e t  a t  t h e  o u t s e t  o f  t h e  p a n d e m i c  w h e n  t h e  p o s i t i o n  o n  t h e  l e n g t h  a n d  f r e q u e n c y  o f
l o c k d o w n s  a n d  t h e  i m p a c t  o n  r e s i d e n t s  w a s  n o t  c l e a r .  T h e  r e v i s e d  t a r g e t  f o r  2 0 2 1 / 2 2  r e p r e s e n t s  a
s t r e t c h  t a r g e t  f o r  t h e  s e r v i c e  a n d  i s  s u b j e c t  t o  v a r i a t i o n  d e p e n d i n g  o n  h o w  f a r  t h e  r o a d m a p  o u t  o f
l o c k d o w n  a n d  t h e  i m p a c t  o n  j o b s  i s  s u c c e s s f u l .  T h e  s e r v i c e  r e t a i n e d  2  f t e  a g e n c y  s t a f f  i n  2 0 2 0 / 2 1  t o
a u g m e n t  t h e  r e s o u r c e s  a v a i l a b l e  t o  p r o c e s s  C o u n c i l  T a x  R e d u c t i o n  ( C T R )  c l a i m s  a n d  t h e  C o u n c i l  h a s
c o m m i t t e d  t o  f u n d  3  s t a f f  o n  f i x e d  t e r m  1 2  m o n t h  c o n t r a c t s  i n  2 0 2 1 / 2 2 .  O v e r t i m e  h a s  a l s o  b e e n  o f f e r e d
t o  b e n e f i t  s t a f f  o v e r  2 0 2 0 / 2 1  t o  a s s i s t  i n  r e d u c i n g  t h e  b a c k l o g .

C a r o l i n e  L e e

n o  d a t e  a v a i l a b l e

3 8  o f  4 9

P
age 78



C o r p o r a t e  P e r f o r m a n c e  R e p o r t

R e d
M e a s u r e

C u r r e n t  a n d  P r e v i o u s  P e r f o r m a n c e

F o l l o w  U p  A c t i o n  a n d  A s s u r a n c e  D e t a i l s

T a r g e t

A c c o u n t a b l e  L e a d  F o l l o w  U p  A c t i o n D i r e c t o r  A s s u r a n c eA c c o u n t a b l e  L e a d

T a r g e t  D a t e

N o  B e n c h m a r k i n g
A v a i l a b l e

R e m e d i a l  A c t i o n  D e s c r i p t i o n A c t i o n  O w n e r A c t i o n  T a r g e t
D a t e

A c t i o n  C o m m e n t s E F F E C T I V E D A
T E

A c t i o n  S t a t u s

3 5 4  n e w  h o m e s  w e r e  b u i l t  d u r i n g  2 0 2 0 / 2 1 ,  w h i c h  i s  9 6  l e s s  t h a n  t h e  a n n u a l  t a r g e t  o f  4 5 0  n e      3 1 - M a r - 2 0 2 O n  T a r g e t

4

6 3

1 3 8

3 5 4

3 0 / 6 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 9 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 1 2 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1
0

5 0

1 0 0

1 5 0

2 0 0

2 5 0

3 0 0

3 5 0

4 0 0

4 5 0

5 0 0

M 4 0 8 ( C P )  T o t a l  n e w  h o m e s  b u i l t

3 5 4  n e w  h o m e s  w e r e  b u i l t  d u r i n g  2 0 2 0 / 2 1 ,  w h i c h  i s  9 6  l e s s  t h a n  t h e  a n n u a l  t a r g e t  o f  4 5 0  n e w  h o m e s .
T h e  l o w  l e v e l  o f  c o m p l e t i o n s  i s  l i k e l y  t o  b e  d u e  t o  a  f a l l  i n  c o m p l e t i o n s  o v e r  t h e  l a s t  1 2  m o n t h s
r e s u l t i n g  f r o m  t h e  C o v i d - 1 9  p a n d e m i c .  I t  i s  h o p e d  t h a t  t h e r e  w i l l  b e  a  r i s e  i n  c o m p l e t i o n s  d u r i n g  t h e
f o l l o w i n g  m o n i t o r i n g  y e a r ,  h o w e v e r  w e  w i l l  n e e d  t o  s e e  w h a t  t h e  s h o r t  /  m e d i u m  t e r m  i m p a c t s  o f  t h e
C o v i d - 1 9  p a n d e m i c  a r e .  N e v e r t h e l e s s  t h e r e  h a s  b e e n  a  r i s e  i n  m a j o r  p l a n n i n g  a p p l i c a t i o n s  f o r
r e s i d e n t i a l  d e v e l o p m e n t  b e i n g  s u b m i t t e d  o v e r  r e c e n t  m o n t h s .

T h e  l o w  l e v e l  o f  c o m p l e t i o n s  i s  d u e  t o  a
f a l l  i n  c o m p l e t i o n s .  G i v e n  t h e  c h a l l e n g e s
w i t h  m a t e r i a l  s u p p l i e s  a n d  t r a d e  r o u t e s ,
s h i e l d i n g  a n d  h o m e  s c h o o l i n g ,  w e  a r e
p l e a s e d  t h a t  c o n s t r u c t i o n  w o r k  h a s
m a n a g e d  t o  c o n t i n u e  s a f e l y  t o  f a c i l i t a t e
t h e  c o m p l e t i o n  o f  m u c h  n e e d e d  h o m e s
a c r o s s  t h e  b o r o u g h .  I t  i s  h o p e d  t h a t
t h e r e  w i l l  b e  a  r i s e  i n  c o m p l e t i o n s  d u r i n g
t h e  n e x t  1 2  m o n t h s  l i n k e d  t o  t h e  n a t i o n a l
r e c o v e r y  r o a d m a p ,  h o w e v e r  t h e  i m p a c t
o f  t h e  C o v i d - 1 9  p a n d e m i c  i s  s t i l l  h a v i n g
a n  i m p a c t  a t  t h i s  t i m e .

E m m a  B a r t o nE l i z a b e t h  D r y d e n - S t u a r t

n o  d a t e  a v a i l a b l e

3 9  o f  4 9

P
age 79



C o r p o r a t e  P e r f o r m a n c e  R e p o r t

R e d
M e a s u r e

C u r r e n t  a n d  P r e v i o u s  P e r f o r m a n c e

F o l l o w  U p  A c t i o n  a n d  A s s u r a n c e  D e t a i l s

T a r g e t

A c c o u n t a b l e  L e a d  F o l l o w  U p  A c t i o n D i r e c t o r  A s s u r a n c eA c c o u n t a b l e  L e a d

T a r g e t  D a t e

N o  B e n c h m a r k i n g
A v a i l a b l e

R e m e d i a l  A c t i o n  D e s c r i p t i o n A c t i o n  O w n e r A c t i o n  T a r g e t
D a t e

A c t i o n  C o m m e n t s E F F E C T I V E D A
T E

A c t i o n  S t a t u s

T h e  C o v i d  1 9  p a n d e m i c  c o n t i n u e s  t o  i m p a c t  o n  t h e  e m p l o y m e n t  w o r k s t r e a m  f o r  t h e  L D  a n d      1 5 - J u n - 2 0 2      3 1 - M a r - 2 0 2 O n  T a r g e t

3
3 3 3

3 1 / 1 2 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 1 / 2 0 2 1 2 8 / 2 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1
0 . 0

0 . 5

1 . 0

1 . 5

2 . 0

2 . 5

3 . 0

3 . 5

4 . 0

4 . 5

C o v i d  h a s  h a d  a n  i m p a c t  o n  t h e  L D
e m p l o y m e n t  p o s i t i o n ,  w h i c h  i s  a n
i n i t i a t i v e  w i t h i n  i n  t h e  G M  L D  s t r a t e g y .  I n
O l d h a m  t h e r e  i s  a n  e m p l o y m e n t  g r o u p
t h a t  m e e t s  m o n t h l y ,  t h e  S u p p o r t e d
e m p l o y m e n t  s e r v i c e  h a s  b e e n  i n  p l a c e
s i n c e  S e p t  2 0  a n d  i s  n o w  s t a r t i n g  t o  l e a d
t o  j o b s  a n d  s t r o n g  l i n k s  a r e  i n  p l a c e  w i t h
g e t  O l d h a m  w o r k i n g .  T h e  L D  s e r v i c e  a r e
p r o a c t i v e l y  w o r k i n g  w i t h  c l i e n t s  t o
u n d e r s t a n d  a s p i r a t i o n s  &  j o b  o p t i o n s ,
w h i c h  i s  i n t e n d e d  t o  i n c r e a s e  t h e  t h e
n u m b e r  o f  p e o p l e  w i t h  a  L D  i n
e m p l o y m e n t .

T h e  C o v i d  1 9  p a n d e m i c  c o n t i n u e s  t o  i m p a c t  o n  t h e  e m p l o y m e n t  w o r k s t r e a m  f o r  t h e  L D  a n d  A u t i s m
s t r a t e g i e s  l o c a l l y .  I t  a l s o  c o n t i n u e s  t o  i m p a c t  o n  j o b  a v a i l a b i l i t y  e s p e c i a l l y  i n  t h i s  a r e a .  W i t h  t h e
n a t i o n a l  c h a n g e s  a r o u n d  l o c k d o w n ,  t h i s  s i t u a t i o n  i s  i m p r o v i n g  &  w e  a r e  m e e t i n g  w i t h  w o r k s t r e a m
c o l l e a g u e s  i n c l u d i n g  t h e  j o b  c e n t r e  a n d  G O W  t o  r e l a u n c h  t h e  p r o g r a m m e .  T h e  S u p p o r t e d  e m p l o y m e n t
s e r v i c e  i n  p l a c e  s i n c e  S e p t  2 0  i s  n o w  s t a r t i n g  t o  l e a d  t o  j o b s ,  a n d  t h e  L D  s e r v i c e  a r e  p r o a c t i v e l y
w o r k i n g  w i t h  c l i e n t s  t o  u n d e r s t a n d  a s p i r a t i o n s  &  j o b  o p t i o n s .   O v e r  t h e  n e x t  1 2  m o n t h s  w e  a r e
u n d e r t a k i n g  a  g r a d u a l  c l e a n s e  o f  t h e  M O S A I C  s y s t e m  t o  e n s u r e  t h a t  r e l e v a n t  r e c o r d i n g  m e c h a n i s m s
a r e  b e i n g  u s e d  a p p r o p r i a t e l y ,  t h a t  t h e  d a t a  i s  a c c u r a t e  r e .  e m p l o y m e n t ,  a n d  w o r k i n g  w i t h  c o l l e a g u e s  i n
P e r f o r m a n c e  t o  e n s u r e  t h a t  t h e r e  a r e  o p t i o n s  t o  c a p t u r e  a l t e r n a t i v e s  t o  p a i d  e m p l o y m e n t /  s c h e m e s
t h a t  l e a d  t o  e m p l o y m e n t  o n  t h e  d a t a b a s e .  I t  i s  h o p e d  t h i s  w i l l  i m p r o v e  t h e  p e r f o r m a n c e  d a t a  i n  a d d i t i o n
t o  t h e  w o r k  t o  s u p p o r t  p e o p l e  i n t o  p a i d  e m p l o y m e n t .  A s  s u c h ,  i t  i s  l i k e l y  t h a t  p e r f o r m a n c e  d a t a  w i l l
i m p r o v e  -  t h i s  w i l l  b e  m o n i t o r e d  c l o s e l y  o v e r  t h e  n e x t  1 2  m o n t h s  t o  e n s u r e  a c c u r a c y  a n d  r e l e v a n c e .

C h a r l o t t e  W a l k e r

1 5  J u n  2 0 2 1

M a r k  W a r r e n

M 5 4 8 ( C P )  P r o p o r t i o n  o f  a d u l t s  w i t h  l e a r n i n g  d i s a b i l i t i e s  i n  p a i d  e m p l o y m e n t  i n  E n g l a n d

4 0  o f  4 9

P
age 80



C o r p o r a t e  P e r f o r m a n c e  R e p o r t

R e d
M e a s u r e

C u r r e n t  a n d  P r e v i o u s  P e r f o r m a n c e

F o l l o w  U p  A c t i o n  a n d  A s s u r a n c e  D e t a i l s

T a r g e t

A c c o u n t a b l e  L e a d  F o l l o w  U p  A c t i o n D i r e c t o r  A s s u r a n c eA c c o u n t a b l e  L e a d

T a r g e t  D a t e

N o  B e n c h m a r k i n g
A v a i l a b l e

R e m e d i a l  A c t i o n  D e s c r i p t i o n A c t i o n  O w n e r A c t i o n  T a r g e t
D a t e

A c t i o n  C o m m e n t s E F F E C T I V E D A
T E

A c t i o n  S t a t u s

C u r r e n t  p o s i t i o n :  T h e r e  h a s  b e e n  a  d e c r e a s e  d u e  t o  s o m e  y o u n g  p e o p l e  n o t  s t a r t i n g  t h e i r  g      3 1 - M a r - 2 0 2 O n  T a r g e t

6 0

5 0 4 9 4 8

3 1 / 1 2 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 1 / 2 0 2 1 2 8 / 2 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1
0

1 0

2 0

3 0

4 0

5 0

6 0

7 0

M 6 1 9 b ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  o f  C a r e  L e a v e r s  a g e d  1 9 - 2 1  i n  E d u c a t i o n ,  E m p l o y m e n t  o r  T r a i n i n g

T h e  s e r v i c e  h a s  a  v a r i e t y  o f
p r o g r a m m e s  s u p p o r t e d  w i t h  p a r t n e r s
s t a r t e d  i n  A p r i l  s u c h  a s  t h e  G e t  a  J o b
p r o g r a m m e  a n d  P r i n c e " s  T r u s t
p r o g r a m m e .  W e  a n t i c i p a t e  t h a t  a f t e r
s u c h  a  d i f f i c u l t  y e a r  f o r  y o u n g  p e o p l e
t h e i r  o p p o r t u n i t i e s  w i l l  i n c r e a s e .  T h e  A f t e r
C a r e  S e r v i c e  a r e  s u p p o r t i n g  t h e  K i c k
S t a r t  P r o g r a m m e  t o  p r o v i d e
o p p o r t u n i t i e s  f o r  C a r e  L e a v e r s .

E l a i n e  D e v a n e yC u r r e n t  p o s i t i o n :  T h e r e  h a s  b e e n  a  d e c r e a s e  d u e  t o  s o m e  y o u n g  p e o p l e  n o t  s t a r t i n g  t h e i r  g a i n e d
e m p l o y m e n t .  T h e  c o h o r t  i s  i n c l u s i v e  o f  1 3 2  y o u n g  p e o p l e ,  6 8  a r e  r e c o r d e d  a s  N E E T  f o r  a  r a n g e  o f
r e a s o n s ;  p a r e n t s  w i t h  y o u n g  c h i l d r e n  ( u n d e r  t h e  a g e  o f  3  y e a r s )  o r  p a r e n t s  o f  u n b o r n  c h i l d r e n ,  i l l n e s s
a n d  u n a b l e  t o  w o r k  a n d  i n  c u s t o d y .  O u t s i d e  o f  t h e  f o r t n i g h t l y  p a n e l  m e e t i n g ,  t h e  s e r v i c e  h a s  c o n t i n u e d
t o  f o c u s  o n  t h e  E E T  r e a d y  g r o u p  o f  2 5  y o u n g  p e o p l e  w h e r e  o p p o r t u n i t i e s  a n d  p l a n s  t o  g a i n  E E T  a r e
d i s c u s s e d  w i t h  G e t  O l d h a m  W o r k i n g ,  N o r t h  L a n c s  t r a i n i n g  p r o v i d e r ,  D W P  a n d  t h e  A f t e r  C a r e  S e r v i c e .  
A c t i o n :  W i t h  t h e  l i f t i n g  o f  t h e  C o v i d  r e s t r i c t i o n s  w e  e n v i s a g e  a n  i n c r e a s e  i n  t h e  n u m b e r s  o f  y o u n g
p e o p l e  t h a t  a r e  E E T  a s  b u s i n e s s e s  s t a r t  t o  r e - o p e n  a n d  t r a i n i n g  p r o v i d e r s  g e t  b a c k  t o  f a c e  t o  f a c e
e n g a g e m e n t .  T h e  A f t e r  C a r e  S e r v i c e  w i l l  b e  c o n s i d e r i n g  t h e  d e v e l o p m e n t  o f  t a s t e r  w o r k  p l a c e m e n t s
t h a t  c a n  p r o v i d e  a  f u r t h e r  s t e p  u p  f o r  t h o s e  t h a t  a r e  N E E T .  T h i s  i s  a  v e n t u r e  t h a t  i s  b e i n g  c o n s i d e r e d
a l o n g s i d e  t h e  r e c r u i t m e n t  o f  t h e  s h o r t  t e r m  K i c k  S t a r t  p o s i t i o n  w i t h i n  A f t e r  C a r e ,  t h a t  w i l l  s u p p o r t  C a r e
L e a v e r s  f u r t h e r .

S a r a  S c h o l e y

n o  d a t e  a v a i l a b l e

4 1  o f  4 9

P
age 81



C o r p o r a t e  P e r f o r m a n c e  R e p o r t

R e d
M e a s u r e

C u r r e n t  a n d  P r e v i o u s  P e r f o r m a n c e

F o l l o w  U p  A c t i o n  a n d  A s s u r a n c e  D e t a i l s

T a r g e t

A c c o u n t a b l e  L e a d  F o l l o w  U p  A c t i o n D i r e c t o r  A s s u r a n c eA c c o u n t a b l e  L e a d

T a r g e t  D a t e

N o  B e n c h m a r k i n g
A v a i l a b l e

R e m e d i a l  A c t i o n  D e s c r i p t i o n A c t i o n  O w n e r A c t i o n  T a r g e t
D a t e

A c t i o n  C o m m e n t s E F F E C T I V E D A
T E

A c t i o n  S t a t u s

U p t a k e  o f  2  y e a r  o l d  o f f e r  h a s  b e e n  s i g n i f i c a n t l y  a f f e c t e d  b y  t h e  p a n d e m i c  o w i n g  t o  t h e  c l o s      3 1 - M a r - 2 0 2 O n  T a r g e t

6 8

3 0 / 6 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 9 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 1 2 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1
0

1 0

2 0

3 0

4 0

5 0

6 0

7 0

8 0

9 0

M 6 4 9 ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  t a k e  u p  o f  2  y e a r - o l d  c h i l d r e n  b e n e f i t t i n g  f r o m  f u n d e d  e a r l y  e d u c a t i o n  p l a c e s

I n c r e a s i n g  u p t a k e  o f  2 - y e a r  o l d
e n t i t l e m e n t  i s  a  p r i o r i t y  w i t h i n  t h e
C o u n c i l " s  E a r l y  Y e a r s  s t r a t e g y  u n d e r  t h e
s t e w a r d s h i p  o f  t h e  E a r l y  Y e a r s  S t r a t e g i c
P a r t n e r s h i p .  A  r o b u s t  a c t i o n  p l a n  i s  i n
p l a c e  t o  e n s u r e  f a m i l i e s  a r e  s u i t a b l y
i n f o r m e d  a n d  s u p p o r t e d  t o  a c c e s s  t h e
2 - y e a r  o l d  e n t i t l e m e n t .  W e  c o n t i n u e  t o
w o r k  w i t h  k e y  p a r t n e r s  a n d  f a m i l i e s  t o
s u p p o r t  t h e  d e l i v e r a b l e s  o u t l i n e d  i n  t h e
a c t i o n  p l a n ;  r e c o g n i s i n g  t h e  i m p a c t  t h e
p a n d e m i c  h a s  h a d  o n  o u r  e a r l y  y e a r s

R i c h a r d  L y n c hU p t a k e  o f  2  y e a r  o l d  o f f e r  h a s  b e e n  s i g n i f i c a n t l y  a f f e c t e d  b y  t h e  p a n d e m i c  o w i n g  t o  t h e  c l o s u r e  o f  e a r l y
y e a r s  s e t t i n g s  d u r i n g  t h e  p e a k  o f  t h e  p a n d e m i c ,  a n d  s l o w  r e t u r n  t o  p r o v i s i o n  b y  s o m e  f a m i l i e s .  T h e
t e m p o r a r y  s u s p e n s i o n  &  d e l a y  o f  l i s t s  o f  e l i g i b l e  c h i l d r e n  f r o m  D F E  h a s  i m p a c t e d  o n  o u t r e a c h  a c t i v i t y
w h i c h  i n  t u r n  r e s u l t e d  i n  l o w e r  n u m b e r s  o f  c h i l d r e n  a c c e s s i n g  f r e e  e n t i t l e m e n t .  T h e  u p t a k e  r a t e  d u r i n g
t h e  s p r i n g  t e r m  2 0 2 1  w a s  6 8 %  c o m p a r e d  w i t h  7 3 %  a t  t h e  s a m e  t i m e  l a s t  y e a r ,  p r e - p a n d e m i c .  A s  p a r t
o f  t h e  w i d e r  G M  B e h a v i o u r a l  I n s i g h t s  p r o j e c t  t a r g e t e d  w o r k  w i l l  b e  t a k i n g  p l a c e  w i t h  g r o u p s  w i t h
h i s t o r i c a l l y  l o w  u p t a k e .  W e  w i l l  i m p r o v e  m a r k e t i n g  a n d  u s e  o f  s o c i a l  m e d i a  m e s s a g i n g ;  w o r k s h o p s  a n d
m a t e r i a l s  t o  r a i s e  a w a r e n e s s  a n d  m a x i m i s e  t h e  a d v o c a c y  r o l e  o f  k e y  f r o n t l i n e  p r o f e s s i o n a l s  i n
a l l e v i a t i n g  b a r r i e r s  t o  t a k e - u p .  A  r e v i e w  o f  t h e  p a r e n t / c u s t o m e r  j o u r n e y  t o  m i n i m i s e  a d m i n i s t r a t i v e
b a r r i e r s ;  e m b e d  2 - y e a r  o l d  p a r e n t  e n g a g e m e n t  &  s u p p o r t  i n  n e w  0 - 1 9  C o m m i s s i o n i n g  a r r a n g e m e n t s
; r e - e s t a b l i s h  a  h o m e  l e a r n i n g  p a t h w a y  a s  a  g a t e w a y  f o r  p a r e n t s  w h o  a r e  r e t i c e n t  a b o u t  t a k i n g  u p  t h e
o f f e r ;  e s t a b l i s h  s p e c i a l i s t  2 - y e a r  o l d  p r o v i s i o n  t o  c o m p l i m e n t  t h a t  p r o v i d e d  i n  m a i n s t r e a m  s e t t i n g s ;
t a r g e t  &  i n c e n t i v i s e  m a i n t e n a n c e  o f  e x i s t i n g  p l a c e s / d e v e l o p m e n t  i n  a r e a s  w i t h  t h e  g r e a t e s t  s u f f i c i e n c y
g a p ;  e s t a b l i s h  a  r o b u s t  a t t e n d a n c e  m o n i t o r i n g  p r o c e s s  t o  i d e n t i f y  &  d e l i v e r  f u r t h e r  s u p p o r t  w h e r e
n e e d e d .

P a u l a  H e a l e y

n o  d a t e  a v a i l a b l e

4 2  o f  4 9

P
age 82



C o r p o r a t e  P e r f o r m a n c e  R e p o r t

R e d
M e a s u r e

C u r r e n t  a n d  P r e v i o u s  P e r f o r m a n c e

F o l l o w  U p  A c t i o n  a n d  A s s u r a n c e  D e t a i l s

T a r g e t

A c c o u n t a b l e  L e a d  F o l l o w  U p  A c t i o n D i r e c t o r  A s s u r a n c eA c c o u n t a b l e  L e a d

T a r g e t  D a t e

N o  B e n c h m a r k i n g
A v a i l a b l e

R e m e d i a l  A c t i o n  D e s c r i p t i o n A c t i o n  O w n e r A c t i o n  T a r g e t
D a t e

A c t i o n  C o m m e n t s E F F E C T I V E D A
T E

A c t i o n  S t a t u s

T o  l i m i t  C O V I D - 1 9  t r a n s m i s s i o n s ,  d e n t a l  p r a c t i c e s  w e r e  i n s t r u c t e d  t o  c l o s e  a n d  c e a s e  a l l  r o      1 6 - A p r - 2 0 2 1      3 1 - M a r - 2 0 2 O n  T a r g e t

6 3 6 3
5 8

3 2

3 0 / 6 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 9 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 1 2 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1
0

1 0

2 0

3 0

4 0

5 0

6 0

7 0

M 6 5 5 ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  o f  c h i l d r e n  s e e n  i n  t h e  p r e v i o u s  1 2  m o n t h s  b y  a n  N H S  d e n t i s t

P e r f o r m a n c e  d u r i n g  t h i s  p e r i o d  h a s  b e e n
a f f e c t e d  b y  t h e  i m p a c t  o f  C O V I D  o n
s e r v i c e  d e l i v e r y .  I t  i s  a n t i c i p a t e d  t h a t
p e r f o r m a n c e  w i l l  r e t u r n  t o  p r e - C O V I D
l e v e l s  a s  w e  m o v e  t h r o u g h  t h e  c o v i d
r e c o v e r y  p e r i o d .

K a t r i n a  S t e p h e n sT o  l i m i t  C O V I D - 1 9  t r a n s m i s s i o n s ,  d e n t a l  p r a c t i c e s  w e r e  i n s t r u c t e d  t o  c l o s e  a n d  c e a s e  a l l  r o u t i n e  d e n t a l
c a r e  f r o m  t h e  2 5 t h  M a r c h  2 0 2 0 .  T h e  d a t a  r e p o r t e d  h e r e  i n c l u d e s  t h a t  t i m e ,  t h e r e f o r e  a c t i v i t y  i s  l o w e r
t h a n  e x p e c t e d .  F o r  E n g l a n d  t h i s  m e a s u r e  i s  3 0 %  a n d  i n  t h e  N o r t h  W e s t  i t  i s  3 2 % .  T h e r e f o r e  i n
O l d h a m ,  w e  a r e  i n  l i n e  w i t h  t h e  n a t i o n a l  a n d  l o c a l  p i c t u r e .   W e  a r e  w o r k i n g  w i t h  P H E  D e n t a l  H e a l t h
l e a d s ,  a n d  o u r  l o c a l  p r o v i d e r s  t o  s u p p o r t  f a m i l i e s  o n  o r a l  h e a l t h ,  i n c l u d i n g  a c c e s s  t o  d e n t i s t r y .  T h e
R i g h t  S t a r t  S e r v i c e  a n d  o u r  h e a l t h  i m p r o v e m e n t  s e r v i c e  ( Y o u r  H e a l t h  O l d h a m )  a r e  w o r k i n g  t o g e t h e r  t o
e n s u r e  t h a t  o r a l  h e a l t h  i s  i n c l u d e d  i n  s u p p o r t  a r o u n d  h e a l t h .

M i k e  B r i d g e s

1 6  A p r  2 0 2 1

4 3  o f  4 9

P
age 83



C o r p o r a t e  P e r f o r m a n c e  R e p o r t

R e d
M e a s u r e

C u r r e n t  a n d  P r e v i o u s  P e r f o r m a n c e

F o l l o w  U p  A c t i o n  a n d  A s s u r a n c e  D e t a i l s

T a r g e t

A c c o u n t a b l e  L e a d  F o l l o w  U p  A c t i o n D i r e c t o r  A s s u r a n c eA c c o u n t a b l e  L e a d

T a r g e t  D a t e

N o  B e n c h m a r k i n g
A v a i l a b l e

R e m e d i a l  A c t i o n  D e s c r i p t i o n A c t i o n  O w n e r A c t i o n  T a r g e t
D a t e

A c t i o n  C o m m e n t s E F F E C T I V E D A
T E

A c t i o n  S t a t u s

T h e  s e r v i c e  h a s  h a d  s i g n i f i c a n t  c h a l l e n g e s  i n  c o m p l e t i n g  t h e  m a n d a t e d  r e v i e w s  f a c e  t o  f a c e R e b e c c a  F l e t c h      1 6 - A p r - 2 0 2 1      3 1 - M a r - 2 0 2 O n  T a r g e t

8 7
8 0

7 1 7 0

3 0 / 6 / 2 0 2 0 3 0 / 9 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 1 2 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1
0

1 0

2 0

3 0

4 0

5 0

6 0

7 0

8 0

9 0

T h e  s e r v i c e  h a s  h a d  s i g n i f i c a n t  c h a l l e n g e s  i n  c o m p l e t i n g  t h e  m a n d a t e d  r e v i e w s  f a c e  t o  f a c e  -  i n i t i a l l y
d u e  t o  t h e  N H S  g u i d a n c e  d u r i n g  C O V I D  b u t  a l s o  f a m i l y  a n x i e t i e s  a r o u n d  v i s i t o r s  t o  t h e  h o m e .  A l l
v u l n e r a b l e  f a m i l i e s  a r e  p r i o r i t i s e d  f o r  f a c e  t o  f a c e  v i s i t s ,  a s  a r e  t h e  N e w  B i r t h  V i s i t s  a n d  6 / 8  w e e k
c h e c k s .   W e  a r e  h a v i n g  f o r t n i g h t l y  m e e t i n g s  t o  s u p p o r t  t h e  s e r v i c e  a n d  e n s u r e  t h a t  a l l  m a n d a t e d  v i s i t s
a r e  c a r r i e d  o u t .  C a t c h  u p s  a r e  b e i n g  c a r r i e d  o u t  t o  e n s u r e  t h a t  f a m i l i e s  t h a t  m i s s e d  o u t  o n  N e w  B i r t h
V i s i t s ,  6 / 8  w e e k  c h e c k s ,  o r  1 2  m o n t h  v i s i t s  r e c e i v e  c a t c h  u p  f a c e  t o  f a c e  v i s i t s .  T h e  s e r v i c e  i s
p r i o r i t i s i n g  f a c e  t o  f a c e  c o n t a c t s  f o r  t h o s e  t h a t  a r e  m o s t  v u l n e r a b l e  r a t h e r  t h a n  r e l y i n g  o n  t e l e p h o n e
c o n t a c t s .  W e  c o n t i n u e  t o  m o n i t o r  t h i s  a n d  s u p p o r t  t h a t  a p p r o a c h .

R e b e c c a  F l e t c h e r

1 6  A p r  2 0 2 1

P e r f o r m a n c e  d u r i n g  t h i s  p e r i o d  h a s  b e e n
a f f e c t e d  b y  t h e  i m p a c t  o f  C O V I D  o n
s e r v i c e  d e l i v e r y .  I t  i s  a n t i c i p a t e d  t h a t
p e r f o r m a n c e  w i l l  r e t u r n  t o  p r e - C O V I D
l e v e l s  a s  w e  m o v e  t h r o u g h  t h e  c o v i d
r e c o v e r y  p e r i o d .

K a t r i n a  S t e p h e n s

M 6 5 6 ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  o f  H e a l t h  V i s i t o r  m a n d a t e d  r e v i e w s  c o m p l e t e d  w i t h i n  t i m e s c a l e

4 4  o f  4 9

P
age 84



C o r p o r a t e  P e r f o r m a n c e  R e p o r t

R e d
M e a s u r e

C u r r e n t  a n d  P r e v i o u s  P e r f o r m a n c e

F o l l o w  U p  A c t i o n  a n d  A s s u r a n c e  D e t a i l s

T a r g e t

A c c o u n t a b l e  L e a d  F o l l o w  U p  A c t i o n D i r e c t o r  A s s u r a n c eA c c o u n t a b l e  L e a d

T a r g e t  D a t e

N o  B e n c h m a r k i n g
A v a i l a b l e

M 6 6 4 a ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  o f  r e f e r r a l s  w h i c h  a r e  r e p e a t  r e f e r r a l s  t o  C h i l d r e n " s  S o c i a l  C a r e  ( i n  m o n t h )

2 4
2 6

2 9

2 2

3 1 / 1 2 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 1 / 2 0 2 1 2 8 / 2 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1
0

5

1 0

1 5

2 0

2 5

3 0

C u r r e n t  P o s i t i o n :  A t  2 2 . 5 %  t h i s  i s  a  s i g n i f i c a n t  p o s i t i v e  d e c r e a s e  i n  r e p e a t  r e f e r r a l  r a t e  w h e n  c o m p a r e d
t o  2 8 . 5 %  i n  F e b r u a r y  2 0 2 1 .  W h e n  c o m p a r e d  t o  o u r  S t a t i s t i c a l  N e i g h b o u r  b e n c h m a r k s  a t  3 1  M a r c h
2 0 2 0  ( 2 3 . 5 % )  o u r  M a r c h  2 0 2 1  d a t a  i s  l o w e r  a n d  s h o w s  p o s i t i v e  i m p r o v e m e n t .  I t  i s  i m p o r t a n t  t o
c o n s i d e r  t h e  w e e k l y  r e - r e f e r r a l  r a t e  v a r i e s  b y  w e e k  a n d  r e f l e c t s  a  v e r y  f l u c t u a t i n g  p e r i o d  o f  c o n t a c t s
i n t o  t h e  M A S H  d u r i n g  M a r c h  2 0 2 1 ,  w i t h  a  s i g n i f i c a n t  i n c r e a s e  i n  o v e r a l l  c o n t a c t s  r e c e i v e d  #  r e a c h i n g
1 , 8 0 0  c o n t a c t s  d u r i n g  t h e  m o n t h .  T h e  i m p a c t  o f  C o v i d - 1 9  c o n t i n u e s  t o  b e  c l o s e l y  m o n i t o r e d ,  h o w e v e r
w i t h  s c h o o l  r e t u r n s  d u r i n g  M a r c h  2 0 2 1  i t  i s  p o s i t i v e  t o  n o t e  a  r e d u c e d  r e - r e f e r r a l  r a t e .  T h e r e  a r e
c o n t i n u e d  c o n c e r n s  r e l a t i n g  t o  d o m e s t i c  a b u s e  a n d  m e n t a l  h e a l t h .  

A c t i o n :  T h e r e  i s  a n  i d e n t i f i e d  n e e d  f o r  c o n t i n u e d  s o c i a l  c a r e  s t r e n g t h  i n  t h e  e a r l y  h e l p  p r o v i s i o n  a t  t h e
f r o n t  d o o r  a n d  a  n e w  i n t e g r a t e d  s y s t e m  w e n t  f u l l y  l i v e  i n  F e b r u a r y  2 0 2 1 .  T h e  r e f r e s h e d  C o n t i n u u m  o f
N e e d  w e n t  l i v e  i n  M a r c h  2 0 2 1  a s  a  p a t h w a y  t o  s t r e n g t h e n  t h e  f o c u s  a n d  u n d e r s t a n d i n g  o f  e a r l i e s t
p o s s i b l e  h e l p .  A  c l e a r  q u a l i t y  a s s u r a n c e  a n a l y s i s  r e p o r t  h a s  l o o k e d  a t  t h i s  c o r p o r a t e  m e a s u r e  a n d  a
d e t a i l e d  a c t i o n  p l a n  i s  i n  p l a c e .

G e m m a  G e r r i s h

n o  d a t e  a v a i l a b l e

W e  h a v e  d e d i c a t e d  t i m e  w i t h i n  t h e
P e r f o r m a n c e  C l i n i c  a n d  C h i l d r e n ' s
A s s u r a n c e  B o a r d  t o  f o c u s  t h e  s e r v i c e  o n
r e p e a t  r e f e r r a l s  a n d  h a v e  c o n s e q u e n t l y
d e v e l o p e d  a  c o m p r e h e n s i v e  a c t i o n  p l a n
a r o u n d  t h e  i s s u e s  f o l l o w i n g  a  d e e p  d i v e
i n t o  t h i s  d a t a .

E l a i n e  D e v a n e y

R e m e d i a l  A c t i o n  D e s c r i p t i o n A c t i o n  O w n e r A c t i o n  T a r g e t
D a t e

A c t i o n  C o m m e n t s E F F E C T I V E D A
T E

A c t i o n  S t a t u s

C u r r e n t  P o s i t i o n :  A t  2 2 . 5 %  t h i s  i s  a  s i g n i f i c a n t  p o s i t i v e  d e c r e a s e  i n  r e p e a t  r e f e r r a l  r a t e  w h e n      3 1 - M a r - 2 0 2 O n  T a r g e t

P
age 85



C o r p o r a t e  P e r f o r m a n c e  R e p o r t

R e d
M e a s u r e

C u r r e n t  a n d  P r e v i o u s  P e r f o r m a n c e

F o l l o w  U p  A c t i o n  a n d  A s s u r a n c e  D e t a i l s

T a r g e t

A c c o u n t a b l e  L e a d  F o l l o w  U p  A c t i o n D i r e c t o r  A s s u r a n c eA c c o u n t a b l e  L e a d

T a r g e t  D a t e

N o  B e n c h m a r k i n g
A v a i l a b l e

R e m e d i a l  A c t i o n  D e s c r i p t i o n A c t i o n  O w n e r A c t i o n  T a r g e t
D a t e

A c t i o n  C o m m e n t s E F F E C T I V E D A
T E

A c t i o n  S t a t u s

C u r r e n t  p o s i t i o n :  A 1  p e r f o r m a n c e  h a s  i n c r e a s e d  f r o m  4 7 2  d a y s  t o  4 8 3  d a y s  i n  M a r c h  2 0 2 1 ,      3 1 - M a r - 2 0 2 O n  T a r g e t

4 6 5 4 6 6 4 7 2 4 8 3

3 1 / 1 2 / 2 0 2 0 3 1 / 1 / 2 0 2 1 2 8 / 2 / 2 0 2 1 3 1 / 3 / 2 0 2 1
0

5 0

1 0 0

1 5 0

2 0 0

2 5 0

3 0 0

3 5 0

4 0 0

4 5 0

5 0 0

M 9 4 1 ( C P )  A v e r a g e  t i m e  b e t w e e n  a  c h i l d  e n t e r i n g  c a r e  a n d  m o v i n g  i n  w i t h  i t s  a d o p t i v e  f a m i l y ,  f o r  c h i l d r e n
w h o  h a v e  b e e n  a d o p t e d  ( d a y s )  p e r  y e a r

T h e  s e r v i c e  i s  s t i l l  w o r k i n g  t h r o u g h  s o m e
l e g a c y  i s s u e s  w i t h i n  t h e  p e r m a n e n c e
p l a n n i n g  p r o c e s s .  T h e r e  h a s  b e e n  a
d e v e l o p m e n t  o f  p r e - p r o c e e d i n g s
p r o c e s s e s  t o  p r o m o t e  t h e  t i m e l i e s t
a p p r o a c h .  T h e  s e r v i c e  i s  w o r k i n g  w i t h  t h e
c o u r t s  o n  t h e  d e l a y  i s s u e s  d u e  t o  t h e
i m p a c t  o f  C o v i d .

E l a i n e  D e v a n e yC u r r e n t  p o s i t i o n :  A 1  p e r f o r m a n c e  h a s  i n c r e a s e d  f r o m  4 7 2  d a y s  t o  4 8 3  d a y s  i n  M a r c h
2 0 2 1 ,  a n  i n c r e a s e  o u t  o f  t i m e l i n e s s  b y  1 1  d a y s .  R e a s o n s  i n c l u d e ;  c h i l d r e n  l o o k e d  a f t e r  f o r
a  s i g n i f i c a n t  p e r i o d  o f  t i m e  a n d  c i r c u m s t a n c e s  t h a t  c h a n g e d  i n t o  a  p l a n  o f  a d o p t i o n .  W e
w e r e  a w a r e  t h a t  t h i s  w o u l d  i m p a c t  o n  t h e  A 1  i n d i c a t o r ,  i t  i s  h o w e v e r  v e r y  p o s i t i v e  t h a t  t h e y
h a v e  b e e n  s u c c e s s f u l l y  p l a c e d .  
A c t i o n :  O v e r a l l ,  i n  2 0 2 0 / 2 1  3 0  c h i l d r e n  h a v e  c e a s e d  c a r e  t h r o u g h  a n  a d o p t i o n  w h i c h  i s  a n
i n c r e a s e  f r o m  2 7  i n  2 0 1 9 / 2 0 .  T h i s  i n c r e a s e  i n  p e r f o r m a n c e  h a s  b e e n  a c h i e v e d  a g a i n s t  t h e
b a c k d r o p  o f  t h e  C o v i d  p a n d e m i c  w h i c h  i s  a  v e r y  p o s i t i v e  o u t c o m e  f o r  t h o s e  c h i l d r e n .  W e
h a v e  m a t c h e d  1 9  c h i l d r e n  w i t h  p r o s p e c t i v e  a d o p t e r s  s i n c e  O c t o b e r  2 0 2 0 ,  t h e s e  c a s e s  w i l l
p r o g r e s s  t o  a n  a d o p t i o n  o u t c o m e  o v e r  t h e  c o m i n g  m o n t h s .

n o  d a t e  a v a i l a b l e

S a r a  S c h o l e y

4 6  o f  4 9

P
age 86



A c t i o n
A c t i o n  D e s c r i p t i o n A c t i o n  U p d a t e

R e f R i s k  D e s c r i p t i o n L i k e l i h o o d I m p a c t M i t i g a t i o n D a t e  R i s k
R e v i e w e d

N o  R e d  r i s k s  t o  d i s p l a y

0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0
0 0 6 0
0 0 4 0
0 0 2 0
0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0
0 1 4 0
0 0 6 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0
0 1 1 0 0
0 0 1 2 0
0 0 3 0
0 0 0 0

B

A l l  r i s k s

A

C

D

E

I V      I I I       I I        I

L i k e l i h o o d I m p a c t

I  C a t a s t r o p h i c
I I  C r i t i c a l
I I I  M a r g i n a l
I V  N e g l i g i b l e

A  V e r y  H i g h
B  H i g h
C  S i g n i f i c a n t
D  L o w
E  V e r y  L o w

I V      I I I       I I        I I V      I I I       I I        II V      I I I       I I        I

I V      I I I       I I        I

A

A

B

B

C

C
D

D

E

E

0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 2 0
0 0 1 0
0 0 0 0

I V      I I I       I I        I

C o m m i s s i o n i n g C o m m u n i t i e s  &  R e f o r m C h l d r e nA d u l t sP e o p l e  a n d  P l a c e

D e t a i l s  o f  a n y  R e d  r i s k s  w i l l  a p p e a r  b e l o w  t h e  m a t r i c e s

0

4 7  o f  4 9

P
age 87



A c t i o n  N a m e

D e t a i l s  o f  p o t e n t i a l  c h a n g e s  t o  b e  m a d e  t o  t h e  C o r p o r a t e  P e r f o r m a n c e  R e p o r t

P e r f o r m a n c e  M e a s u r e  a m e n d m e n t ( s )

A c t i o n  a m e n d m e n t ( s )

M e a s u r e  N a m e A m e n d m e n t

N o n e  r e q u e s t e d  t h i s  m o n t h .

A m e n d m e n t

N o n e  r e q u e s t e d  t h i s  m o n t h .

4 8  o f  4 9

P
age 88



A p p e n d i x  V I  -  S u s p e n d e d  C o r p o r a t e  M e a s u r e s
S u s p e n d e d  M e a s u r e s  -  o w i n g  t o  t h e  i m p a c t  o f  C o v i d - 1 9

M 3 9 3 ( C P )  N u m b e r  o f  b u s i n e s s e s  s u p p o r t e d  a f t e r  b e i n g  s u c c e s s f u l l y  i n c l u d e d  i n  a  r e f e r r a l  p a c k a g e  /  p r o g r a m m e .
M 4 9 4 ( C P )  N u m b e r  o f  f o o d  h y g i e n e  i n s p e c t i o n s
M 5 6 5 ( C P )  D e l a y e d  d a y s  ( p e r  1 0 0 , 0 0 0  o f  t h e  p o p u l a t i o n )  a g e d  1 8 +  a t t r i b u t a b l e  t o  s o c i a l  c a r e  i n  E n g l a n d
M 5 6 6 ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  o f  c a r e  h o m e  b e d s  r a t e d  a s  ` G o o d `  o r  ` O u t s t a n d i n g `  ( N W  A D A S S  C Q C  D a t a  r e p o r t s )
M 5 6 7 ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  o f  c o m m u n i t y  b a s e d  p r o v i d e r s  r a t e d  a s  ' G o o d '  o r  O u t s t a n d i n g
M 6 4 8 ( C P )  %  o f  c h i l d r e n  w h o  h a v e  r e a c h e d  a  G o o d  L e v e l  o f  D e v e l o p m e n t  ( G L D )  a t  t h e  e n d  o f  t h e  E a r l y  Y e a r s  F o u n d a t i o n  S t a
M 6 5 7 ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  o f  c h i l d r e n  w h o  p a s s  t h e  Y e a r  1  P h o n i c s  s c r e e n i n g  t e s t .
M 6 5 9 ( C P )  P e r c e n t  o f  N H S  H e a l t h  C h e c k s  o f f e r e d  w h i c h  w e r e  t a k e n  u p  i n  t h e  Q u a r t e r
M 7 2 2 ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  o f  p u p i l s  i n  g o o d / o u t s t a n d i n g  O l d h a m  s c h o o l s
M 7 3 0 ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  o f  p u p i l s  a c h i e v i n g  t h e  n a t i o n a l  s t a n d a r d  i n  r e a d i n g ,  w r i t i n g  a n d  m a t h e m a t i c s  a t  t h e  e n d  o f  K e y  S t a g e  2
M 8 0 4 ( C P )  P e r c e n t a g e  o f  y o u n g  p e o p l e  w h o  a c h i e v e  l e v e l  5 +  i n  b o t h  E n g l i s h  a n d  m a t h e m a t i c s  a t  K S 4

4 9  o f  4 9

P
age 89



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
Reason for Decision 
To award the optional 1-year extension to the current Special Educational Needs Transport 
Service Contract. 

 
Executive Summary 
The report details the tender allocation process completed in July 2019. It also outlines the current 
provision of Home to School Transport, provided by the SEN Travel Assistance Team 

 
Recommendations 
Cabinet is required to authorise the optional 1-year extension to the current Special Educational 
Needs Transport Service Contract. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report to CABINET  
 

Special Education Needs (SEN) Travel 
Assistance Service – Contract Extension 
 

Portfolio Holder: Councillor Shahid Mushtaq, Cabinet Member for 
Education and Skills  
 
Officer Contact: Gerard Jones, Managing Director of Children & 
Young People 
 
Report Author: Ben Holt, SEN Transport Manager 
Ext. 3224 
 
21 June 2021 

Page 91

Agenda Item 8



 

  2 

 
Cabinet 21 June 2021 
 
 
Special Education Needs (SEN) Travel Assistance Service – Contract Extension 
 
1 Background 
 
1.1 The Travel Assistance Team currently provide home to school & college transport for a 

total of approximately 750-800 children and young people attending between 50/60 
schools/colleges both within and outside the borough of Oldham. The transport required 
includes mini-buses, tail lift/ramp vehicles, saloon cars, Eurocabs and Hackney Carriage 
vehicles provided by a mixture of Public Service Vehicles ("PSV’s), Private / Public Hire. 

 
1.2 It is the Local Authority’s statutory function to provide travel assistance to those children 

and young people with special educational needs, disabilities or mobility issues that are 
eligible according to the SEN Travel Assistance Policy. The transport service operates 
over 190 school days as determined by the School Holidays Calendar and considering 
other occasional days determined by individual schools governing bodies. All pupils with 
SEN are provided with free travel assistance, in accordance with the Council’s current 
Travel Assistance Policy (July 2019), IPSEA Legal guidance and the Education Act 1996. 

 
1.3 The provision of transport is determined by the needs of the individual pupil. Those with 

severe and complex health, physical or educational needs can be transported by either 
individual taxis or adapted vehicles. Children or young people with less severe needs 
ordinarily travel via a multi-passenger minibus/PSV vehicle. 

 
1.4 The SEN Travel Assistance Policy aims to ensure that all pupils eligible to access 

transport, will receive the appropriate provision which meets their needs. When assigning 
the appropriate provision to be provided, the Transport Moderation panel consistently 
applies the following principles: 

 

 The aim of the service is to support parents, not absolve them of their 
responsibility to ensure their child attends school on time with regular attendance. 

 The SEN Transport team ensures all arrangements put in place shall be cost-
effective, so the Authority receives value for money. 

 Wherever possible, the provision provided will look to build and promote 
independence, to help prepare children and young people for later life. 

 The health, safety and well-being of the children and young people will remain 
paramount. 

 
1.5 A dynamic purchasing system (DPS) is used for procuring and awarding routes which is 

accessed via the Chest.  Both a quality assurance score and price check are used to 
ensure that operators offer value for money for the local authority.  

 
1.6 There are currently 23 contractors providing specialist vehicles and qualified drivers to 

undertake the service. All contractors submitted competitive pricing based on transport 
being operational for 38 weeks of the year. 

 
1.7 The DPS was procured and awarded in 2019 on a 2-year basis with two x 1-year optional 

extension periods. The initial contract period started on 1st September 2019 and will end on 
31st August 2021; the subsequent call off contracts also follow the same duration. 

 

Page 92



 

  3 

1.8 The estimated costs associated with awarding the initial 2-year contract was £1.86m per 
annnum. During the extension period a full-service review will take place with the intention 
of re-procuring the DPS for the 1st September 2022.   

  
1.9 COVID-19 has impacted on the initial 2-year SEN Transport contract. With three periods of 

National Lockdown and two sustained periods of School closures. In March 2020, a 
decision was made, in line with government PCN guidelines to support our contractors, 
carrying out the SEN Transport contract, by paying the contract value in full, whilst Schools 
were closed from March 2020 to July 2020. 

 
1.10 The above decision ensured contractors did not cease to operate, saving additional costs 

being incurred by the authority, with contractors potentially submitting higher pricing (due to 
a possible reduced pool of contractors available to carry out routes, which will allow them to 
submit increased prices, with less competition available, which could’ve potentially ran into 
the 2021/22 academic year) and disruption to the children and young people accessing the 
service. 

 
1.11 Furthermore, in January 2021 a decision was made via delegated decision for full contract 

payments for routes still in operation during lockdown, with 50% contract payments made 
to drivers where the route has been cancelled due to COVID-19. Again, this decision 
ensured contractors did not cease to operate, saving additional costs being incurred by the 
authority and causing no disruption to the children and young people accessing the service. 

 
 
1.12 Despite all the challenges the service has faced over the last two academic years, along 

with ever changing COVID guidelines issued by the Department of Education, the contract 
has been successfully delivered. Therefore, due to the ongoing uncertainty regarding 
COVID-19, a contract extension will support all parties during this period, with our exit 
strategy for navigating our way out of the pandemic.    

 
 
2 Current Position 
 
2.1 A dynamic purchasing system is used for procuring routes which is accessed via the 

Chest.  Both a quality assurance score and price check are used to ensure that operators 
offer value for money for the local authority. Contractors are awarded routes via this 
process. Routes can change daily due to availability of personal assistants, change of 
school, change of home address and change of composition of group pick-ups. 

 
2.2 In accordance with the Council’s Procurement regulations and European Legislation, 

Oldham Council put out to tender routes for home to school transport for children and 
young. The tender process began in March 2019 with a deadline of 15th April 2019. The 
subsequent contracts commenced in September 2019.  

 
 Bidders were requested to review and complete the following documents:  
 

 Standard Questionnaire 

 Mini Competition 
 
The standard questionnaire looked to assess the quality aspect of bidders and their 
eligibility to perform the services. The table below outlines the criteria used: 

 

SQ Section Selection criteria Weighting 

Supplier information For information only N/A 

Page 93



 

  4 

Grounds for 
mandatory exclusion 

Pass or Fail N/A 

Grounds for 
discretionary 
exclusion – Part 1 

Pass or Fail N/A 

Grounds for 
discretionary 
exclusion – Part 2 

Pass or Fail  N/A 

Economic and 
Financial Standing 

Pass or Fail N/A 

Technical and 
Professional Ability 

Pass or Fail N/A 

Project specific 
questions to assess 
Technical and 
Professional Ability 

Pass or Fail and the weightings 
stated against the questions: 
 
Safe & Appropriate Service – 35% 
Complaints – 30% 
Business Continuity – 30% 
Social Value – 5% 
 

100% 

Insurance Pass or Fail N/A 

Compliance with 
equality legislation 

Pass or Fail N/A 

Environmental 
Management 

Pass or Fail N/A 

Health and Safety Pass or Fail N/A 

Data Protection Pass or Fail N/A 

Modern Slavery Act Pass or Fail N/A 

 
2.3 In addition, the service requested information on each driver which included driver’s 

license, operator’s license, DBS checks, and vehicle insurance. If a bidder passed the first 
stage of checks, their mini competition submission was evaluated. The mini competition 
document was evaluated purely on price, with the bidder offering the lowest price awarded 
the highest marks. 

 
2.4 All new contractors will comply with and sign, a contract for the provision of transport for 

children and young people in Oldham. In addition, they will have qualified through the 
Chest and signed the standard Council form of tender. 

 
2.5 The decision was taken to request written bids on both a price per mile and fixed price 

basis for all contracts. 
 
2.6 All tender submissions have been done via the chest and evaluated by both Procurement 

and Transport. So far, the Council has been able to award all of the 208 routes currently 
available. 

 
2.7 The SEND Transport budget has been increased to £2.9m since the contract commenced 

in in July 2019. Transport and Oldham’s Finance team have worked together, to set a 
cost-effective budget, to ensure the service can financially meet increased demand for 
Oldham’s most vulnerable pupils to be able to get to School. 

Page 94



 

  5 

 
 
3 Options/Alternatives 
 
3.1 Option 1 To award the optional 1-year extension to the current contractors who have 

provided a high-quality service and have shown a real commitment to the children and 
young people of Oldham with SEND, particularly through the current pandemic. 

 
3.2 Option 2 That the 1-year extension is not approved. However, due to value of the contract 

a new tender exercise would be required.  Not having a SEND Transport Contract in place 
for September 2021, will leave the Council open to challenge and there would be a real 
risk the Local Authority would be unable to provide a statutory function, by law, as outlined 
in the Education Act 1996. 

 
4 Preferred Option 
 
4.1 Option 1, It is recommended that the option to extend for a further 12 months with the 

current SEND Transport contract providers. 
 
5 Consultation 
 
5.1 Consultation with the Commercial Procurement Unit (Emily Molden – Category Manager) 

(Ben Holt – Transport Manager) 
 
5.2 Consultation with SEND Senior Management Team (Paula Green – SEND Service 

Manager) (David Shaw – SEND Assistant Director) and (Ben Holt – Transport Manager) 
 
5.3 Consultation at DMT on 11th May 2021. 
 
5.4 Consultation at SMT on 20th May 2021. 
 
5.5 Portfolio Holder, Cllr Shahid Mushtaq fully briefed and has had sight of the full report. 
 
6 Financial Implications  
 
6.1 The preferred option is Option 1, To award the optional 1-year extension to the current 

contractors who have provided a high-quality service and have shown a real commitment 
to the children and young people of Oldham with SEND, particularly through the current 
pandemic. 

 
The total budget for financial year 2021-22 is £2.9m for Contract Hire of Vehicles. 
(R33020 37113). 

 
(Vicki Hayes) 

 
7 Legal Services Comments 
 
7.1 There is provision within Rule 17.1 (a) of the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules to permit 

a modification to a contract in circumstances where the original tendered contract contains 
clauses allowing for such modifications; provided the clauses limit the scope and nature of 
the possible modifications and the conditions under which they may be used and that the  
modification does not alter the overall   nature of the contract. The circumstances outlined 
in the body of the report would support the application of the rule to enable the existing 
Dynamic Purchasing System contract to be extended for a further period of one year.   

 
(Elizabeth Cunningham Doyle) 

Page 95



 

  6 

 
 
8. Co-operative Agenda 
 
8.1 The Special Education Needs and Disability (SEND) Transport Service has been 

developed to support the Council’s co-operative agenda. The service is focussed on 
supporting children and young people to travel to school safely and ready to learn as well 
as enabling individuals to thrive in their local community. 

 
9 Human Resources Comments 
 
9.1 None (Daksha Mistry Senior HR Advisor) 
 
10 Risk Assessments 
 
10.1 The routes awarded as per the recommendations in this report give certainty on the price 

to be charged for the majority of routes. For those routes subject to a revised tender 
process estimated costs could either increase or decrease to that currently estimated. 

 
  (Mark Stenson, as per original report July 2019) 
 
11 IT Implications 
 
11.1 None 
 
12 Property Implications 
 
12.1 None 
 
13 Procurement Implications 
 
13.1 The Commercial Procurement Unit supports the recommendation outlined in the report. 

The extension will ensure continuous uninterrupted delivery and will allow time to 
undertake a full-service review and tender process.  

 
Procurement are supporting the service area in the revision of the terms and conditions 
and will manage the re-procurement to ensure it is carried out in line with the Council’s 
Contract Procedure Rules & Cabinet Office guidelines as well as achieving value for 
money. 

 
(Emily Molden) 

 
 
14 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications 
 
14.1 None (Laura Smith, as per original report July 2019) 
 
14.2 With a consultation currently out on a Clean Air Plan for Greater Manchester, future 

tendering of compliant vehicles with the Clean Air Zone needs to be part of the contract.  
All vehicles i.e. Adapted Vehicles, Multi Passenger Vehicles and Taxis will be affected by 
this i.e. a daily penalty if non-compliant but there is also a reputational risk to the 
organization.   

 
(Justine Addy, as per original report July 2019)  

 
15 Equality, community cohesion and crime implications 

Page 96



 

  7 

 
15.1 None 
 
16 Implications for Children and Young People 
 
16.1 None 
 
17 Equality Impact Assessment Completed? 
 
17.1  Yes 
 
18 Key Decision 
 
18.1 Yes  
 
19 Key Decision Reference 
 
19.1 ED-02-21 
 
20 Background Papers 
 
20.1 Education Act (1996)  
 
20.2   IPSEA Legal Guidance/SEND Code of Practice 
 
20.3 https://www.oldham.gov.uk/downloads/file/5171/travel_assistance_policy_july_2019 
 
21 Appendices  
 
21.1 None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 97

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1996/56/contents
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/send-code-of-practice-0-to-25
https://www.oldham.gov.uk/downloads/file/5171/travel_assistance_policy_july_2019


This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 99

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 22nd March 2021
	Minutes

	6 Covid-19 Recovery Strategy 2021 - 2022
	Covid Recovery Strategy (002)

	7 Council Performance Report March 2021
	8 Special Education Needs (SEN) Travel Assistance Service - Contract Extension
	10 Special Education Needs (SEN) Travel Assistance Service - Contract Extension

